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(MEC) Nkosiphendule Kolisile 
1973 - 2013

It is for the first time, since the dawn of democracy in 1994, that a sitting Gauteng Member of the  
Executive Committee (MEC) passes on.  MEC Nkosiphendule Kolisile tragically  

died having served a year-and-four days in office.

During this period, he served the people of the province with zeal and vigour.  He was able to converge 
with diverse stakeholders to ensure that decent employment and inclusive economic growth is not only 

the government’s responsibility but one that requires public private partnership.

He was a groundbreaker, with a resilience that is in many ways unmatched.  Certainly, his sterling 
contribution has left an indelible mark beyond the geographic confines of the Gauteng province.

Disciplined, Caring and Selfless Servant of the people to the end.
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ACRONYM 

AMD

APP
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CBC
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EXCO
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Advertising Value Equivalent

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector Education and Training Authority

Community Benefits Committee

Community Based Organisation

Cooperative Governance Framework

Cullinan Chamber of Commerce

Cullinan Diamond Mine

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site

Council for Scientific and Industrial Research 

Department of Arts and Culture

Departmental Acquisitions Council  

National Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

Department of Defence and Military Veterans

Department of Environmental Affairs

Dinokeng Game Reserve

Dinokeng Game Reserve Management Association

Department of International Relations and Cooperation

Department of Tourism

Department of Public Works

Department of Rural Development and Land Reform

Department of Water Affairs

Destination Marketing Organisation

Environmental Impact Assessment

Environmental Management Framework

Expression of Interest 

Executive Council

Fundraising, Events and Marketing

Fundraising, Events and Marketing 

Fair Trade Tourism South Africa 

Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development

Gauteng Department of Community Safety

Gauteng Department of Education

Gauteng Department of Economic Development

Gauteng Department of Local Government and Housing

Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development
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GDP

GDPR

GDRT

GDSACR

GEDA

GEP

GPG

GTA

GTDS
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ICOMOS

IP
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LTO

MAL

MDM
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PM&E
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RSA

SAHRA

SANRAL

SAC

SAT

SATG

SLA

SMME

TA 1

TA 2

TGCSA

UNESCO

WHCA

Wits

WTM

Gross Domestic Product

Gross Domestic Product per Region

Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport 

Gauteng Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation

Gauteng Economic Development Agency

Gauteng Enterprise Propeller

Gauteng Provincial Government

Gauteng Tourism Authority

Gauteng Tourism Development Strategy

Head of Department

Head(s) of State

Interpretation Centre Complex

International Council on Monuments and Sites

Intellectual Property

International Tourism Börse

Local Tourism Organisation

Maropeng a’Afrika Leisure

Metsweding District Municipality

Merger Integral Plan

Member of the Executive Council

Memorandum of Understanding

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

National Environmental Management Act, Act 107 of 1998

National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, Act 57 of 2003

National Heritage Council

Natural Resource Management

Nokeng Tsa Taemane Local Municipality

Petra Diamond Mine

Provincial Heritage Authority

Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999

Programme Monitoring and Evaluation

Provincial Destination Marketing

Public Private Partnership

Public Relations

Republic of South Africa

South African Heritage Resources Agency 

South African National Roads Agency Limited

Scientific Advisory Committee

South African Tourism

South African Tourism Germany

Service Level Agreement

Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise/s

Treasury Approval 1 to enter into a Public Private Partnership  transaction in terms of Treasury Regulation 16

Treasury Approval 2 to enter into a Public Private Partnership  transaction in terms of Treasury Regulation 16

Tourism Grading Council of South Africa

United Nations Educational  and Science Council

The World Heritage Convention Act

The University of the Witwaterstand

World Tourism Market
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I am delighted to present the 
annual report for the 2012/2013 
financial year for the Cradle 
of Humankind World Heritage 
Site and Dinokeng Projects. 
The continued development 
of these projects into premier 
tourism destinations in line 
with the Gauteng Tourism 
Development Strategy (GTDS) 
is evident of the commitment 
and diligence of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site 
and Dinokeng teams and bears 
testimony to the seamless co-
operation which is developing 
within the tourism landscape of 
the province.
  

Message from the 
Member of the 
Executive Council for 
Economic Development 

    Tourism has become a fiercely 
competitive business. Yet again, 
competitive marketing, management 
and appropriate development  
of tourism destinations have  
proven to be the most critical 
success factors.

Historically, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and 
Dinokeng Projects have given high priority to the upgrading of bulk 
infrastructure and creation of quality employment opportunities 
in the Gauteng Province. Once more, this report provides strong 
evidence of sustained service delivery, performance against targets 
and the tackling of important challenges during the 2012/2013 
financial year.

The challenge faced by Gauteng Province in attracting a growing 
percentage of local and international visitors to the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng as preferred 
destinations has been met successfully, despite challenging 
economic conditions in the broader economy. 

Tourism has become a fiercely competitive business. Yet again, 
competitive marketing, management and appropriate development 
of tourism destinations have proven to be the most critical success 
factors.

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site continues to grow 
as an iconic tourism destination.  The rate of scientific discoveries 
has accelerated, with South Africa’s as yet unique species 
Australopithecus sediba continuing to command world attention.  
The Interpretation Centre Complex comprising of Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein have continued to provide a focal point of this unique 
near-pristine destination.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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The distinctive nature of the Dinokeng tourism experience is centred on the viability of the Dinokeng “Big 
Five” Game Reserve. The  previous financial year has seen the arrival of buffalo and additional elephant 
bulls, which has resulted in the only free-roaming “Big Five” Game reserve in the province, and it is 
rapidly becoming a popular draw-card, in part at least because of its accessibility from Gauteng’s major 
urban cores.

The Acting Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng 
Projects, Ms Dawn Robertson, continues to lead and integrate these projects in a dynamic and effective 
fashion. I am certain that the project teams that work under her will continue to improve and expand the 
projects and provide excellent service delivery according to the requirements and aims of the GTDS.

On behalf of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) I would like to convey my sincere gratitude to all the 
stakeholders for their hard work and commitment to the development of these outstanding destinations 
which continue to occupy dominant places in the tourism landscape and grow towards examples of real 
and lasting excellence.

Mr. Nkosiphendule Kolisile
Member of the Executive Council:Economic Development

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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The period of review saw the 
streamlining of the tourism 
landscape in line with the 
Gauteng Tourism Development 
Strategy (GTDS). The Cradle 
of Humankind World Heritage 
Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng 
Projects are well on track 
towards seamless integration 
into the Gauteng Tourism 
Authority (GTA).

It has always been the objective 
of these tourism projects to 
produce tangible benefits to 
as many people as possible.  
Some people in Gauteng still 
face a constant battle against 
starvation, malnutrition, 
diseases, exposure to the 
elements, exploitation and 
crime. Despite their numerous 
hardships, many of them have 
displayed continuous loyalty and 
support for the South African 
government. With this in mind, 
it is the duty of all organs of 

Introduction by the Chief 
Executive Officer and 
Accounting Officer

    It has always been the objective 
of these tourism projects to produce 
tangible benefits to as many people 
as possible.

state to strive continuously to create a better life for all. This can 
only be achieved through the implementation of good governance 
as set out in the Batho Pele code of conduct, which is essential 
for all tiers of government to be effective. State employees should 
have a shared vision, discipline, commitment, a co-operative and 
collaborative spirit, loyalty, perseverance and ethical conduct.  The 
failure to encourage and enhance these qualities in state employees 
is a betrayal of the trust of the common people. Whilst I am confident 
that my staff members demonstrate these attributes in good 
measure, we should never rest on our laurels, but should always 
strive to elevate our standard of excellence and high quality service.

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Management 
Authority (COH WHS MA) has built a solid basis for the conservation 
of universal history, which is encapsulated in remarkable hominin 
fossils which have been unearthed on our very doorsteps. In 
the decade that the project has been in existence the sciences of 
genetics and palaeoanthropology have advanced enormously and 
demonstrated conclusively that all humans derive from common 
ancestors who lived in Africa within the past 150 000 years. Far 
earlier hominins have been found and the unique Australopithecus 
sediba has continued to go out to meet the world, most specifically in 
the year under review, to Germany and China.

Dinokeng is a remarkable spatial destination which, besides its 
dams and diamonds, has sunshine, and an ever expanding cluster of 
elite bushveld destinations almost within sight of central Tshwane.  
The Dinokeng “Big 5” Game Reserve is now completely stocked with 
these iconic species, and is the only free-roaming “Big 5” game 
reserve in the province.

continued

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



10

During the 2012/13 financial year the tourism industry has shown resilience, and even growth and 
prosperity at a time when other industries have declined, some of them alarmingly. We know that we 
have created destinations where tourism can continue to flourish.  This is most meaningful when it 
creates work opportunities and precipitates skills transfer to people working in tourism and the cluster 
of industries that derive from tourism.

During the recessionary period the local tourism industry has also been padded by a growth in local 
tourism as upper income groups in the local economy continue to reduce their overseas leisure travel, 
either because they do not have as much available cash as they used to have, or because they are 
becoming sensitive to the large carbon footprints which are necessarily generated by regular air travel.  
Whatever the cause, the result has been a substantial amount of money which has boosted the local 
tourism economy instead of going out of the country.

The Annual Report demonstrates accountability and wise spending, especially as the budgets of all 
departments have now been rationalized in line with the current and projected fiscus. The province 
continues to be marketed as a pivotal and often under-rated portion of the country where we say “It starts 
here!”. Staff of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects have contributed 
admirably towards the reputation of Gauteng as a tourism destination, and a leader in tourism project 
management and marketing.  I believe this Annual Report will serve as a glowing testimonial to those 
who serve these remarkable projects and give them their just significance and well deserved applause. 

Ms Dawn Robertson
Acting Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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2.1 Mandate of the Programmes

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng Projects are geo-spatial 
development initiatives of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) aimed at developing premier tourist 
destinations in the economically depressed regions in the north east and north west parts of the Gauteng 
province.

The COH WHS and Dinokeng trading entities are established as trading entities within the Department of 
Economic Development (DED) with a single Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) appointed 
in terms of section 36(3)(b) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999. The CEO reports 
to the Member of the Executive Committee (MEC) for Economic Development. The mandate of the COH 
WHS and Dinokeng trading entities is derived from the Blue IQ Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited 
Act, Act of 2003, and the World Heritage Convention Act (WHCA), Act 49 of 1999.  The project is entirely 
funded by the Gauteng Provincial Government. 

However, the projects operate in a complex and challenging multi-disciplinary environment, requiring 
partnership with various departments and strategic stakeholder groupings in support of a coordinated 
approach to project implementation.

With regards to the management of the COH WHS, the Gauteng MEC for the COH WHS was appointed 
by the then Minister of Environmental Affairs and Tourism now called Department of Tourism as the 
Management Authority (MA) in terms of section 8 of the WHCA on 19 May 2006 (Notice 28831).

      The mandate of the COH WHS and Dinokeng trading 
entities is derived from the Blue IQ Investment Holdings 
(Proprietary) Limited Act, Act of 2003, and the World 
Heritage Convention Act (WHCA), Act 49 of 1999.  

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW

Breathtaking view of the Sterkfontein caves in the COH WHS. 
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The World Heritage Convention Act (WHCA) obligates the COH WHS MA to achieve the objectives of the 
Act to:

a. Provide for: 
 i. The cultural and environmental protection and sustainable development of, and related activities  
  within the COH WHS; and 
 ii. Giving effect to the Values of the Convention. 

b. Make the Convention part of South African domestic law to create a framework to ensure that the  
 Convention and the operational guidelines are effectively implemented in the Republic of  
 South Africa (RSA), subject to the Constitution and the provision of the Act; 

c. Promote, manage, oversee, market and facilitate tourism and related development in connection   
 with World Heritage Sites in accordance with applicable law, the Convention and the operational 
 guidelines in such a way that cultural and ecological integrity is maintained;

d. Ensure that everything done in terms of this Act conforms with the obligations of the RSA in terms of 
 the Convention and the operational guidelines;

e. Ensure the identification and transmission to future generations of the cultural and natural heritage 
 of the RSA;

f. Ensure that effective and active measures are taken for the protection, conservation, presentation 
 and interpretation of the cultural and natural heritage of the RSA; 

g. Encourage investment and innovation in connection with World Heritage Sites;

h. Encourage job creation in connection with World Heritage Sites; 

i. Promote the development of culturally, environmentally, and if applicable, economically sustained  
 projects in connection with World Heritage Sites; and 

j. Promote empowerment and advancement of historically disadvantaged persons in projects related 
 to World Heritage Sites.

The promulgation of the COH WHS permits the Management Authority to enforce all regulations for the 
proper administration of special nature reserves, national parks and world heritage sites promulgated 
in terms of the National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act (NEMPAA), Act 57 of 2003, for 
the COH WHS area. The promulgation of the site has enhanced the COH WHS MA to fulfil its mandate of 
protection, conservation and preservation of the site.

continued
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2.2 Constitutional and Legal Framework

The COH WHS and Dinokeng Projects comply with the following relevant national legislation within which 
government operates. 

Act Number

Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983 Act 43 of 1983

Environment Conservation Act, 1989 Act 73 of 1989

Extension of Security of Tenure Act, 1997 Act 62 of 1997

National Environmental Management Act, 1998 Act 107 of 1998, as amended

National Environmental Management:  
Biodiversity Act, 2004

Act 10 of 2004

National Environmental Management:  
Protected Areas Act, 2003

Act 5 of 2003, as amended

National Water Act, 1998 Act 36 of 1998

Restitution of Land Rights Act, 1994 Act 22 of 1994

Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations Regulations 1182 and 1183, 1997

Nature Conservation Ordinance, 1983 Number 12 of 1983

2.3 Good Governance

The responsibilities of the projects are also carried out in partnership with relevant statutory bodies and 
also comply with the legislative provisions of the following acts:

Act Number

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 Act 75 of 1997

Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 Act 53 of 2003

Electronic Communications Security (Propriety)  
Limited Act, 2002

Act 68 of 2002

Employment Equity Act, 1998 Act 5 of 1998

Labour Relations Act, 1995 Act 66 of 1995

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 Act 5 of 2000

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 Act 2 of 2000

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 Act 3 0f 2000

Promotion of Equality and Elimination of Unfair 
Discrimination Act, 2000

Act 4 of 2000

Protection of Information Act, 1982 Act 84 of 1982

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 Act 1 of 1999

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW
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2.3 Good Governance continued

Act Number

Public Service Act, 1994 Act 103 of 1994 and Amendment Act  
of 1999

Skills Development Act, 1998 Act 97 of 1998

Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005 Act 13 of 2005

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 Act 108 of 1996

2.4 Strengthening Accountability

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng trading entities are 
multi-disciplinary in nature and their success requires active involvement of a multitude of stakeholders
within and outside of government. 

The Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (GDARD) have continued to play a key role in 
the authorisation of Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) for new development projects.  The Provincial 
Heritage Authority (PHA), South African Heritage Resource Agency (SAHRA) and the National Heritage Council 
(NHC) have similarly played a key role with regard to heritage and cultural resources management in the  
COH WHS. 

The cooperative governance and stakeholder engagement framework 
has continued to be used as a tool to communicate the focus of the 
projects in terms of public participation during the current phase 
of project implementation, as well as a mechanism to strengthen 
accountability. The review of the framework provides a mechanism 
by which the projects receive critical feedback from stakeholders, 
enabling such feedback to be in-cooperated into, and thus influence, 
the manner in which delivery is undertaken. It represents an attempt 
by the COH WHS and Dinokeng Projects to partner resources available 
to ensure public participation are limited, and therefore need to be 
used judiciously to ensure that the objectives of the projects are 
achieved. The framework provides for engagement which is planned, 
purposeful, and underpinned by the principles of Batho Pele.

Elements of the existing cooperative governance and stakeholder 
engagement framework for the reporting period are set out below.

    The review of 
the framework 
provides a 
mechanism 
by which 
the projects 
receive critical 
feedback from 
stakeholders,

continued
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2.4.1 Cooperative Governance: National Departments

Table 1 below sets out the scope of engagement with national departments:

Department Scope of Engagement

Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) • Participation in the South African World  
 Heritage Convention Committee 
• Alignment of plans and budgets for the interpretation  
 and preservation of heritage and culture
• Support for relationship with SAHRA

Department of Environmental Affairs  
(DEA)

• Best practice environmental and conservation   
 management
• Promulgation of the DGR as a Protected Natural   
 Environment

Department of Tourism (DOT) • Alignment of plans and budgets for tourism investment  
 and marketing
• Support for Tourism Safety Monitors
• Support for the relationship with South African Tourism  
 (SAT) and the Tourism Grading Council of  
 South Africa (TGCSA)
• Facilitate access to poverty alleviation funding

Department of Science and Technology 
(DST)

• Alignment of plans and budgets for scientific and   
 research endeavours
• Support for relationship with National Research   
 Foundation

Department of Public Works (DPW) • Support paleontological research in the COH WHS 
• Involvement in reviewing and drafting Palaeontology  
 and Archaeology Strategy
• Specific interaction with regard to the identification and  
 incorporation of surplus state land in the DGR and in  
 the Roodeplaat and Cullinan tourism hubs in the   
 Dinokeng area

Department of Rural Development and 
Land Reform (DRD&LR) and the Gauteng 
and North West Land Claims Commission

• Specific interaction to address settlement of land  
 claims in the Dinokeng area

National Treasury • Specific interaction with regard to the Public  
 Private Partnerships (PPPs) being developed for  
 the Roodeplaat tourism hub

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW
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2.4.2 Cooperative Governance: 
National Government Agencies

Table 2 below sets out the scope of engagement with national government agencies:

Government Agency Scope of Engagement

South African Heritage Resources Agency 
(SAHRA)

• Extensive involvement in the management of the  
 thirteen listed fossil sites in the COH WHS 
• Support for regulatory compliance for the development  
 of Cullinan in Dinokeng

South African Tourism (SAT) • Support for international and domestic tourism   
 destination marketing

Tourism Grading Council of South Africa 
(TGCSA)

• Implementation of a special project for the promotion 
 of tourism grading
• Support for accreditation of assessors

Fair Trade Tourism South Africa • Corporation and Promotion of responsible tourism

Wilderness camp fire COH WHS.

continued
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2.4.3 Cooperative Governance:  
Provincial Government Departments and Agencies

Table 3 below indicates the scope of interaction with provincial departments and government agencies  
within the GPG:

Department Scope of Engagement

Gauteng Department of Economic 
Development (GDED)

• Direct reporting line as trading entity of the department
• Implementation of departmental plans and priorities  
 as per the Gauteng Employment Growth and   
 Development Strategy (GEGDS)
• Development and implementation of a Service Level  
 Agreement (SLA) 

Gauteng Department of Agriculture and 
Rural Development (GDARD)

• Implementation of an SLA for provision of corporate  
 services
• Specialist conservation advice in relation to the DGR
• Programmatic own budget for Environment and   
 Conservation Management, including EIA  
 authorisations and Natural Resource Management  
 (NRM) projects

Gauteng Department of Community Safety 
(GDCS)

• Bilateral interaction to address general community  
 safety, specialist input on safety and security for the  
 tourism sector, and traffic law enforcement and road  
 safety initiatives on tourism routes

Gauteng Department of Education (GDE) • Relocation of schools in the DGR area

Gauteng Department of Local Government 
and Housing (GDLG&H)

• Management of state land within the DGR 
• Support for coordination with local government in   
 Dinokeng and the COH WHS 
• Bilateral interaction to resolve municipal demarcations  
 of the COH WHS area

Gauteng Department of Roads and 
Transport (GDRT)

• Issue- based interaction with GDRT as planning and  
 implementing agent for roads network and signage  
 budgeted by the Dinokeng Project
• Planning and implementing agent for roads network  
 and signage budgeted by the COH WHS Trading Entity

Gauteng Enterprise Propeller (GEP) • Coordination through GDED Inter-agency Forum
• Support for  Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise  
 (SMME) development
• Tourism planning and research cooperation

Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) • Joint initiatives for international and domestic tourism  
 destination marketing
• Support for institutionalised development
• Support for investment promotion
• Joint coordination and management of the integration  
 process between the COH WHS and Dinokeng Projects  
 and GTA

Gauteng Economic Development Agency 
(GEDA)- currently called GGDA

• Coordination through GDED Inter-agency Forum
• Support for investment promotion

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW
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2.4.4 Cooperative Governance: Neighbouring Provinces

Neighbouring provinces also play an important role in the implementation, due to the geospatial areas 
traversing more than one province. The scope of work in relation to interaction with neighbouring 
provinces is set out in Table 4:

Table 4 below sets out the scope of work with neighbouring provinces:

Province Scope of Engagement

North West • Joint drafting of Statement of Outstanding Universal  
 Value for the Fossil Hominid Sites of South Africa
• Participation in and completion of reporting for the  
 Fossil Hominid Sites of South Africa in the UNESCO      
 Second Cycle of Periodic Reporting for Africa
• Alignment of plans and budget for tourism marketing
• Land use planning
• Alignment of plans for serially listed Fossil Hominid  
 Sites of South Africa
• Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and   
 expansion  

Limpopo • Issuance of permits for the introduction of game into  
 parts of the DGR that traverse the Limpopo boundary 
• Alignment of plans for serially listed Fossil Hominid  
 Sites of South Africa
• Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and   
 expansion  

Mpumalanga • Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and   
 expansion

The North West province is crucial in ensuring the 
sustainable management of the World Heritage 
Site in its entirety, as 10% of it falls within the 
province. Collaboration with the province is on the 
management agenda of the serially-listed sites 
and implementation measures for effective land 
use planning and control.

The Mpumalanga and Limpopo provinces are 
critical for ensuring the full development of 
the Dinokeng Game Reserve, as expansion into 
neighbouring portions of the two provinces is 
envisaged. Successful partnership with Limpopo 
and Mpumalanga necessitate an alignment of 
economic and tourism development plans of 
neighbouring provinces and local authorities.

    Neighbouring provinces 
also play an important role 
in the implementation, due 
to the geospatial areas 
traversing more than one 
province.

continued
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2.4.5 Cooperative Governance: Local Government

Collaborative relations with municipalities remain one of the important interactions for the sustainable 
development of the two projects. The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) is largely 
located in the West Rand district and Mogale City local municipality.  10% of the site falls within the 
Bojanala Platinum District Municipality in the North West Province. Dinokeng falls within the boundaries 
of Tshwane Metro. This project area expands to parts of Limpopo Province and the municipalities in 
Mpumalanga Province. The scope of engagement with municipalities include: establishment of local 
economic development strategies, land use management, and housing infrastructure.

Table 5 below sets out engagement with local municipalities:

Municipality Scope of Engagement

City of Tshwane • Alignment of strategies and plans for the successful  
 development of the projects and for the local economic  
 development strategies of local government.

West Rand District Municipality • Alignment of strategies and plans for the successful  
 development of the projects and for the local economic  
 development strategies of local government. 

Mogale City • Alignment of strategies and plans for the successful  
 development of the projects and for the local economic  
 development strategies of local government. 

Tswana dancers in Dinokeng.

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW
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2.4.6 Cooperative Governance: Other Stakeholder Engagements

The scope of engagement with each stakeholder group is outlined in Table 6:

Stakeholder Scope of Engagement

Landowners • Land use and development authorisations
• Interested and affected parties in development plans
• Participation as landowners in the DGR

Occupiers (people residing on land with 
the implicit consent of the landowner)

• Land use and development authorisations
• Interested and affected parties in development plans

Tourism business owners • Cooperation on tourism research 
• Joint marketing initiatives

Investors, particularly tourism business 
investors

• Tourism research
• Tourism development
• Tourism destination marketing
• Grading of tourism establishments
• Destination brand marketing 

Dinokeng Game Reserve (DGR) 
Landowners’ Association,

• Implementation of the start-up phase and expansion  
 of the DGR

DGR Management Association (DGRMA) 
and DGR Game Enterprises

• Representation of the interests of the state as  
 a landowner, by the Dinokeng Trading Entity in  
 the DGRMA

Environmental and conservation NGO’s 
and CBO’s

• Investment in expansion and development of new   
 tourism product offering
• Participation and investment in Public Private   
 Partnerships

Maropeng a’Afrika Leisure (Pty) LTD • Implementation of agreement of collaboration for  
 the development and operation of Maropeng and   
 Sterkfontein, the official visitor centre to the COH WHS

Fossil site landowners • Implementation of landowner agreements for the   
 monitoring and evaluation of paleontological digs at  
 13 excavated sites

Scientist • Specialist input and support for research and scientific  
 endeavour specific to the site

Palaeo-Anthropological Scientific Trust 
(PAST)

• Planned future engagement with an Advisory  
 Committee for specialist input and support for  
 research and scientific endeavour

University of the Witwatersrand • Management of the COH WHS Public Private  
 Partnership (PPP) concession contract for Maropeng  
 and Sterkfontein Caves

• Collaboration in the announcement of scientific finds 

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW

continued
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2.5 Monitoring and Evaluation

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng trading entities operate in a 
matrix management environment. Projects in this environment cut across organisational boundaries 
and involve staff required to report to their own line manager as well as to the project manager. The basis 
for the matrix organisational structure is to endeavour to create synergy through shared responsibilities 
between projects and functional management.

Monthly budget reports and quarterly performance reports continue to be produced. In addition, quarterly 
strategic reviews were used to evaluate the use of human, financial and other resources to assess the 
achievement of maximum efficiency, effectiveness and economies of scale in the use of these resources 
for project implementation during the period under review.

Table 7 below shows the monitoring mechanisms applicable to the MEC and CEO, who are responsible for 
ensuring that the outcomes and outputs reflected in the strategic plan and the Medium Term Expenditure 
Framework (MTEF) are achieved.

Table 7 Monitoring and Accountability Mechanisms

Name of Entity Monitored By Monitoring Mechanism

Member of the Executive 
Council (MEC)

Gauteng Legislature/Premier 
Executive Council/Auditor 
General

Strategic plans and quarterly 
performance reports
Annual reports
Annual Performance Plan (APP)
Provincial EXCO
MINMEC meetings 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Gauteng Legislature
MEC
Auditor General
Audit Committee Charter

Head of Department

Strategic plans and budget
Monthly reports
Quarterly reports
Annual reports
Provincial EXCO meeting
Provincial Head of Department 
(HOD) Forum
APP
GDED Agencies CEO Forum

Chief Financial Officer: 
Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site and Dinokeng

CEO
Treasury
Auditor-General South Africa
Audit Committee

Strategic plans and budget
Monthly reports
Quarterly reports
Annual reports

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW
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Values

In dealing with the public the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng 
Projects always strive to put people first (according 
to the Batho Pele principles) through consultation 
and involvement of interested and affected parties.
The projects aim to act transparently, with integrity,
respect, fairness and objectivity. The projects 
value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm. 

As custodian of a world heritage site, the projects 
are also accountable to South Africa and the world 
to protect and preserve the COH WHS. The projects 
discharges its responsibilities professionally and 
adheres to the obligations imposed by the World 
Heritage Convention Act, Act 43 of 1999 (WHCA) 
with regards to world heritage site management.

Vision

Project areas which are conserved and sustainably 
developed as premier tourism destinations 
contributing to job creation and economic growth, 
creating a better life for all who live and work in 
and around them and offering visitors diverse 
leisure and business tourism opportunities. In 
addition, the vision of the COH WHS is to offer a 
unique world class experience, and to scientists, a 
well-managed site for ongoing research.

Mission

The mission of the projects is to invest in strategic 
economic infrastructure and encourage private 
sector tourism activity; and to invest in visitor 
facilities, creating a network of attractions connected 
by scenic routes. We also aim to maximise Broad 
Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) 
and the development of Small, Medium and Micro 
Enterprises (SMMEs), and to consult with and 
involve all interested and affected parties in the 
management and development of the project area.

    Project areas which are 
conserved and sustainably 
developed as premier 
tourism destinations 
contributing to job creation 
and economic growth

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.1 Broad Strategic Objectives of the Projects

The strategy of the Cradle of Humankind Wold Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng trading entities 
is to invest in infrastructure and tourism facilities in order to enhance private sector investment in 
tourism business activities in the project areas. The rationale for the development of the two projects is 
to contribute to economic growth and job creation in the impoverished north-western and north-eastern 
portions of the Gauteng province. The key strategic objectives are to:

a) Establish Public Private Partnership (PPP) transactions for the development of significant tourism  
 components of the network of tourism facilities connected by scenic routes.

b) Invest in strategic economic infrastructure to stimulate private sector investment in the  
 tourism sector. 

c) Integrate, coordinate and optimise the sustainable use of resources.

d) Provide tourist attractions in Gauteng of international, national and local significance.

e) In the case of the COH WHS, to promote scientific research, educational and learning opportunities and  
 also act as the MA for the United Nations Educational and Science Council (UNESCO)-declared World 
 Heritage Site in accordance with relevant legislations.

f) Progressive implementation of the Master Plan for the development and management of  
 each destination.

g) Tourism research and planning and tourism institution development.

h) Destination marketing to increase domestic and international leisure and business tourism to the  
 destination.

i) Advocacy, including targeted stakeholder engagement, general stakeholder engagement and cooperative  
 governance.

The above strategic priorities below are aligned with the strategic priorities of the Gauteng Provincial 
Government (GPG)’s five-year programme for 2009-2014. This programme focuses on the government’s 
vision for 2014, namely:

• Creation of decent work;
• Long-term, sustainable growth of our provincial economy; 
• Meeting the socio-economic development needs of our people; 
• Creating a more equitable society; and
• Reducing unemployment and poverty. 

continued

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.2 Organisational Structure of the  
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS)  
and Dinokeng Projects

Acting CEO for 
COH WHS and 

Dinokeng 

Programme Manager: 
Dinokeng

Programme Manager: 
Administration COH 
WHS and Dinokeng

Chief Director: Cradle 
of Humankind World 

Heritage Site and 
Dinokeng

 Chief Director: 
Planning and Support  

for COH WHS and 
Dinokeng

 Chief Financial Officer   
for COH WHS and 

Dinokeng

Programme Manager: 
Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site

Programme Manager: 
Research and Planning 

COH WHS and 
Dinokeng

Programme Manager: 
Fundraising, Events, 

Marketing for COH WHS 
and Dinokeng

Finance Manager  
for COH WHS and 

Dinokeng

The approved organisational structure of the COH WHS & Dinokeng projects is depicted in the organogram 
above. This structure includes the four transversal support programmes.

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.2.1 Functions of the Structure

The Cradle of Humankind Wold Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng trading entities are established 
as trading entities within the Department of Economic Development with a single Accounting Officer, the 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) appointed in terms of section 36(3)(b) of the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA), Act 1 of 1999. The CEO reports to the Member of the Executive Committee (MEC) for Economic 
Development and is supported by a staff establishment of 64. Due to the fact that high levels of expertise 
are required for various aspects of work, work is contracted in from specialists where such expertise is 
not required on a permanent basis.  The current structure is comprised of the Office of the CEO and the 
Office of the CFO. 

The management structure also comprise of four functional areas, namely: COH WHS and Dinokeng 
Programmes, Administration, Research and Planning; and Fundraising, Events and Marketing. In 
terms of the service level agreement, Gauteng Department of Economic Development (GDED) provides 
corporate support services (i.e. human resource management, facilities management, information and 
communication technology infrastructure and services, etc.) to the two projects.

A show case of the Arts at Dinokeng (Ndebele Car)

    Due to the fact that high levels of expertise are 
required for various aspects of work, work is contracted 
in from specialists where such expertise is not required 
on a permanent basis.

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.2.2 COH WHS Programme

The COH WHS Programme is responsible for infrastructure 
development, the development of a network of tourism interpretation 
and orientation centres as envisaged in the COH WHS master plan.

The component is divided into four other sub-programmes:
• The Interpretation Centre Complex (ICC) sub-programme manages 
 Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts signed with the
  concessionaires/s and manages further development in the centres.
• The Orientation Centres sub-programmemanages the development 
 of scenic routes that connect the network of tourism facilities.
• The Public Participation and Community Benefits sub-programme 
 creates awareness about the project activities and enables the 
 community to participate in the economic opportunities presented 
 by the site.
• The Integrated Environmental Conservation Management sub-programme 
 develops environmental systems and manages environmental and 
 conservation issues in both the COH WHS and Dinokeng Project 
 areas. The unit is also responsible for land use management and in 
 terms of COH WHS responsible for the management of the fossil 
 sites around the World Heritage Site.

    The COH WHS 
Programme is 
responsible for 
infrastructure 
development, 

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.2.3 Dinokeng Programme

The Dinokeng Programme is responsible for the management of development of infrastructure and the 
network of tourism hubs as envisaged in the Dinokeng trading entity plan. The component is divided into 
three sub-programmes:

• The Public Private and Community Benefits sub-programme creates awareness about the project activities  
 and enables the community to participate in the economic opportunities presented by the site.
• The Dinokeng Game Reserve sub – programme manages and oversees the development of the  
 “Big 5” game reserve in Dinokeng.
• The Cullinan and Roodeplaat Tourism Hubs sub-programme manages and coordinates the establishment  
 of these hubs and the development of PPP’s. 

3.2.4 Research and Planning Programme

The Research and Planning Programme is responsible for the monitoring and evaluation of the impacts 
of the development of the destinations. The component has only four sub-programmes:

• Programme Monitoring and Evaluation sub-programme:
 This unit is responsible for developing strategic plans and annual
 performance plans for Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
 Site andDinokeng Projects. In addition it is also responsible for 
 monitoring and evaluating the implementation of these plans.
• Tourism and Investment Monitoring and Evaluation
 sub-programme: This unit conducts strategic research which is
 used to inform the marketing, investment and band management   
 strategy for both projects. 
• Integrated Environmental Conservation Management 
 sub-programme: This unit manages most of the Management 
 Authority function that has been delegated to the Cradle of
 Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) Project in terms of 
 protecting and preserving the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage
 Site for future generations.
• Land Use Management or NEMPAA sub programme: This unit
  manages all development applications in the world heritage 
 site as well as the broader mandate of the MA in terms of  
 its mandate.

    The Research 
and Planning 
Programme 
is responsible 
for the 
monitoring
and evaluation 
of the impacts of 
the development 
of the 
destinations.

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.2.5 Fundraising, Events and Marketing Programme

The Fundraising, Events and Marketing Programme is responsible for marketing, brand management, 
mobilisation of funds, management of the COH WHS Trust, and for organising and managing events for 
both destinations. The component is divided into three sub-components:

• The Fundraising sub-programme mobilises funds from international and domestic donor organisations,
 corporate, government, as well as soliciting brand partnerships with corporate to increase the 
 destinations’ marketing mileage. The management of the COH WHS Trust sits with this sub-programme.
• The Events sub-programme manages Heads of State (HOS) visits, Signature events, media events,
 and targeted events to celebrate milestone achievements. This sub-unit also manages the destinations 
 representation at international and local exhibitions.
• The Marketing and Public Relations sub-programme manages the Intellectual Property Brand and its 
 users, marketing and brand awareness, public relations activities, collateral and website development.

3.2.6 Administration Programme

The Administration Programme provides strategic management and administrative support to the entire
organisation, giving secretariat leadership to the work of the department. This programme also oversees 
human resource issues for the department, working together with Gauteng Department of Economic 
Development (GDED) human resource directorate.

3.2.7 Financial Programme

The Financial Management Programme is headed by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). It ensures a sustained 
culture of financial management compliance in the department, and provides analysis and advice on fiscal  
policy and public finances, intergovernmental financial relations, expenditure planning and priorities.  
The programme also manages the annual budget process and provides public finance management 
support.

Majestic landscape at the COH WHS

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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3.3 Staff Composition

Diagram 1: Staff composition by gender

Gender Profile Race Profile

Female

Male

43%
57%

White

Black

Indian

Coloured

63%

15%

13%

3.4 Human Resource Development Composition

The organisation reinforces continual training to motivate and empower its staff. Continual training 
encourages a workforce that is competent, consistent, competitive, effective and efficient, and provides 
employees with the necessary skill to perform their job efficiently.

During the period under review, the annual training plan which addresses the individual training needs of staff 
linked to strategic objectives, career path and performance development was successfully implemented.   
A total number of 46 staff members attended training in the year under review.

Due to the high number of vacant posts that are not filled because of the merger process, some staff 
members acted in higher positions which lent them an opportunity to develop their own leadership  
and skills. Due to the merger of the COH WHS and Dinokeng projects and the Gauteng tourism, the Chief 
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer at the Gauteng Tourism provided dual functions for all 
the entities.

3.5 Service Providers

The approach of the projects is to procure services from service providers in the event that expertise does 
not exist and /or where the service is not required on a permanent basis.  To this end, a number of service 
providers were utilised during the reporting period.

10%

ORGANISATIONAL SYSTEMS AND RESOURCES FOR THE DELIVERY OF SERVICES FOR COH WHS AND DNK PROGRAMME
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PROGRAMME:  CRADLE OF HUMANKIND 
WORLD HER ITAGE S ITE 4.1

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH 
WHS) Programme is primarily responsible for carrying 
out the mandate as the designated Management 
Authority (MA) for this important African palaeontological 
site which has yielded critical fossil evidence of early 
humans. The MA derives its authority from the National 
Minister of Environmental Affairs as the legal signatory 
and State Party to the World Heritage Convention (WHC) 
and carries out its responsibilities in terms of the World 
Heritage Convention Act, 1999 (WHCA).

Ancient human 

fossil dating back 

3 million years, 

COH WHS. 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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The Cradle of Humankind was declared a World Heritage 
Site by United Nations Educational  and Science 
Council (UNESCO) on 2 December 1999. Since then, 
this unique area not far from Johannesburg has yielded 
some incredible fossil finds of extinct fauna and more 
significantly, fossils of ancient human ancestors going 
back at least 3 million years before present. The latest 
find, Australopithecus sediba, by Professor Lee Berger 
of the University of the Witwatersrand in Johannesburg, 
dated at an astoundingly precise 1.97 million years before 
present, has caused much excitement in academic and 
other circles and offers incredible insight into our 
distant past.

4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

    The Cradle of Humankind was 
declared a World Heritage Site by 
UNESCO on 2 December 1999. 

4.1.1. Introduction and Overview of Performance

Since its listing as a site of immense significance for 
the world, the COH WHS has been largely protected, 
preserved, interpreted and developed by the South African 
government through huge investments, particularly in the 
form of strategic economic infrastructure development. 
In addition to the huge investment by government, 
an established and funded COH WHS Management 
Authority oversees and manages the site. This requires a 
significant investment in financial and human resources.

In the thirteen years since its listing as a World Heritage 
Site, the Management Authority has progressively 
implemented a master plan for the site. 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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The COH WHS Programme has a number of sub units 
as follows: 

a) Interpretation Centre Complex

b) Public Participation and Community Projects

c) Fundraising (including the work of the Cradle Trust)

d) Integrated Conservation and Environment Management  
 and Land Use Management in terms of the relevant  
 legislation such as the Nationa  Environmental Protected  
 Areas Act (NEMPAA), The National Environmental  
 Management Act (NEMA) and the World Heritage
  Convention Act (WHCA), amongst others. 

e) Orientation Centres/Infrastructure Management
  (includes roads maintenance, signage etc). 

4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

There are many challenges with regard to development 
pressure and tourism development, amongst others, 
but the strides made thus far has ensured that the 
site is protected and is steadily growing and earning a 
reputation as an iconic site of global significance and a 
‘must see’ tourism destination in South Africa.

The main function of the MA is to protect what is referred 
to by the United Nations Educational and Scientific 
Council (UNESCO) as the Outstanding Universal Value 
(OUV) of the site. This is done through implementation of 
measures and projects that will ensure the conservation 
and protection of the natural and cultural resources 
associated with the site, while at the same time ensuring 
tangible benefits and interpretation for surrounding 
communities and the public at large. The encouragement 
of tourism development as an economic driver 
enhances the MA’s mandate in terms of its heritage and  
conservation responsibility.

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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The Interpretation Centre Complex (ICC) sub-programme 
manages the visitor centres and museums in the COH 
WHS, namely Sterkfontein Caves and Maropeng.

The Public Participation and Community Benefits sub-
programme creates awareness about the project, manages
public participation activities and assists the community to 
participate in the economic opportunities presented by the 
site through SMME development, training and learnership 
programmes and the implementation of community projects.

The Fundraising sub-programme is responsible for, in addition 
to fundraising activities, managing the established Cradle Trust 
which oversees implementation and disbursement of funds for  
community projects and promotion of further scientific research.

The Integrated Environment and Conservation sub-
programme manages all work related to the conservation 
and environmental management of the site within the context 

4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

of the Outstanding Universal Value of the site, including 
management of the fossil sites. This sub-programme 
is also responsible for the institutional arrangements 
and management of the COH WHS together with the 
National Department of Environmental Affairs, and the 
Management Authorities for the Taung Child Skull World 
Heritage Site and the Makapan Valley World Heritage 
Site. The Integrated Environment and Conservation 
sub-programme also includes a Land Use Management 
sub-unit, which manages all development applications 
in the World Heritage Site in terms of the appropriate 
legislation. This unit is also currently responsible for the 
implementation of a system of mountain bike trails in the 
World Heritage Site. 

The Orientation Centres/Infrastructure unit is primarily 
responsible for all infrastructure and signage related 
matters in the world heritage site and works closely 
with a number of partners and stakeholders such as the 
Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport (GDRT).

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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4.1.2 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 

4.1.2.1 Maropeng and Sterkfontein Interpretation 
Centres 

With the exit of the main shareholder (Stefanutti Stocks) 
from the Public Private Partnership (PPP) agreement in 
the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage SIte (COH WHS), 
(management of the Sterkfontein and Maropeng visitor 
centres), there has been no new shareholder that has 
been identified to continue with the PPP arrangement. 

The exit by Stefanutti Stocks left the Concessor Parties 
(GPG and Wits University) without an operator and a 
decision was taken at Provincial level to appoint an 
interim public institution (represented by GPG and Wits) 
to regulate the operations of MAL. 

In order for GPG to gain a better understanding on the 
options available to ensure the sustainable continuation 
of the project, Department of Economic Development 
(DED) engaged Grant Thornton Strategic Solutions in 
2012 to evaluate current operations of the project and to 
identify solutions and options for the future management 
and development of the visitor facilities in the COH WHS.
 
Grant Thornton Strategic Solutions have concluded the 
analysis report and has submitted their final report 
in March 2013. A task team, including Wits, Provincial 
and National Treasury representatives and others are 
currently looking at the best options as a way forward for 
the management of these facilities.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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4.1.2 Implementation of the Master Plan

Provincial government has been continuing to fund the 
operational losses of Maropeng in the year under question 
although Maropeng has been breaking even, and in some 
quarters of the financial year actually showing a profit, 
albeit a minimal one.

The upgrade of the exhibition at Sterkfontein and Maropeng,
as well as the installation of additional external 
infrastructure improvements at Maropeng, are currently 
underway.

A 2,6km hiking trail at Maropeng was constructed during 
the reporting period.

4.1.2.2 Public Participation and Community 
Benefits

There has been significant work done in the area of 
public participation and community projects, particularly 

with regards to skills development programmes and 
training of local community members. The COH WHS, in 
partnership with Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and 
Sport Sector Education and Training Authority (CATHSETA) 
and Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA), implemented a 
learnership programme for twenty learners from the COH 
WHS area. The programme consisted of housekeeping 
and cooking lessons.  All of the 20 learners were placed 
within tourism establishments in the project area. The 
biggest challenge with this learnership project has been 
the high turnover of learners due to better opportunities 
presenting themselves elsewhere, particularly in the 
form of employment.

In addition to this, 30 learners were trained in foreign 
language proficiency in the COH WHS. 10 learners were 
trained in French language and 20 learners were trained 
in Mandarin. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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As part of the mandate of the COH WHS Management 
Authority in terms of including communities in the 
interpretation of the site, one thousand learners from the 
surrounding local community are sponsored to visit the 
interpretation centres in the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site (COH WHS) annually. Plans are underway 
to extend this project province-wide. 

A public meeting involving all relevant stakeholders and 
affected parties was held in the COH WHS regarding the 
crime situation in Muldersdrift. The meeting was attended 
by the Member of the Executive Council (MEC) for Gauteng 
Department of Economic Development (GDED), who also 
visited the families who had been directly affected by the 
crime situation in the area. Other meetings have been 
issue and stakeholder-specific meetings.

4.1.2 Implementation of the Master Plan

An Arts and Craft Community Beneficiation project was 
launched in the COH WHS in 2012. The project has involved 
training of 31 crafters in the development, production and 
marketing of craft with themes related to the COH WHS. 
The MEC for GDED launched the project and opened the 
craft shop at Maropeng in February 2013.

Three primary and one secondary cooperative have been 
established, which are responsible for managing the craft 
project. They are currently being mentored in marketing 
and financial management.

The National Department of Tourism (NDT) has 
suspended the funding of the Tourism Safety Monitors 
project. This project initially employed 200 patrollers, 
who were trained in tourism awareness and safety 
issues. They patrolled the COH WHS area and also 
offered tourism related information to visitors to the site, 
thereby acting as tourism ambassadors.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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 4.1.2 Implementation of the Master Plan

Arts and Craft Community Beneficiation project, COH WHS. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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4.1.3.1 Integrated Environment and Conservation 
Management

This sub-programme is responsible for the physical 
conservation of both natural and cultural resources that 
constitute the core of the Outstanding Universal Value 
of the World Heritage Site. Because the fossils have 
been preserved as a result of natural processes and are 
the raison d’etre for the listing of the site on the World 
Heritage List, the conservation and protection of the 
geology and more specifically, the dolomitic environment 
and associated grasslands, is as important as the 
management of the fossil sites themselves.

To ensure that the site is managed in terms of the 
prescriptions of United Nations Educational and 
Scientific Council (UNESCO) and the World Heritage 
Convention Act, measures have been taken to have the 
site properly proclaimed and a proper boundary and 
buffer demarcated. 

Management activities in the reporting period included the 
implementation of a land use management plan to control 
undesirable development that will negatively impact on 
the Outstanding Universal Value of the site. This unit 
ensures that the each of the nationally registered fossil 
sites are managed and excavated in terms of best practice 
guidelines.  For this there are landowner agreements 
and management plans for each site which are inspected 

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

4.1.3 HER ITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT
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4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

twice a year by the Management Authority and the South 
African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA). To ensure 
that the Outstanding Universal Value of several of the 
fossil sites is protected and conserved, the Integrated 
Environment and Conservation Management unit has 
undertaken a site safety assessment which assessment 
has yielded crucially important areas of future work to be 
undertaken by the COH WHS MA. Furthermore, this sub-
programme has formed a partnership with the University 
of the Witwatersrand to rehabilitate the Gladysvale Fossil 
Site to erect a protective dome over the Malapa Fossil 
Site, and the establishment of a fossil casting project 
at Sterkfontein Caves. This project has recruited local 
community members to be trained in fossil casting skills 
and has created a number of employment opportunities, 
as well as ensuring that scientifically important high 
quality casts are available to the scientific community as 
well as the general public.  

Fossil in rock COH WHS. 

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
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4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

monitoring programme is in place with the Council for 
Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR).

The Working on Fire Programme is implemented in the 
project area by Department of Environmental Affairs 
(DEA).
Twenty five people are employed through this programme. 

The re-promulgation of the COH WHS by DEA is currently 
underway and consultation with the North West Province 
has been undertaken by DEA since a percentage of the 
geographical area of the COH WHS falls within that 
province. This will improve control over inappropriate 
development activities in the site which could impact 
negatively on the Outstanding Universal Value of the 
site. The COH WHS MA is an active participant in the 
recently developed Joint Management Committee. This 
is a committee formed by the National Department of 
Environmental Affairs to ensure that the management 

The sustainable management of the Highveld Grassland 
habitat is critical for the natural systems and processes to 
function normally which in turn will protect the important 
fossils found throughout the site. The implementation 
of biodiversity management strategies thus becomes 
as important as protecting the site from inappropriate 
development. The formation of privately owned protected 
areas is becoming an important strategy to counter poor 
infrastructure development, unscrupulous development 
and urban creep.

Water is an important driver of the dolomitic environment 
and the fossil-forming process. The monitoring of the 
groundwater in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site (COH WHS) is an integral part of this unit. It is through 
the implementation of a water monitoring plan that the 
Management Authority is able to gauge the severity of 
the threat posed by Acid Mine-Water Drainage (AMD) 
and other water polluting threats to the site. A water 

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
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activities across the three World Heritage Sites forming 
the serial World Heritage Site, the Fossil Hominid Sites of 
South Africa, are co-ordinated. 

4.1.3.2 Land Use Management National 
Environmental Management Protected Areas Act 
(NEMPAA)

The key deliverable of this sub-unit is the overall 
management of development applications in the World 
Heritage Site. The uncertainty regarding the actual 
boundary of the COH WHS as well as a potential buffer 
zone and the difficulty in guiding developers and property 
owners regarding development options and rights 
also provided challenges in the reporting period. The 
procedural challenges in obtaining final approval and 
publish the necessary notices in the Government Gazette 
are major challenges that will receive priority attention 
during the 2013/14 financial year.

The most important achievement for this sub-unit in the 
reporting period was the finalisation of the Mountain 
Bike Trail Feasibility Study undertaken by Arcus Gibb 
Consulting Engineers. This is part of a broader strategy 
for the implementation of a system of mountain bike 
trails in the World Heritage Site which in turn supports 
the non-motorised initiatives of the Gauteng Department 
of Roads and Transport (GDRT). 

4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

     The key deliverable 
of this sub-unit is the 
overall management 
of development 
applications in the 
World Heritage Site.

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
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The feasibility study highlighted the issues related to 
safe cycling and cycling tourism opportunities within the 
COH WHS as well as the positive benefits of providing 
much needed recreational infrastructure in the Cradle 
of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS). Public 
meetings held with property owners, cycling stakeholders 
and relevant government departments resulted in 
positive feedback and a final report concluded that the 
provision of a mountain bike trail system was indeed 
feasible and desirable.

4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

The Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport (GDRT) 
reviewed the approach and recommendations by the 
project team and officially endorsed the approach and 
general design and best practice guidelines proposed by 
the study. As a result, the detailed design and construction 
of the first 15 km of dedicated Mountain Bike trail will 
be undertaken within the road reserve of the provincial 
roads within the COH WHS in the 2013/14 financial year.

Professional cyclists pass through the COH WHS on the Mzansi Tour.

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
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The development of additional visitor centres in the 
COH WHS in the form of Orientation Centres has been 
put on hold pending further deliberations regarding 
the feasibility of establishing these as Public Private 
Partnerships (PPP). 

One of the key achievements for the reporting period 
is the completion of the construction of traffic calming 
measures project in the COH WHS in collaboration 
with the GDRT as the implementing agent. The main 
deliverable of this unit in the reporting period related to 
the management of this work. A task team with GDRT has 
been set up to address all infrastructure, maintenance, 
roads, signage issues and cycling issues in the COH WHS.

The establishment of Artworks sculptures in the site 
through a collaborative project with stakeholders and 
partners is currently underway with the establishment of 
an Artworks Committee to oversee the implementation 
of this project. 

This, together with the traffic calming measures project 
and additional directional signage procured for the 
site, and other supporting initiatives, will contribute to 
creating a greater sense of place of being in an area that 
has Outstanding Universal Value, and will also contribute 
to improved navigation in the project area for both 
residents and visitors.

INFRASTRUCTURE

4.1.4 INFRASTRUCTURE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS

The management of the site is done in partnership with 
key stakeholders ranging from fossil site landowners 
to tertiary institutions like the University of the 
Witwatersrand (Wits), the different tiers of government 
(local, provincial and national), adjacent provinces like 
Limpopo and the North West Province (serially listed 
through the Makapan Valley site and the Taung Child site 
respectively) and a range of other important stakeholders 
and agencies. There has been significant national, 
international and local engagement in the reporting 
period with strengthening of ties with a variety of these 
key stakeholders. 

There is also a close working relationship between the 
Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA) and the 
COH WHS MA. The MA is also represented at the South Chinese delegation 

4.1.5 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS

African World Heritage Committee meetings convened 
by DEA aswell as the Joint Management Committee of 
the serially listed sites.

The South African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) is 
another key stakeholder in the management of the site.
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One of the biggest challenges facing the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) is to manage 
the site in consultation with all stakeholders of the Cradle 
community in line with United Nations Educational  and 
Science Council’s (UNESCO’s) Operational Guidelines for 
the Implementation of the World Heritage Convention. It 
is also important for the COH WHS Programme to put 
in place regulations that will assist the Management 
Authority to better manage development-related 
activities within the World Heritage Site, and to ensure 
that benefits flow to communities living in and around the 
site. 

The forging of stronger ties with the communities and 
stakeholders of the COH WHS therefore remains a crucial 
challenge for the MA in terms of managing the site.
Managing development pressure within the site and its 
buffer is a primary challenge for the MA. The COH WHS 
is close to two major urban conurbations and urban 
encroachment poses a threat to the OUV of the site. 
This is currently being managed in consultation with the 
relevant provincial and national authorities. 

Another challenge remains the management of the 
groundwater in the site which is a fundamental part of 
the Karst geology of the World Heritage Site. The threat 
from Acid Mine-Water Drainage (AMD) on the fossil sites 
is largely restricted to those sites in the southern area, 
but mitigation measures to address AMD at the MA level 
as well as at a National Government level have resulted 
in drastic improvement in the quality of the water flowing 
through the system. 

4.1.6 Challenges and Opportunities

   ...to manage the site 
in consultation with all 
stakeholders...

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
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4.1.6 Challenges and Opportunities

Furthermore, a monitoring plan has been implemented 
by the MA as per recommendations from the extensive 
groundwater study that was undertaken by the MA and 
which has been recognised by United Nations Educational  
and Science Council (UNESCO) and International Council 
on Monuments and Sites (ICOMOS) as best practice and 
commendable. 

The COH WHS is fast being recognised as one of the 
premier tourism destinations in South Africa and a site 
that holds immense significance for the world as it talks 
directly to the story of our ancient ancestors and remains 
one of the most prolific palaeoanthropological sites in the 
world. There is a huge opportunity for the MA to develop 
the site in line with UNESCO prescriptions and open up the 
site for tourism development that will not only profile the 
site and its richness, but will directly benefit communities 
living in and around the site. This will also profile the 
country and the continent as the birthplace of humanity.

    There is a huge opportunity 
for the MA to develop the site in 
line with UNESCO prescriptions 
and open up the site for tourism 
development that will not only 
profile the site and its richness...

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
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The Research and Planning Programme is responsible 
for the monitoring and evaluation of the impacts of the 
development of the destination. 

Tourism and Investment Monitoring and Evaluation sub-
programme conducts strategic research which seeks to 
inform marketing, investment and brand management 
strategy for the organisation and also to inform decisions 
for further tourism development in the area. The 
highlights of 2012/13 financial year were the Research 
into the economic value of heritage, paleo-tourism and 
conservation goods and services as well as the update of 
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and job creation figures 
for the COH WHS. 

The diagram below illustrates the economic value chain: 
Research into the economic value of heritage, palaeo-
tourism and conservation goods and services was 
commissioned for two purposes:

• to evaluate use and non-use benefits of heritage and  
 conservation, and
• to review the value of palaeo-tourism in South Africa,  
 particularly in the COH WHS.

The diagram below illustrates the economic value of 
heritage, paleo-tourism and conservation goods and 
services chain:

TOURISM AND INVESTMENT

4.1.7 TOURISM AND INVESTMENT
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FUNDRAISING

MEC Mr. Nkosiphendule Kolisile opening the Arts & Crafts Kiosk at Maropeng

4.1.7 Tourism and Investment
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4.1.7 Tourism and Investment
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The update of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) contribution 
and job creation figure. The sub-programme further 
updated the economic impact model developed for 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) 
with the purpose of updating the contribution of the 
tourism industry to the local economy, specifically Gross 
Domestic Product per Region (GDPR) and job creation 
and to provide projections for 2012 to 2015. The study 
revealed that about 1 485 25 tourists visited the COH 
WHS and it was estimated that 1 495 49 tourists would 
have visited the COH WHS in 2012. The total tourism 
expenditure of in 2011 was R 812.4 million and expected 
to have grown to R 819.4 million.

4.1.7 Tourism and Investment

Local craft store, COH WHS 

TOURISM AND INVESTMENT
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4.1.8.1 Marketing for COH WHS 

The objective of the marketing, advertising and public 
relations work of the COH WHS MA is to increase 
awareness of the destination, to drive visitor numbers 
to the destination and to keep stakeholders informed 
about the development of the project.  In the reporting 
year, the development of marketing material and 
collateral done in order to enhance the brand identity 
of the project was completed. Marketing material that 
was developed during the period under review included 
destination maps, exhibition and events collateral as well 
as distribution of press release.  

One of the highlights for this reporting year was the 
announcement of new sediba fossils discovered in a rock 
containing significant parts of an early human ancestor 
in the destination.  As part of implementing the Public 
Relations and Media Strategy around this significant 
announcement the response received was exceptional 
with the highest Advertising Value Equivalent (AVE) seen 
in print publications, followed by broadcast and the least 
in online coverage. 

4.1.8.2  Brand Management

The COH WHS brand is a legally registered trade mark, 
including its logo and other elements of branding in 
terms of South African and international law. It is the 

DESTINATION AWARENESS AND MARKETING

4.1.8 DEST INAT ION AWARENESS AND 
MARKET ING
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4.1.8 Destination Awareness and Marketing

responsibility of the COH WHS MA to ensure that the 
COH WHS brand is used legally and properly in terms 
of the requirements of United Nations Educational 
and Scientific Council (UNESCO) and in terms of South 
African and international copyright law. 

To continue with the aforementioned mission which was 
initiated by DM Kisch, the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site (COH WHS) project have in the period 
under review commissioned Brand Leadership to revise 
the existing and redundant Brand Use Policy for the 
COH WHS, whilst also providing the required Intellectual 
Property Management services for the COH WHS, 
Dinokeng and Gauteng Tourism Authority.

The primary objectives of this two-year assignment  
are to: 
• Review and create a new Brand Use Policy for the COH  
 WHS destination that will be managed by the Local  

 Tourism Organization (LTO), which will manage all
 future marketing and branding of the COH WHS destination 
• Provide ongoing IP Management support from a legal,  
 compliance and enforcement perspective for the COH 
 WHS, Dinokeng (it’s sister Tourism project) and the  
 Gauteng Tourism Authority as and when required 

4.1.8.3 Website Development

Attention was also given to all content information for 
the website development. This included editing all the 
channels of the website and compilation of substantial 
material for the COH WHS website. The architecture of 
the website has been revised. This new design has now 
been implemented, so that from the 2013/14 financial 
year onwards the COH WHS website is fully functional 
and exists from its own URL position and also as sub-
site of the Gauteng Tourism Authority website, providing 
much needed publicity and interaction on the web.

DESTINATION AWARENESS AND MARKETING
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4.1.8 Destination Awareness and Marketing

4.1.8.4 Local Tourism Organization

The last quarter of the period under review provided 
an opportunity for COH WHS MA to  appoint Grant 
Thornton to develop in the coming financial year the 
Local Tourism Organization (LTO) formerly referred to 
as a DMO (Destination Marketing Organization) for the 
(COH WHS). The primary purpose of the LTO is to bring 
together tourism role-players such as product owners, 
associations, tourism interest and pressure groups and 
similar to operate under a single COH WHS tourism 
group that will exist to market the destination or broader 
tourism catchment area. The proposed LTO framework 
must provide a basis for discussion with key stakeholders 
on the establishment of local tourism institution for 
the area and facilitate discussions among these very 
stakeholders on the implementation approach for the 
envisaged local tourism organization.

DESTINATION AWARENESS AND MARKETING
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4.1.9.1 Tourism Indaba 2012

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH 
WHS) successfully exhibited at the Indaba 2012, Africa’s 
premier tourism trade show with great success.  Indaba 
is one of the largest tourism marketing events on the 
African calendar and one of the top three ‘must visit’ 
events of its kind on the global calendar.  It showcases 
the widest variety of Southern Africa’s best tourism 
products, and attracts international visitors and media 
from across the world.  

Graded product owners and brand users were provided 
space to exhibit at the COH WHS stand. Strategic 
meetings were also set up with tour operators and other 

EXHIBITIONS

4.1.9 EXHIB IT IONS

critical players such as South African Tourism Germany 
(SATG) to discuss possibilities of a media familiarization 
trip to the destination that will include more than 60 
German media in 2013.
 
4.1.9.2 Soweto Wine Festival 

The COH WHS also exhibited at the Soweto Wine 
Festival and participated as an associate sponsor, which 
involved setting up of an engaging exhibition and a media 
partnership with Kaya FM. Products from the COH WHS 
also sponsored a lot of packages as part of the competition 
that was announced by Kaya FM at their stand. This was 
part of profiling various tourism attractions and offerings 
in the COH WHS and encouraged repeat visitation to the 
area. 
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4.1.9 Exhibitions

4.1.9.3 Getaway Consumer Show 

The COH WHS participated in the annual Getaway Show 
consumer exhibition with the objective of reaching the 
established leisure markets. The event offered the COH 
WHS an opportunity to engage consumers with interests 
in the aforementioned experiences and increase brand 
awareness and demand for visitation to the COH WHS 
destination.

4.1.9.4 Meetings Africa

Meetings Africa exhibition generates business 
opportunities and further increases the COH WHS brand 
foot print. Meetings Africa provided an opportunity to 
further cement relationships with product owners.  
At this exhibition, meetings were held with 15 targeted 
international and local hosted buyers who showed great 
interest in the leisure and business tourism offerings of 

COH WHS. A total of 3 flagship products, including the 
COH WHS, exhibited on the stand.

4.1.9.5 World Travel Market

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) 
was profiled at the World Travel Market (WTM). The 
Expo enjoys worldwide media recognition and offers 
comprehensive support for all marketing questions 
exhibitors might have.  WTM is the place to be for press 
exposure, both international and in your market. WTM 
worked with over 40 online and print publications across 
and welcomed more than 2,600 members of the press 
onsite. Pre-scheduled meetings are an integral part of 
attendance of any international exhibitions as these allow 
for match-making and target marketing of relevant target 
audiences. The profiles of buyers, tour operators, travel 
agents and broader industry role-players can be looked at 
and meetings set. COH WHS is maintaining relationships 

EXHIBITIONS
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4.1.9 Exhibitions

with these contacts/customers 
and building relationships that will 
eventually lead to new business or 
reaching new target groups for the 
destination.

4.1.9.6 International Tourism 
Bourse (ITB)

The purpose of the ITB, Berlin 
exhibition in Germany was to 
increase brand awareness amongst 
the international tourism trade 
sector, forming part of the South 
African 2013 sell. The exhibition 
at ITB, which was done under the 
auspices of South African Tourism 
(SAT) and in collaboration with the 

EXHIBITIONS

Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) saw profiling of the COH WHS as one of the 
top heritage sites in Gauteng.
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4.1.10.1 Sediba Goes Global

The COH WHS implemented the 2nd phase of the gifting 
of Australopithecus Sediba in China which coincided with 
the signing of the bi-lateral agreement in Chongqing. 
This platform was used as a conduit for the organization 
to profile the COH WHS, and Gauteng to specific niche 
markets; to bench mark, establish collaborations and 
to forge scientific and institutional partnerships with the 
similar museums and the new Museum of Natural Science 
and Museum of Science and Technology in Shanghai in 
particular. The gifting took place in at the Science and 
Technology Museum in Shanghai, China, on 13 July 2012 
where the hand over casts of the Australopithecus sediba 
fossils to the Museum was done.

4.1.10.2 Heads of State Visits

The period under review has set a tone to revitalize 
the strategy that begun in 2002 with the imprinting of 
the footprints of the former President, Thabo Mbeki, 
and former United Nations (UN) General Secretary, 
Kofi Annan, by securing the dates for imprinting of the 
footprints of Archbishop Desmond Tutu and Mr. FW de 
Klerk. The footprints of these Nobel Prize winners will 
be cast and installed at the processional walkway at 
Maropeng next to where there is an installation of the 
footprints of former President Thabo Mbeki, 

EVENTS

4.1.10 EVENTS
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4.1.10 Events

former UN General Secretary Kofi Annan and a number 
of statesman and Nobel Prize winners including 
President Jacob Zuma, President Václav Klaus of the 
Czech Republic, Professor Sydney Brenner (South 
Africa, Nobel Prize Laureate in Physiology or Medicine), 
Professor Peter Agre (United States of America, Nobel 
Prize Laureate in Chemistry) and others. 

In the quest of entrenching this strategy, the COH WHS 
has initiated a method of getting a buy-in from the 
Department of International Relations and Cooperation 
(DIRCO) of making the COH WHS part of the Heads of 
State itinerary. This is done with the object of hosting 
those Heads of State (HOS) at Maropeng Visitor 
Interpretation Centre in a form of media event and takes 
them on a tour which will include footprint casting. This 
buy-in is sought from the Department of International 

EVENTS

Professor Agre’s foot print

Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO) by virtue of being the 
presiding national government department who manages  
HOS visits.
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4.1.10 Events

4.1.10.3 Hands that Rocks the Cradle 

An event called “Hands that Rock the Cradle” was held 
at Maropeng to launch an Arts and Craft Community 
Beneficiation project in the COH WHS. The project involves 
training of 31 crafters in the development, production 
and marketing of craft with themes related to the COH 
WHS. The Member of the Executive Committee (MEC) for 
Gauteng Department of Economic Development (GDED) 
launched the project and opened the craft shop at 
Maropeng in February 2013. The MEC also broke a bone 
at the kiosk where the crafts will be sold to the tourists 
visiting the area.

4.1.10.4 COH WHS Festival

The Cradle Festival is the result of a fruitful partnership 
between The Leverage Corporation, Maropeng and the 
COH WHS MA and has been many years in the making. 

The Management Authority is mandated to protect and 
preserve the heritage status of the region. In addition to 
this the MA is tasked with raising the profile of the area, 
attracting tourists and growing the local economy. The 
Cradle Festival is a fantastic opportunity to help put the  
area on the map. The festival created an exciting week-long 
event that something for the whole family and built on the 
existing appetite for challenging sports events.

EVENTS

Hands that Rocks the Cradle,presentation night
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4.1.11.1 Fundraising Strategy

The COH WHS Fundraising Strategy was developed in 
the year under review and the plan is to implement it in 
2013/14 financial year going forward. There were also a 
number of funding proposals and applications initiated 
by this unit in the reporting period.

4.1.11.2 Cradle of Humankind Trust

One of the key achievements for the Cradle of Humankind 
(COH) Trust in the reporting period is a fully functional 
and constituted Trust with a well established Board and 
three committees namely Community Benefits, Scientific 
Advisory and Audit Committee.

In the period under review there has been disbursement 
of funds by the Community Benefits Committee (CBC) 
and Scientific Advisory Committee (SAC) to beneficiaries 
from local communities in the project area. Three Non-
Profit Organisations which originate and operate in 
and around the site were funded by the Trust for their 
respective projects. The COH Trust also disbursed funds 
to two PhD students to carry out scientific research in 
COH WHS.

The COH Trust also afforded the aforementioned CBC 
beneficiaries the opportunity to attend a capacity building
workshop organised by the COH WHS which was 
responding to gaps identified in their administrative 
and management skills. This is in line with UNESCO’s 

FUNDRAISING

4.1.11 FUNDRAIS ING
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4.1.11 Fundraising

guidelines for the involvement of local communities in 
the management of world heritage sites. 

Outlook for 2013 - 2014

The main focus for the COH WHS MA in the coming year 
is the protection and preservation of the elements which 
constitute the OUV of the site which is, first and foremost, 
the existing fossil sites and the environment in which 
the fossil sites exist. This is what constitutes the OUV of 
the site. This will entail finalising all the legal loopholes 
that exist with regard to the way the MA is currently 
constituted- a process already underway with DEA. 

The Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site cannot 
be managed in isolation from the stakeholders and 
communities directly impacted on by the site. A greater 
impetus will be given to forging closer ties with all 
stakeholders and in particular fossil site landowners and 

surrounding communities-working together with them 
in managing the site. 

Another critical partner in the management of the site 
is the local municipality of Mogale City. There has been 
collaboration with the municipality on various aspects of 
the site but closer working ties need to be strengthened 
going forward. 

The issue of Acid Mine-Water Drainage (AMD) and 
monitoring of the quality of the ground and surface water 
is another of high priority for the MA, as is the meticulous 
management of development pressure in and around the 
COH WHS. 

The implementation of the first phase of the Mountain 
Bike Project will add to the already existing profile of the 
COH WHS as a non-motorised and cycling destination of 
choice in Gauteng. The COH WHS MA will also continue 

FUNDRAISING
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Outlook for 2013 - 2014

to support the cooperatives that have been established as 
part of the Craft Beneficiation Project and will continue to 
sponsor school visits to the Maropeng and Sterkfontein 
visitor centres. The fossil casting project has also been 
established at Sterkfontein employing local community 
members and it is envisaged that this will become a 
self-sustaining and developing project managed in 
collaboration with Wits. 

The COH WHS Trust will also receive attention and will 
continue to support community projects and further 
scientific research. Last, but not least, the substantial 
upgrades at Maropeng and Sterkfontein in terms of the 
exhibition and external environment will draw greater 
footfall, not only to the visitor centres, but to the greater 
catchment area of the World Heritage Site.

Women in 

archaeology

FUNDRAISING
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Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site trading entity

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity set out on pages 
39 to 95, which comprise the statement of financial position 
as at 31 March 2013, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Accounting  Officer’s responsibility for the financial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the South African Statement of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the requirements 
of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,  
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control 
as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in 
terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as at 31 March 
2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the SA GAAP prescribed by the 
National Treasury and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

Restatement of corresponding figures
8. As disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements, the 
corresponding figures for 31 March 2012 have been restated 
as a result of previously not applying the principles of IAS 20 
(AC134), Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government, which the government grant should be recognised 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which 
the entity recognises as expenses the related costs.

Going Concern
9. The report of the accounting officer on page 51 to 58 
the financial statements indicates that the trading entity’s  
existence is affected by the realignment process at Gauteng 
Department of Economic Development. The realignment 
process will result in Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
Trading Entity, Dinokeng Trading Entity and Gauteng Tourism 
Authority merging into one entity.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
10. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued 
in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance 
with laws and regulations an internal control, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion.

Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on Cradle of Humankind 
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Predetermined objectives
11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages 96 to 111 of the  
annual report.

12. The reported performance against predetermined 
objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of 
usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in  
the annual performance report relates to whether it is 
presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual 
reporting principles and whether the reported performance 
is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness 
of information further relates to whether indicators and 
targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, 
measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by the 
National Treasury Framework for managing programme 
performance information. 

The reliability of the information in respect of the selected 
programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts, (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and 
complete).

13. There were no material findings on the annual performance 
report concerning the usefulness and reliability of the 
information.

Additional matter
14. Although no material findings concerning the usefulness 
and reliability of the performance information were identified  
in the annual performance report, I draw attention to the 
following matter.

Achievement of planned targets
15. Of the total number of 51 targets planned for the year, 
14 targets were not achieved during the year under review.  
This represents 27% of total planned targets that were not 
achieved during the year under review. This was due to under-
spending of the budget and the high rate of vacancies.

Compliance with laws and regulations
16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity 
has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related 
matters. My finding on material non-compliance with specific 
matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the 
General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows:

Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site trading entity (Continued)



43
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Effective human resource management
17. Funded vacant posts were not filled within twelve months 
as required by Public Service Regulation 1/VII/C.1A.2.

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports
18. The financial statements submitted for the audit were 
subsequently revised and amended to align the presentation, 
accounting policies and the disclosure to the prescribed 
financial reporting framework.  The material adjustment on the 
financial statements constitutes non-compliance with section 
40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA.

Internal control
19. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements, performance report and compliance with 
laws and regulations.  The matters reported below under the 
fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant 
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with 
laws and regulations included in this report.

Leadership
20. The accounting officer did not exercise sufficient oversight 
responsibility to ensure compliance with the applicable laws 
and regulations and presentation and disclosure of financial 
information in the manner that is required by the accounting 
framework.

Financial and performance management
21. Management did not undertake adequate financial 
statements review to ensure the accuracy of the annual financial 
statements prior to the submission for audit purposes.

Johannesburg

31 July 2013
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The head of the Trading Entity is the Chief Executive Officer 
appointed in terms of section 36(3)(b) of the Public Finance 
Management Act, Act 1 of 1999.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation, 
integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements 
and other financial information included in this report. In 
presenting the accompanying financial statements, South 
African Statements of General Accepted Accounting Practice 
have been followed; applicable accounting assumptions have 
been used while prudent judgement and estimates have been 
made.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the 
financial statements. The Chief Executive Officer has no 
reason to believe that the trading entity will not be a going 
concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and 
available cash resources. The financial statements support 
the viability of the trading entity.

The financial statements are being audited by the Auditor 
General, which was given unrestricted access to all financial 
records and related data. 

The annual financial statements on pages 39 to 95 were 
approved by the Chief Executive Officer on 30 July 2013  and 
are signed on their behalf by:

Ms Dawn Robertson
Chief Executive Officer
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site
30 July 2013

Statement of Responsibility
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Corporate Governance Report

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity is 
a Trading Entity of the Department of Economic Development 
with a separate Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer 
for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) 
and Dinokeng projects, reporting to the MEC for Economic 
Development

The Chief Executive Officer is supported by the Chief Financial 
Officer, Programme Manager and staff.

The Department of Economic Development and Gauteng 
Tourism Authority provides corporate services in the areas of 
Human Resource Management and Information Technology 
Management in terms of a Service Level Agreement. 

The program operates in a complex multi-disciplinary 
environment in collaboration and partnership with various 
agencies and stakeholder trading entity.

Audit Committee
Audit committee meetings took place regularly during the 
course of the financial year.

Internal audit
Internal audit tasks were performed by the Department 
of Finance Gauteng Audit Services based on the global 
risks identified by the Senior Management of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Project.

Risk management
The Senior Management of the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Programme has identified its global risks and 
mapped the necessary control measures for these risks. 
Residual values have been computed for the identified risks on 
the basis of the probability of occurrence and the effectiveness 
of the control measures. 

Fraud prevention
Although fraud has not been identified by Senior Management 
as a global risk for Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
due the strength of internal control processes, the Fraud 
Prevention Plan of the Department of Economic Development 
and Gauteng Tourism Authority applies to Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site. 
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CRADLE OF HUMANKIND AND DINOKENG

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2013

The Audit Committee consists of the external members listed 
hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least 
two times per annum as per provisions of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of 
Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), five meetings 
were held during the current year, i.e. three meetings for 
Quarterly Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial) 
and two meetings to review and discuss the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Auditor General Report.

Name of Member Number of  
Meetings Attended

Vishnu Naicker (Chairperson) 5

Tshidi Molala (Member) 5

Wayne Poggenpoel (Member) 4

Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Member Mr. Wayne Poggenpoel did not attend 
one meeting since he was appointed after the first quarter 
reporting period. However, all meetings were quorate.

Executive Members:
In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, the Officials 
listed hereunder are obliged to attend the meetings of the Audit 
Committee:

Compulsory Attendees Number of  
Meetings Attended

Dawn Robertson  

(Acting Chief Executive Officer)

4

Yaseen Asmal  

(Chief Financial Officer)

5

Matome Shotholo  

(Chief Risk Officer)

4
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The Audit Committee noted that the Acting Chief Executive 
Officer did not attend one meeting.  However a letter of apology 
was tendered with a duly authorised representative attending 
on his behalf. Therefore, the Audit Committee is satisfied that 
the Trading Entity adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit 
Committee Charter. 

The Members of the Audit Committee met with the Senior 
Management of the Trading Entity and Internal Audit, collectively 
to address risks and challenges facing the Trading Entity. A 
number of in-committee meetings were held to address control 
weaknesses and conflicts with the Trading Entity.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from section 38 (1) (a) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports 
that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its 
Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance 
with this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control 
The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control 
environment has continued to improve during the year under 
review. However, there are still some concerns with the level 
of internal controls within the Entity where evidence of lapses 
of effective monitoring and enforcement by Management were 
observed.

During the year under review, several deficiencies in the system 
of internal control and deviations were reported by the Auditor-
General South Africa. In certain instances, the matters reported 
previously have not been fully and satisfactorily addressed. 

The quality of in year management and monthly / quarterly 
reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of 
Revenue Act 
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality 
of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the 
Accounting Officer of the Trading Entity during the year under 
review, in compliance with the statutory reporting framework.

 

Report of the Audit Committee (Continued)
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Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has:

• reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial  
 Statements  to be included in the Annual Report, with the  
 Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer;
• reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and  
 Management’s response thereto; 
• reviewed the Entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory  
 provisions; and 
• reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-
General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements, and 
is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements 
be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-
General.

Internal Audit 
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit plans 
addresses a clear alignment with the major risks, adequate 
information systems coverage, a good balance between 

different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, 
performance and follow-up audits.

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in 
the communication between the Executive Management, the 
Auditor General and the Internal Audit Function, which has 
strengthened the Corporate Governance initiatives.

The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the 
Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal level as expected by 
the Audit Committee, it requires more capacity and skills. This 
is being addressed and corrective action is being implemented.

Risk Management
Progress on Entity’s risk management was reported to the 
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.  The Audit Committee 
is satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving 
attention, although there are areas that still require 
improvement.  Management should take full responsibility for 
the entire Enterprise Risk Management process and support 
the Chief Risk Officer.

Report of the Audit Committee (Continued)
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Forensic Investigations
The Audit Committee is not satisfied that the forensic 
investigations are properly reported with age-analysis of all 
reported issues indicated.  Details of results in respect of 
investigations conducted as a result of calls through the fraud 
hotline were not provided to the Committee. 

One-on-One Meetings with the Acting Chief Executive Officer
The Audit Committee has met with the Acting Chief Executive 
Officer for the entity to address unresolved issues.

Evaluation of the Annual Report
The Committee has: -
• Reviewed and discussed the financial statements.
• Reviewed the accounting policies and practices.
• Reviewed and discussed with the management the annual  
 financial statements financial statements and performance  
 information included in the Annual Report.

The monitoring of the entity’s performance is a key function 
of the executive management of the entity. The Committee 
has no direct line responsibility for the entity’s performance 

measurement. However, the Committee has ensured, 
principally through the internal audit function, that the systems 
of performance measurement and reporting, as well as the 
systems of internal control that underpin the performance 
management framework of the Entity, remain robust and are 
addressed routinely in the audit plans. The Committee also 
obtained assurance from management and internal audit that 
the entity’s performance management system adequately and 
effectively report appropriate and relevant information. 

The Committee has accepted the responsibility to ensure 
adequate reporting on performance information and the 
policies and that the procedures are of a standard acceptable 
to the entity. The Committee’s mandate and charter has been 
altered to acknowledge this responsibility. The Committee 
has taken note of the Performance Information Report which 
compares the actual performance of the entity against the 
approved Business Plan for the financial year, the strategic 
objectives, key performance indicators and targets set. 

Report of the Audit Committee (Continued)
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Conclusion
The Committee concurs in general with the conclusions of the 
Auditor-General on the Annual Financial Report of the Entity for 
the year ended 31st March 2013.

The Committee has once again taken note of the concerns of 
the Auditor General and accepts that there is further room for 
improvement in the area of human resources management and 
will monitor the going concern of the entity.  As in previous years 
the Audit Committee will ensure that the internal audit plan 
addresses these issues and will monitor the implementation 
of the recommendations contained in the Auditor General’s 
Report. 

I would like to thank all members of the Committee for their 
contribution and the professional way in which meetings were 
conducted. To the Honorable MEC, Acting Chief Executive Officer 
and the staff of the Entity, the Committee wishes to express its 
sincere appreciation for the progress made this year and the 
manner in which the Entity engaged with the Audit Committee.

 

Mr. Vishnu Naicker
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31st July 2013
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Accounting Officer’s Report 

General Review of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site Project
The year 2012/13 was without a doubt one of the most 
challenging years for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site Project. This followed the decision to physically merge 
the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng 
Projects with the Gauteng Tourism Authority in December 
2011. As a result the key challenge faced during the year was to 
ensure that processes and systems were put in place towards 
developing an integrated tourism entity for the province while 
at the same time ensuring effective and timely implementation 
of the budgeted projects of the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Project. Initially this meant having separate 
multi-functional and multi-organisational work-streams 
working towards specific objectives in terms of an integrated 
organisation. This work also included the legal due-diligence 
on the options and challenges that would be faced in terms of 
legal merger process in addition to developing an integrated 
organisation structure for the new entity. 

However most of these processes were soon put on hold, 
as it became very clear that a Business Case was required 
to ensure the appropriate approvals were received from the 

relevant authorities including the Executive Authority for 
Economic Development, Gauteng Treasury and National 
Treasury. An internal task team was set up to manage the 
process of developing the Business Case for the merger 
process and the final Business Case was forwarded for the 
Executive Authority’s approval towards the end of March 2013. 

Mergers are complex processes even in the most advanced 
and sophisticated organisations, given the dynamics of 
dealing and managing people from different organisational 
cultures who have different expectations of how the process 
should unfold. The current situation is no different from 
other such merger processes and the year under review 
has seen huge challenges in managing and motivating staff 
during this period of change and uncertainty. However various 
processes and forums have been used to ensure that staff 
participation and communication were encouraged in terms 
of the unfolding merger process. Obviously in retrospect some 
of this interactions and engagements could have been better 
handled and implemented.

The other key issue that the organisation faced over the 
year was the fact that it had to continue implementing its 
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mandate with a much reduced budget compared to previous 
financial years. Even more importantly, the integration of 
some functions like Administration and Marketing within the 
three existing entities meant that the existing budget had to be 
reprioritised towards key areas such as Destination Marketing 
and Infrastructure Development. As a result, the organisation 
did not have the luxury of implementing many other desirable 
projects which may have had greater impacts, despite having 
requested rollovers from the previous financial year. 

It is within this context that one must view the implementation 
of projects during the 2012/13 financial year. In terms of 
non-financial performance, the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Project achievement stood at 75% with the 
remaining 25% of the projects being at various stages of 
completion. The key achievements included the finalisation 
of a study to determine the future management options 
of the Maropeng Interpretation Centre in the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site. In addition the 2.6km hiking 
trail at Maropeng was also opened to the public and is now 
a key feature of the service offering at Maropeng. The final 
feasibility study for the development of a Mountain Bike Trail 
in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site area was 

also finalised. Directional signage has also been procured 
to improve navigation in the Cradle of Humankind area for 
tourists and residents alike. 

In terms of skills training 50 people were currently enrolled 
for various learnership programmes in coordination with the 
Gauteng Tourism Authority. This is in addition to the training of 
50 SMMEs in various tourism related skills in coordination with 
other sector bodies like the Tourism Enterprise Programme 
and CATHSETA. 25 people were also employed temporary as 
part of the working for fire project in the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site area.

In terms of ensuring better and more sustainable 
environmental management processes and systems in the 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site area, the second 
Surface and ground-water monitoring report for the year was 
developed and provides more information on the status of the 
water quality in the area and areas in which action should be 
focused in the future. In addition, toward the protection and 
conservation of the fossil sites, the second set of fossil site 
inspections was finalised with the submission of the final fossil 
inspection report covering at total of 14 sites in the Cradle of 
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Humankind area. Considerable work has also been conducted 
towards the development of the infrastructure in the Malapa 
and Gladysvale fossil sites, which are the latest fossil sites 
drawing global attention in terms of the fossil treasure they 
hold. The fossil casting project has also resulted in 12 jobs 
being created through this project. A study was conducted 
in terms of the Economic Value of Heritage Tourism and 
Conservation for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site and the final report was developed to guide future actions 
in this area of work.

It thus perhaps fitting to note that based on the above success 
the Cradle of Humankind managed to 141 263 international 
visitors to the area, compared with the target of 121 177 for 
the 2012 year. Despite the global economic climate and its 
impact on the domestic economy, it also still managed to 
convince international tourists to spend an average of 1.72 
nights in the areas compared to a target of 2 for the year. 
Perhaps as a sign of increased domestic consumer buoyancy, 
it attracted 1 206 913 domestic trip against a target of 
147 317 for the year with a total revenue generated of R819.3 
against a target of R912.9 for the year.

As indicated previously, the year was not without its 
challenges. The process of implementing phase two of the 
upgrade of the exhibitions at Sterkfontein and Maropeng did 
not make much progress due to the fact that the contract with 
the initial service provider was terminated. In spite of the poor 
quality of the deliverables encountered, the service provider 
has decided to proceed with legal actions. A process has 
been put into place to move this work forward by contracting 
directly with the University of the Witwatersrand Scientists 
and architects for the upgrade process as a remedial action. 

Efforts to resuscitate the Tourism Safety Monitor Project that 
was piloted in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
area did not yield any results. This follows confirmation at 
various forums that the Department of Tourism will no longer 
be sponsoring the project in its current form. Attempts are 
being made to have the project reviewed and repackaged 
before it can be resubmitted for alternative funding support 
to either the National Department of Tourism or the Gauteng 
Treasury in future.

In terms of the commissioning and installation of artworks 
at the gateways in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
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Site, the progress has been slow. This follows the proposal 
to conduct the work through a specific artist association in 
order to make the process more representative and creative 
in nature. This work is expected to pick in the next financial 
year. There were also administrative issues that prevented 
the successful rollout of the working for water project in the 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site area despite earnest 
engagements with the Department of Environment Affairs to 
resolve the issues. These issues will be resolved in earnest in 
the next financial year.

General review of the state of financial affairs 

 

 

• Spending per economic classification

  

Of the total spending of R57,676,220 the 47% is goods and 
services and 53% is compensation of employees.

Most of the under-spending especially as it related the 
Executive Management budget was in relation to unfilled or 
vacant posts. The key areas that were impacted by vacancies 
were the Orientation Centre Unit, where much of the work on 
the Artwork and Orientation Centers has slowed down despite 
assistance from other sub-units. Although not impacting on 
the core areas of work, the vacancies in the Monitoring and 
Evaluation Unit has also resulted in under-spending in that unit 
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as the Stakeholder Engagement and Cooperative Governance 
Framework was put on hold especially in the context of the 
unfolding merger process. The Tourism Safety Monitor project 
in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site which would 
have created or sustained another 200 Tourism Safety Monitor 
jobs was also discontinued after July 2012 as the Department 
of Tourism decided that it would not be sponsoring the project 
in 2012/13.

Capacity Constrains and challenges facing the department 
The merger process between the three entities has resulted 
in the fact that most of the vacant posts have not yet been 
filled due to a freeze on recruitment or the creation of new 
posts. This has seen the current Chief Executive Officer of 
the Gauteng Tourism Authority currently acting as the Chief 
Executive Officer for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site Project also. With approvals from the Executive Authority, 
a single Chief Financial officer was also appointed towards 
July 2012 to manage the Finances of all 3 entities. The other 
key vacancies include the posts of Deputy Directors for the 
Orientation Centers unit, Events unit and Monitoring and 
Evaluation Unit which together with other vacant posts has 
resulted in a vacancy rate of 29%. 

As a result, where possible officials from the other 2 entities 
being merged have been utilised to fill current vacancies. 
This applies especially to areas of similarity like the Finance, 
Administration, Research and Planning and the Marketing 
functions. Perhaps the units where these vacancies have 
impacted the most are the Orientation Centre Unit, where 
much of the work on the Artwork and Orientation Centers 
has slowed down despite assistance from other sub-units. 
Although not impacting on the core areas of work, the 
vacancies in the Monitoring and Evaluation Unit has also 
resulted in under-spending in that unit as the Stakeholder 
Engagement and Cooperative Governance Framework was 
put on hold especially in the context of the unfolding merger 
process. Increased emphasis is being placed in 2012/13 
financial year to create temporary arrangements with staff 
to assist with projects in areas where there is a dire need of 
capacity.

Brief commentary on the interim financial statement 
The total funds available for use in the 2012-2013 financial 
year amounted to R81,470 000. This includes Approved voted 
funds of R57,157 000 and approved rollover of R24,288 000.
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The total funds received during the year, amounted  
R57, 157 000. This included: 
 
•  Voted funds of R57,157 000 from the Gauteng Department 

Economic Development
• Interest Income R10 000

This resulted in a total expenditure at the end of the 2012-
2013 financial year of R71,666 000. As a result close to 29 % of 
the approved budget could not be spent during the 2012-2013 
financial year but have been committed. Roll over application 
to the amount of R15,082 000 will be made to finance these 
commitments.

Public Private Partnerships 
As reported in previous Annual Financial Statements and 
Reports, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project 
initiated and managed the Public Private Partnership contract 
with Maropeng A’ Africa Limited towards the management and 
operation of the Maropeng and Sterkfontein Interpretation 
Centers. Early in 2008 the key shareholder Stefanutti 
Stocks Holdings Limited exited from the concession which 
necessitated the Gauteng Provincial Government through the 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project to take over 

the management of the Maropeng Board. This also required 
the provision of funding to cover the operational losses 
experienced by Maropeng A’ Africa Limited until a suitable 
process to manage the facilities or obtain a new shareholder/s 
to operate and manage the concession agreement is reached.

However the continued negative global and domestic economic 
outlook has negatively impacted on the local appetite for such 
projects and as a result, a suitable shareholder has not been 
found as of now. This has resulted in a diagnostic study by a 
service provider, which will be used to determine the future 
direction of the existing Public Private Partnership contract 
in the 2013/14 financial year. This has also meant that other 
planned Public Private Partnerships projects which were in 
the pipeline, like the Magaliesberg and Lanseria Orientation 
Centres project, has been put on hold at least until the 
economic and market outlooks improve significantly.

Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued 
During the year 3 projects were put on hold. The first one 
dealt with the management of the concession contract with 
Maropeng A’ Africa Limited. As indicated above, the new 
processes in place meant that the Bilateral Meetings and 
Project Steering Committee Meetings could be dropped as 
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they were duplicating efforts at the Maropeng Board Meeting 
level. The impact of this decision was minimal. Secondly the 
Cradle of Humankind Trust Project, which involved the setting 
up of a fully functional Board of Trustees with the ability to 
disburse funds to Community Projects and Scientific Projects 
was also put on hold, in terms of the implementation of 
the newly developed Fundraising Strategy. This was done 
primarily to align the operations of the Cradle of Humankind 
Trust with the recommendations arising out of the diagnostic 
study conducted for the management of the Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein Interpretation Centers. The impact here was 
that no funds were disbursed as part of the current year for 
Community Projects and Scientific Projects despite receiving 
applications for funding. The third project discontinued was 
the Tourism Safety Monitor project. This project in the Cradle 
of Humankind World Heritage Site would have created or 
sustained another 200 Tourism Safety Monitor jobs but was 
discontinued after July 2012 as the Department of Tourism 
decided that it would not be sponsoring the project in 2012/13.

New or proposed activities
The 2013/14 financial year will see the legal merger process 
between the 3 entities unfolding with the development 
and implementation of the Merger Integration Plan. The 

2013/14 financial year will also see the development and 
implementation of joint budgets and plans for all three 
entities. As a result most of the Gauteng Tourism Authority 
projects and Dinokeng projects will now be included together 
with the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site projects. 
However all these changes have been factored into the 
2013/14 planning and budgeting processes, and will see more 
focus on provincial tourism infrastructure projects as well as 
marketing and promotional activities.

Supply chain management 
The entity has an established Supply Chain Management 
Policy and procedure. The SCM unit has been operating in 
accordance with the Shared Service Model managed by the 
Gauteng Department of Finance. Many elements of the Procure 
to Payment cycle are managed by the Gauteng Department of 
Finance (GDF). GDF are in process of decentralising many of 
these functions, however the entity is not part of the current 
phase for decentralisation and are still heavily reliant on 
GDF for effective implementation on procure to payment 
transactions. The entity, for the period under review, has been 
operating in accordance to all SCM practice notes issued by 
National Treasury.
The current merger process has also impacted in the day to 
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day activities of SCM. There however has been an attempt 
to synergise policies and procedures pertaining to SCM in 
anticipation for the final merged entity.

Future Plans and Action of the Department
As indicated above, the 2013/14 financial year will see the 
legal merger process between the 3 entities unfolding 
with the development and implementation of the Merger 
Integration Plan. The 2013/14 financial year will also see the 
development and implementation of joint budgets and plans 
for all three entities. As a result most of the Gauteng Tourism 
Authority projects and Dinokeng projects will now be included 
together with the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
projects. However all these changes have been factored into 
the 2013/14 planning and budgeting processes. It is therefore 
only to be expected that more changes are possible as part of 
the unfolding of the legal merger process.

Events after the reporting date
There were no new events of significance after the reporting 
date.

Acknowledgement
The continued perseverance and dedication of staff and key stake-
holders both within and outside the public sector is acknowledged 
in the accomplishments of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site Project over the last year. The organisation will continue to 
provide and maintain a high level of service in coordination with 
these key internal and external stakeholders. 

Conclusion
The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project is still on 
track in terms of delivering on the strategic goals highlighted 
in the Master Plan for the area, as highlighted by some of 
the key achievements mentioned here. However, better 
processes and ways of handling and negating the challenges 
encountered during the current year will be sought as part of 
the merger process between the 3 entities.

Approval and Sign off

Ms D Robertson
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended  31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

  Note R’000 R’000

Revenue   71 733 61 977

   

Transfers and subsidies         2 71 706 61 962

Other Income  3 27  15

    

Total Expenditure  4 (71 733 (61 977)

Administrative Expenses    (18 988)  (10 736)

Compensation of employees     (13 722)  (11 953)

Other operating Expenses  18 (27 054)   (22 151)

Subsidies     (4 325) (3 000)

Project Expenses  16 (7 644)  (14 137)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year    0 0
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Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended  31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar
   2013 2012
  Note R’000 R’000

ASSETS    
Non-current assets   3 126 459
Property, plant and equipment – SPO  5 2 797 455
Intangible Assets  5.1 329 4

Current assets   20 018 37 987
Trade and other receivables – Current SPO  6 7 558 13 831
Cash and cash equivalents  7 12 460 24 156

TOTAL ASSETS   23 144 38 446

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Equity and Reserves   0 0 
Accumulated surplus   0 0

Current liabilities    23 144  38 446
Accruals – SPO  8 4 743 5 525
Provisions – Current SPO  9 233 205
Deferred Income   18 168 32 716

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   23 144 38 446
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Statement of Changes in Equity
as at 31 March 2013

   Accumulated  

   surplus/ 

   (deficit) Total

   R’000 R’000

Balance at 31 March 2011   14 434 14 434

Surplus for the year   12 540  12 540

Unspent Voted Funds   (24 529) (24 529)

Prior Year Error    (2 445) (2 445)

Balance at 31 March 2012    0 0

Balance at 31 March 2013   0 0
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended  31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

  Note R’000 R’000

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Cash receipts from customers   57 034 63 010

Cash paid to suppliers and employees    (65 462) (86 054)

Net cash in (out) flow generated by operations  10 (8 428) (23 044)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Acquisition of property plant and equipment  5 (2 810) (383)

Acquisition of intangible asset  5.1 (458) (6)

Net cash inflow from investing activities   (3 268) (389)

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (11 696) (23 433)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   24 156 47 589

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  7 12 460 24 156
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
For the year ended  31 March 2013

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1  Reporting framework
The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with South African Statement of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and in the manner required by 
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA)
 
The following are the principal accounting policies of the trading 
entity which are, in all material respects, consistent with those 
applied in the previous year, except as otherwise indicated:

1.2 Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis, except where otherwise indicated. The 
accounting policies set out below has been consistently applied 
to all periods presented in these financial statements. 

1.3  Revenue and Deferred Income
Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable 
assurance that:

•  the trading entity will comply with the conditions attached 
to them; and

•  he grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods 
necessary to match them with the related costs that they are 
intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation 
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of 
giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future 
related costs is recognised as income of the period in which it 
becomes receivable. Grants relate to assets are presented as a 
credit in the Statement of Comprehensive income over the life 
of the assets.

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by 
reducing the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. 
The cumulative additional depreciation that would have been 
recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is 
recognised immediately as an expense.
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Revenue
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the trading entity and these benefits can be 
measured reliably. 

Revenue is recognised on the following basis:
•  Voted funds are recognised when it is probable that 

approved cash allocation will flow to the entity.
•  Funds with specific conditions are accounted for as 

deferred income and realised to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income as those conditions are met. 
The funds are recognised to the extent that there are 
no further obligations arising from the receipt of these 
funds.

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are initially 
recognised at cost which includes any costs directly attributable 
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the trading entity 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to initial recognition, items of PPE are shown at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in 
value.

Subsequent expenditure including the cost of replacing parts of 
the asset, other than day-to-day servicing costs, are included 
in the cost of the asset when incurred if it is probable that such 
expenditure will result in future economic benefits associated 
with the item flowing to the trading entity, and the cost is 
reliably measurable.

An asset is depreciated from the time that it is available for 
use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date 
the asset (or disposal trading entity into which the asset falls) is 
classified as held for sale or included in a discontinued operation 
and the date that the asset is derecognised.
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The depreciable amount of an asset, being the cost of the asset 
less the residual value, is allocated on a straight line basis over 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 
Residual value is the estimated amount that an entity would 
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the 
estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age 
and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Whilst residual value is equal to or exceeds the carrying value, 
depreciation is discontinued. Each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment with a cost which is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods 
applied to assets are reviewed at each financial year end based 
on relevant market information and management consideration.

Useful lives per asset category:

Computer equipment  3-4 years
Office furniture and equipment  5-10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset is included in the statement of comprehensive income 
in other operating costs in the year the asset is derecognised.

Items of property, plant and equipment are assessed for 
impairment as detailed in the accounting policy note on 
impairment.

1.5  Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The carrying amount of the trading entity assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date for any indication of impairment. If such an 
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does 
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not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

The excess of an asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable 
amount is recognised as an impairment loss in the statement 
of comprehensive income. 

An impairment recognised previously may be reversed when 
estimates change as a result of an event occurring after the 
impairment was initially recognised. Such a reversal may not 
increase the carrying value above what it would have been had 
no impairment loss been recognised. 

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income.

1.6 Prepayments
Prepayments are recognised when amounts are granted to the 
services providers or executing departments to execute long 
term projects on behalf of the entity as per agreed specified 
conditions. Prepaid costs are initially recognised at an amount 

equal to the fair-value adjustment on initial recognition of the 
amount that gives rise to the prepayment. These costs are 
amortised to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the 
period in which services are rendered by the service providers 
or executing departments.

1.7 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•  the trading entity has a present obligation as a result of a 

past event;
•  it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure 
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision 
is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 
shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 
The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The 
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amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the 
amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation 
under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a 
provision. 
Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Entity or a present obligation that 
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is 
a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be 
measured reliably. The Entity does not recognise a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

1.8 Accruals
Accruals represent expenditure that have been incurred but not 
paid for at year end.

1.9  Retirement benefits Costs
The trading entity provides retirement benefits for its 
employees through a defined contribution plan for government 
employees. These benefits are funded by both employer and 
employee contributions. Employer contributions to the fund 
are expensed when money is paid to the fund. No provision 
is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of 
the Trading Entity. Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the 
financial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not in 
the financial statements of the trading entity.

1.9.1 Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the reporting period 
when the payment is made. Short-term employee benefits, 
that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation, 
are deferred until they can be reliably measured and then 
expensed. Details of these benefits and the potential liabilities 
are disclosed as a disclosure note to the financial statements 
where applicable and are not recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Included in short term benefits are 
Medical aid, Pension and Housing allowances.
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1.9.2  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when 
the payment is made.
 
1.10  Financial Instruments
Recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are initially recognised on the Statement 
of Financial Position when the entity becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets 
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, 
which includes directly attributable transaction costs in the 
case of financial assets and liabilities not at fair value through 
profit or loss. Subsequent measurement for each category is 
specified in the sections below.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised where the right to receive cash 
from the asset has expired, or the trading entity has transferred 
the asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

A transfer qualifying for derecognition occurs when the 
trading entity transfers the contractual rights to receive 
the cash flows of the financial asset, or retains the rights 

but assumes a contractually obligation to pay those cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement, or where the trading entity has 
transferred control or substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset. Where the trading entity has transferred its rights 
to the cashflows from an asset and has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset 
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised 
to the extent of the trading entity’s continuing involvement in 
the asset. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Fair value
The fair value of instruments traded in an active market 
is determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask 
prices at close of business on the reporting date. Where there 
is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation 
techniques. Such valuation techniques include using recent 
arm’s length market transactions, reference to current 
market value of other similar instruments, discounted cash 
flow analysis and option pricing models. The fair value of 
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short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest 
rate may be measured at original invoice amount unless the 
effect of imputing interest is significant.

Financial assets
The trade date method of accounting has been adopted for 
‘regular way’ purchases or sales of financial assets.

The trading entity categorises its financial assets in the following 
categories: loans and receivables and at fair value through profit 
or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which 
the financial assets are acquired. Management determines the 
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables 
After initial recognition, such assets are carried at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in income when 
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and 
through the amortisation process.

Trade and other receivables comprise all trade and non-trade 
debtors other than financial services debtors. Short duration 

receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at 
original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest 
is significant.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities consist of interest bearing borrowings, 
trade and other payables, bank overdrafts and interest bearing 
money market borrowings, liabilities categorised at fair value 
through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are recognised at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are 
measured at fair value.

Finance costs on financial liabilities at amortised cost are 
expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the 
period in which they are incurred using the effective interest rate 
method. In addition, gains and losses on these financial liabilities 
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
when the liability is derecognised. Gains and losses on financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss arise from fair value 
movements and related transaction costs on these liabilities.
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These gains and losses are recognised in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are 
incurred.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables are stated at cost which approximates the fair 
value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods 
and services rendered. 

Impairment of financial Instruments
Financial assets
The trading entity assesses at each reporting date whether 
objective evidence exists that a financial asset or a trading 
entity of financial assets is impaired. 

Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that assets carried at amortised 
cost are impaired, the loss is measured as the difference 
between the assets’s carrying amount and present value of 
future cash flows discounted at its original effective interest 
rate. When impaired, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced through the use of provision for impairment account, 

and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Assets together with the associated 
provision for impairment are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery.

The trading entity first assesses whether objective evidence 
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, and individually or collectively for 
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined 
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or 
not, the asset is included in a trading entity of financial assets 
with similar credit risk characteristics and that trading entity 
of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed and for which an 
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not 
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss 
Decrease due to an event occurring after recognition of the 
impairment, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
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reversed. Such a reversal is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income to the extent that the carrying value 
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost as if the asset 
has never been impaired at the reversal date.

Trade and Other Receivables
For trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is 
established when there is objective evidence that the trading 
entity will not be able to collect all amounts due according to 
the original terms of the receivables. Indicators of impairment 
include long overdue accounts, significant financial difficulties 
of the debtors and defaults in payments.

1.11  Management Fee
Management fees are charged as a percentage of total 
relevant operating expenditure of the Department of Economic 
Development and Gauteng Tourism Authority.

1.12  Related parties
The trading entity transacts with Department of Economic 
Development, Dinokeng and other Departments owned by the 
South African Government for the supply and acquisition of 
services under normal trading terms. The nature and extent 

of these transactions are disclosed in note 16 of the financial 
statements.

1.13  Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in 
contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of 
any applicable legislation, including:
• The PFMA, or
•  Any provincial legislation providing for procurement 

procedures in that provincial government.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was 
made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised. 

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged 
against income in the period in which they are incurred.

1.14  Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to 
conform to changes in presentation in the current year, limited 
to audited figures. Reasonably, calculated, comparative figures 
are disclosed in the Notes to the Annual Financial Statement 
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for the year ended 31 March 2013 for better understanding of 
changes that have occurred in presentation.

1.15 Taxation
In terms of section 10.1 of the Income Tax Act, Act Number 59 
of 1962, the Entity, as a government institution, is not liable for 
any income taxation. Employees’ tax is paid over to SARS by the 
Gauteng Shared Service Centre at the time when the employee 
expenses are programmatically recognised. 

1.16 Presentation of financial statements 
The financial statements are presented in South African Rand 
and amounts presented are rounded to the nearest Rand.

1.17 Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity 
with Statements of SA GAAP requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise 
its judgment in the process of applying the trading entity’s 
accounting policies in areas that involve a higher degree of 
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements. Although 
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge 

of current events and actions they may undertake in the future, 
actual results may differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the next financial 
year are listed below:

Estimates
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an 
estimate based on the information available. 

Property, plant and equipment
Management has made certain estimates with regards to the 
determination of estimated useful lives and residual values of 
items of property, plant and equipment.

Judgements
Impairment of trade receivables
Management has applied judgment in estimating the extent of 
any impairment deemed necessary on the gross carrying value 
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of trade receivables and have impaired all accounts in arrears 
for a period longer than normal expected trading terms.

1.18.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at face value. Cash 
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held in 
current accounts with registered and approved banks.

1.19  Intangible Assets
Computer software acquired has finite useful lives and are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated 
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of computer 
software over their estimated useful lives of 7 years. 

1.20  New standards and interpretations issued but not yet 
effective
Standards in issue not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the 
Trading entity has not applied the following new standards, 
interpretations and amendments that have been issued but 
are not yet effective.

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date

IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments

New standard that 
forms the first part of 
a three part project 
to replace IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and 
Measurement.

1 January 2015

The Entity will adopt the above standards, interpretations 
and amendments where applicable to the Entity on their 
effective dates. Management expects that the adoption of the 
standards listed above will have no material impact on the 
annual financial statements in the period of initial application.

1.21  Accounting for Black Economic Empowerment (BEE) 
transactions
The South African interpretation (AC 503) effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 May 2010 is not applicable for 
the Trading entity. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)



74

Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended  31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

  Note R’000 R’000

2. REVENUE   

 Voted funds   57 157 62 995

 Approved rollover   24 288 11 492

 Movement in deferred Income   (9 739) (12 525)

 Other Income   27 15

 Total   71 733 61 977

3. OTHER INCOME   

 Other income consist of the following:   

 Interest income    5 15

 (Staff debtors)   22 –

 Total   27 15

 Other income relates to interest on staff debtors 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar
   2013 2012
   R’000 R’000

4. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR INCLUDES THE EXPENDITURE
 Infrastructure project cost realised from prepayment asset  7 644 14 137
 Marketing cost   9 411 6 592
 Technical and consulting services   30 374 24 567
 Auditors remuneration   406 527
 Depreciation   593 57
     Computer Equipment   233 35
     Office Furniture   227 20
     Amortisation- Software   133 2

 Employee cost   13 722 11 933
     Short term employee benefits   12 142 10 489
     Pension and medical costs   1 580 1 444

 Other operating expenditure   6 463 4 164
  Rental   2 203 
 Security Services   170 
 Cleaning Services             169 
 Parking   163 
 Electricity              415 

 Total Expenditure   71 733 61 977
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   Office  Office   Total
   Equipment Furniture 
    R’000   R’000  R’000

5.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 Balance at 1 April 2011          
 Cost Price  312 311 622
 Accumulated Depreciation  (238)  (257)  (495)

 Net book Value  74  53  127

 Current year movements    
 Additions  358 25 383
 Disposal/Retirement  (57) – (57)
 Depreciation on retirement  57 – 57
 Depreciation for the year  (35) (20) (55)

 Balance at 31 March 2012  397  58  455

 Made up as follows:    
 Cost Price  613 336 949
  Accumulated Depreciation  (216)  (278)  (493)

 Net book Value at 31 March 2012  397  58  455
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   Office  Office   Total
   Equipment Furniture 
    R’000   R’000  R’000

5.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
 Balance at 1 April 2012     
 Cost Price  613 336 949
 Accumulated Depreciation  (216) (278)  (494)

 Net book Value  397 58 455

 Current year movements     
 Additions  529  2 281   2 810 
 Disposal/Retirement  (8) –  (8) 
 Depreciation for the year  (233)  (227)  (460) 

 Balance at 31 March 2013  684  2113  2 797 

 Made up as follows:     
 Cost Price  1 134 2 616 949
 Accumulated Depreciation  (450)  (503) (493)

 Net book Value at 31 March 2013  684   2 113   2 797 
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    Software Total

    Licence 

    R’000  R’000

5.1 Intangible Assets

 Balance at 1 April 2012     

     Cost Price   6 6

     Amortisation   (2) (2)

 Net book Value   4 4

 Current year movements    

     Additions   458 458

     Revaluation   0 0

     Depreciation for the year   (133) (133)

 Balance at 31 March 2013   329 329

 Made up as follows:     

 Cost Price   464 464

 Accumulated Depreciation   (135) (135)

 Net book Value at 31 March 2013   329 329
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   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

   R’000 R’000

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES   

 Dinokeng Trading Entity    7 124  6 118

 Staff debtors   19 69

 Prepayment and advances   415 7 644

 Total   7 558 13 831

6.1 Staff Debtors   

 Debtors   40 69

 Impairment of Debtors   (21) 0

 Total    19 694 156

  The trading entity‘s management considers that all the above trade debtors and other receivables that are not impaired except 

of staff debtors. Management have assessed individual and collective impairment of trade receivables and the balances are fully 

recoverable at the end of 2012 and 2013 therefore no impairment of trade receivables have been raised.

 The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is considered an approximate fair value.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013



80

   31 Mar 31 Mar
   2013 2012
  Note R’000 R’000

7. BANK BALANCES AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
 Cash and balances with banks   12 457 24 153
 Petty cash   3 3

 Total    12 460 24 156

8.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   
 Outstanding payments   – 59
 Trade creditors/Accruals   4 534 5 170
 Staff leave accrual   8.1 192 246
 Other   17 50

 Total   4 743 5 525

8.1  Staff leave Accruals    
 Opening balance   246  262
 Utilised during current year   (246) (262)
 Provision made during the year   192  246

 Closing balance   192 246
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8.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

8.1  Staff leave Accruals (continued)    

  A leave accrual is recognised for leave due to employees at year end. The accrual for leave is calculated by multiplying 

the number of leave days due to each employee by a daily rate based on the total cost to the trading entity. The accrual is 

expected to realise within the following year when the employees request leave or is paid out.

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

   R’000 R’000

9. PROVISIONS

 Performance bonus provision   

 Opening balances   205 173

 Utilised provisions during the year   (197) (173)

 Unutilised provisions during the year               (8) 

 Provisions made during the year   233 205

 Closing balance   233 205
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   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

   R’000 R’000

10. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS    

 Surplus/(deficit) during the year   – –

 Non-cash movements/working capital changes   (8 428) (23 044)

 Depreciation and Amortisation   593 57

 Increase/(Decrease) in impairment of debtors    8 –

 Movement in Equity –Non cash items   

 Movement in unspent voted funds -DED   (14 548) (28 565)

 Increase/(Decrease) in payables   (782) 733

 Increase in provision relating to employee costs   28 32

 (Increase)/Decrease in receivables   6 273 4 699

 Net cash flows from operating activities    (8 428)  ( 23 044)
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11.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
 The related party relationships, transactions and balances as listed below exist. 

11.1  Government department and key stakeholders
    Total Transactions   Credit/Debit 
    for the period Balance 
 31 March 2013
 Name
 Dinokeng Trading Entity   13 775 7 124
 Maropeng ‘a Afrika Leisure Pty Ltd   4 583 (10)
 Gauteng Department of Economic Development   57 157 
 Gauteng Tourism Authority   2 454 
 Gauteng Growth and Development Agency    209 

    Total Transactions  Outstanding
    for the period Balance 
 31 March 2012
 Name
 Dinokeng Trading Entity   12 564 6 118
 Maropeng ‘a Afrika Leisure Pty Ltd   18 127 22
 Gauteng Department of Economic Development   63 010 –
 Gauteng Tourism Authority   4 532 3 613
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11.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)
11.1  Government department and key stakeholders (continued)

 Relationship with related parties

 Dinokeng

  Dinokeng and Cradle Humankind World Heritage Site are sister trading entities administered under Department of 

Economic Development to create a viable and attractive geo-spatial tourism destination in an area that will result in 

economic growth.

 Maropeng ‘a Afrika Leisure Pty Ltd

  The main shareholder in terms of the PPP arrangement with Cradle of HumanKind World Heritage Site has withdrawn 

its support to fund the operations of Maropeng and as a result Maropeng was recapitalised by Cradle Humankind World 

Heritage. Over and above this Cradle utilises the conference facilities of Maropeng at a discount of 10%.

  Gauteng Department of Economic Development (GDED)

  GDED is Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site’s Mother Department. The above transactions relate to voted funds 

allocated to the entity to implement the strategic objectives.

 Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA)

  Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and GTA are fellow entities administered under Department of Economic 

Development. COH WHS performs collaborative marketing activities with Gauteng Tourism Authority as per the direction 

of the MEC. GTA also provides corporate services to COH WHS.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013



85

11.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)
11.2  Key Management Personnel
   Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors, Chief Executive officers and other senior management.

 For the Year ended  Employer  Employer    
 31 March 2013 Basic contribution: contribution:  Bonus
  Salary Pension Medical Allowances payments Total
  R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000

 Chief Executive Office
     Robertson D 431  – –  431
 Other senior management
     Asmal Y 204 – – – – 204
     Tlebere K  400 52          9 133 – 594
     Sathekge M 308 40 - 180 – 528
     Chettiar S  260  34 8 140 30 472
     Pillay M  259   34   3   148  29  473 
     Layton N  259  34   3   135  29   460 
     Amod A  172  22  12   46   –  252

 Grand total  2 293 216   35   782   88   3 474

  The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng Trading Entity and Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as they service both entities in meeting their strategic and operational objectives.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

11.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)

11.2  Key Management Personnel (continued)

 For the Year ended  Employer  Employer    

 31 March 2012 Basic contribution: contribution:  Bonus

  Salary Pension Medical Allowances payments Total

  R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000

 Chief Executive Officer      

     Jiyane F  266   26   7   194  -  453 

     Robertson D 181 10 – 10 - 201

 Other senior management

     Tlebere  167 22 4 79 - 272

     Sathekge M 223 29 - 127 - 379

     Chettiar S  209 27 8 109 - 353 

     Pillay M   226   27   3   102   -  358 

     Layton N   225   27   3   94  -   349 

     Singh RA  65   4   3   16  -  90 

 Grand total  1 598 173  28  655  -   2 454 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

   R’000 R’000

12.  COMMITMENTS

 Commitments in respect of capital and research cost 

 not accrued at the reporting date:

 Contracted for   20 091 24 288

 Not contracted for   

 Total   20 091 24 288

  This expenditure will be funded from approved voted funds. 

 Within one year   15 081 24 288

 Thereafter    5 010 –

 Total   20 091 24 288
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

13.  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

13.1  Description of the arrangement
  The Department and the University of Witwatersrand entered into an agreement in which they have agreed to cooperate 

in the establishment of an Interpretation Centre Complex (“ICC”) for a Concession Area, comprising an Orientation Centre 
at a site owned by Wits, the Sterkfontein Site, and an Interpretation Centre at a site owned by the Gauteng Provincial 
Government, the Mohale’s Gate Site. The ICC is being established through a Public Private Partnership (PPP), the 
concessionaire being Maropeng a’Afrika Leisure (Pty) Ltd (formerly FSG Special Purpose Trading entity (Pty) Limited), a 
private trading entity with limited liability duly incorporated and registered under the laws of the Republic of South Africa, 
Registration Number 2002/032101/07.

  Blue IQ Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (“Blue IQ”) is the statutory trading entity wholly owned by the Gauteng 
Provincial Government which subscribes for shares in the Concessionaire with an aggregate subscription price of 
R163 000 000.00 (one hundred and sixty three million Rand) plus interest plus bulk sewage costs of R1 784 477.00 (one 
million seven hundred and eighty-four thousand four hundred and seventy seven Rand). 

  The Concessionaire is required to apply the subscription price of the shares subscribed for by Blue IQ to design, construct, 
install exhibits at, operate and maintain the ICC, and has the right to raise revenue by, inter alia, charging and collecting 
revenue from visitors to the ICC or from commercial funders and sponsors who agree to fund particular projects at the ICC. 

  The terms on which the ICC will be designed and constructed, exhibits installed, and the ICC operated is set out in a 

Contract concluded on 19 October 2003.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

13.  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP (continued)

13.2 Significant terms of the arrangement that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows

  Substantial risk has been transferred to the Concessionaire in this transaction and the terms of the arrangement preclude 

any affect on the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows. The Concessionaire has lodged a Construction and an 

Operations and Maintenance Bond in terms of the Contract. 

13.3  The nature and extent of:

 a) Rights to use specified assets

   The concession rights conferred and obligations imposed on the Concessionaire include the right to design, 

construct, commission, install exhibits at, Operate and Maintain the ICC and generally to derive revenues from 

the operation of the ICC, inter alia, by charging and collecting revenues from visitors to the ICC and from any third 

parties who may, from time to time, be granted rights to operate businesses within the Concession Area. In return 

for the rights the Concessionaire is required to pay a Concession fee to the Concessor. This concession fee is paid 

into the Cradle of Humankind trust account.

   The initial Concession Period shall be the period beginning on the Effective Date and expiring at midnight of the 

day preceding the tenth anniversary of the date on which the Construction Works have been certified as complete 

pursuant.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

13.  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP (continued)

13.3  The nature and extent of: (continued)

 b)  Obligations to provide or rights to expect provisions of services; to acquire or build items of property, plant and 

equipment; to deliver or rights to receive specified assets at the end of the concession period

   The Concessionaire is required to ensure the timely and proper completion of the Design, Construction Works, 

Exhibition Installation and Operation and Maintenance of the ICC, and such future design and construction as may 

be necessary to meet the Concessionaire’s obligations in terms of the Concession Contract.

 c) Renewal and termination options

   The Concession Period is automatically extended for periods not exceeding five years provided that conditions 

stipulated in the Contract are met. If the Concession Period is not extended all movable Project Assets forming 

part of the Concession Area shall vest in the Concessionaire until termination of this Concession Contract. Upon 

termination of the Concession Contract, ownership of the movable Project Assets at each of the Mohale’s Gate 

Site and the Sterkfontein Site shall vest in the owner of that Site (or any other person or entity agreed on by the 

Concessor and Wits at that time) and shall be transferred by the Concessionaire to such new owners. 

 d) Other rights and obligation (e.g. major overhauls), 

  The Concession Contract specifies requirements for reinvestment during the Concession Period.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

14.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

  At 31 March 2012, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and approximate the fair 

values due to short term maturities of these assets and liabilities and the accounting policies for financial instruments 

have been applied to the line items below:

     Loans and Fair 

    receivables Value  

      R’000 R’000

 31 March 2013 

 Assets as per reporting date 

 Account receivable   7 124 7 650

 Cash and cash equivalents   12 460 12 460

 Total   19 584 20 110

 Liabilities as per reporting date 

 Provision   233 233

 Trade and other payables   4 554 4 770

 Unspent voted funds   15 082 14 283

 Total   19 869 19 286
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

14.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

     Loans and Fair 

    receivables Value  

      R’000 R’000

 31 March 2012  

 Assets as per reporting date 

 Account receivable   13 831 13 831

 Cash and cash equivalents   24 156 24 156

 Total   37 987 37 987

 Liabilities as per reporting date   

 Provision   205  205

 Trade and other payables   5 525 5 525

 Unspent voted funds   30 271 30 271

 Total   36 001  36 001

14.1  Risk management of financial instruments

  The Chief executive officer has approved and monitored the risk management processes, including cash flow management 

and reporting structures in relation to the management of financial instruments risk.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

14.1  Risk management of financial instruments (continued)
 These risks, and the way they are managed, are detailed below.

 Liquidity risk
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity 

risk management within the entity focuses on working capital management, cash balances and cash flow planning, 
coupled with liquidity support arrangements with the Department of Economic Development. 

 Credit risk
  The entity’s financial assets are trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the risk that 

counterparty will default on its obligations in respect of these instruments. The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does 
not charge a fee for the service that it provided. The balance of receivable relates to inter trading entity balance between the 
entity and Cradle of Human Kind World Heritage Site. Both these entities are managed by the same management.

 Market risk
  This is the risk that financial instruments fair values will fluctuate owing to changes in market prices. The entity is not 

exposed to this risk as it does not have any financial instruments of which its value might be influenced by changes in market 
prices. The entity financial instruments are only receivables and payables between the entity and its related parties.

 Interest rate risk
  This is a risk of loss due to a change in interest rates. The trading entity has no significant interest-bearing assets and 

long-term borrowings. There are no borrowings at variable rates of interest there the entity is not exposed to interest rate 

risk. The trading entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

15.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

  The entity is liable for a contingent liability resulting from certain employees that have capped leave. These employees are 

entitled to a maximum of five days of leave in each year from their capped leave. The amount is paid on the occurrence of 

future events that are not merely controlled by the entity. It is paid upon death, retirement and when an employee resigns 

the entity is not liable for payment.

    31 Mar 31 Mar

    2013 2012

     R’000  R’000

 Capped leave   248 211

 Total   248 211

16.   PROJECT EXPENSES   

 Opening balance   7 644 21 781

 Utilised during current year   (7 644) (14 137)

 Closing balance   0 7 644

 Project expenses relates to amortisation of prepayments made to Department of Roads and Transport in prior year.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement (continued)
For the year ended  31 March 2013

17.  GOING CONCERN

  The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The entity 

will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. This basis presumes that funds will be available 

to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 

commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

18.  SUBSIDIES PAID

  The trading entity has paid a subsidy to the Maropeng ‘a Afrika Leisure Pty Ltd. This subsidy paid is in line with the 

requirements of Section 38 (j) of the PFMA.

19.  PRIOR YEAR ERROR

  Revenue

 In terms of IAS20 the revenue must match the expenditure. The effect of the revision is as follows:

    31 Mar 31 Mar

    2013 2012

     R’000  R’000

 Decrease in Accumulated Surplus    (12 004)

 Increase (increase) Deferred Income      12 004
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Progress Made Towards the Achievement of Targets

Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

Visitor 
requirements met 
through world 
class product 
provision and 
authentic, unique 
experiences

- 1 report 
finalised with 
recommendations 
for future 
management of 
Maropeng by 31 
March 2013

1 Report with 
recommendations 
for future 
management of 
Maropeng

1 Report with 
recommendations 
for future 
management of 
Maropeng

No deviations from 
planned target.

There was no deviations.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

 Management of 
the Concession 
Contract in relation 
to the Contract 
Management Plan

 Managing the 
ICC concession 
contract as per 
the concession 
agreement by 31 
March 2013

4 Project 
management 
meetings.                  
4 Project Steering 
Committee 
meetings.                  
4 Bilateral 
meetings.                  
4 Concessionaire 
quarterly reports.

1 Project 
Management 
Meeting.                                    
1 Project Steering 
Committee 
meeting.                 1 
Bilateral meeting.                 
3 Concessionaire 
quarterly report

3 Project Management 
Meeting.                 3 
Project Steering 
Committee meeting.                 
3 Bilateral meeting.                                    
1 Concessionaire 
quarterly report

This deliverable relates 
broadly to the management 
of the Interpretation 
Centre Complex Public 
Private Partnership 
Concession Agreement 
and more specifically to 
the management of the 
contract with Maropeng. 
Due the exit of the private 
partner from the Public 
Private Partnership, many of 
the contractual obligations 
under the Public Private 
Partnership fell away and 
became null and void. A 
decision was taken by the 
Concessor Parties (Gauteng 
Provincial Government 
and the University of the 
Witwatersrand) to suspend 
the Interpretation Centre 
Complex Project Steering 
Committee/ Bilateral 
meetings as it was a 
duplicate of what was 
happening at MAL Board 
level. 
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

 2.6km constructed 
(Maropeng)

2.6km of Hiking 
trails constructed in 
the COH WHS by 31 
March 2012

2.6Km of Hiking 
Trail operational at 
Maropeng

2.6Km of Hiking 
Trail operational at 
Maropeng

No deviations from 
planned target.

There was no deviations. 

Approval of 
Diagnostics for 
exhibition upgrade

Upgrade of 
Maropeng 
Interpretation 
Centre by 31 March 
2013

Phase two upgrade 
of the exhibitions 
at Sterkfontein and 
Maropeng complete

The contract with 
the service provider 
for the upgrade 
of the exhibitions 
at Sterkfontein 
and Maropeng 
was terminated 
due to the poor 
quality of work 
provided. A process 
has been put into 
place to move 
the work forward 
by contracting 
directly with the 
University of the 
Witwatersrand 
scientists and 
architects for the 
upgrade process as 
a remedial action.

Approval of 
Diagnostics for 
exhibition upgrade

Approval of Diagnostics for 
exhibition upgrade
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

 2.6km constructed 
(Maropeng)

2.6km of Hiking 
trails constructed in 
the COH WHS by 31 
March 2012

2.6Km of Hiking 
Trail operational at 
Maropeng

2.6Km of Hiking 
Trail operational at 
Maropeng

No deviations from 
planned target.

There was no deviations. 

Approval of 
Diagnostics for 
exhibition upgrade

Upgrade of 
Maropeng 
Interpretation 
Centre by  
31 March 2013

Phase two upgrade 
of the exhibitions 
at Sterkfontein and 
Maropeng complete

The contract with 
the service provider 
for the upgrade 
of the exhibitions 
at Sterkfontein 
and Maropeng 
was terminated 
due to the poor 
quality of work 
provided. A process 
has been put into 
place to move 
the work forward 
by contracting 
directly with the 
University of the 
Witwatersrand 
scientists and 
architects for the 
upgrade process as 
a remedial action.

Phased approvals 
and implementation 
of exhibition 
upgrade as 
per approved 
diagnostics 
exercise not done 
as contract with 
service provider 
terminated.

The delays in implementation 
of the exhibition upgrade 
are due to the fact that the 
contract with the service 
provider was terminated due 
to the poor quality of work 
submitted.  A new process 
has now been put in place for 
the exhibition upgrade.
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

 - 4 artworks 
commissioned 
and installed at 
gateways in the 
COH WHS by  
31 March 2013

4 Artworks installed An Artworks 
Committee has 
been set up to 
manage this 
process. They 
have utilised 
VANSA ( who have 
recommended 
the use of an 
implementing gent 
to manage the 
entire project.

4 Artworks were not 
installed

The implementation of 
this project entailed the 
setting up of an Artworks 
Committee which took 
longer than anticipated. In 
addition a different approach 
to utilise Visual Arts Network 
of South Africa approved 
artists as well as an 
implementing agent to roll 
out the project created some 
delays.  The work is expected 
to be finalised in the 2013/14 
financial year. 

Developed a 
signage plan for the 
COH WHS.
Submit application 
for use of COHWHS 
logo on directional 
signs

Directional and 
information signs 
implemented in the 
COH WHS by 31 
March 2013

Directional and 
information signs 
implemented 

Directional and 
information signs 
implemented

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

Tangible community 
benefit through 
growth of the local 
tourism industry 
and targeted 
community project 
implementation

50 50  community 
members 
participating in 
the learnership 
programme in COH 
WHS by 31 March 
2013

50 50 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

50 50 SMME`s 
facilitated for GEP 
and TEP trained 
and supported per 
annum in COH WHS 
by 31 March 2013

50 25 The target was less 
by 25

TEP (the key partner in this 
project) was facing budgetary 
constraints. As a result there 
is a need to review future 
funding relationshipwith the 
TEP to ensure the projects 
run smoothly.

200 200 community 
members employed 
as safety monitors 
in COH WHS by 31 
March 2013

200 200 community 
members employed 
as safety monitors 
in total

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

1 project of 
school visits for 
disadvantage 
schools targeting 
1000 learners

Schools Visit project 
targeting 1000 
learners conducted 
by 31 March 2013

1 project of 
school visits for 
disadvantage 
schools targeting 
1000 learners

1000 learners and 
20 educators visited 
Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein caves

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

2 4 Public meetings 
per annum for COH 
WHS by 31 March 
2013

4 4 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Monitoring & 
Evaluation systems 
and processes 
that are able to 
provide high quality 
data for reporting 
and management 
decision making

1 1 updated report 
on GDP and Job 
Creation figures 
for the COH WHS 
and Dinokeng 
for 2011/12 by 31 
March 2013

1 updated Report 1 updated report 
on GDP and Job 
Creation figures 
for the COH WHS 
and Dinokeng for 
2011/12

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

- 1 report on 
Economic Value of 
Heritage Tourism 
and Conservation 
for COH WHS by 31 
March 2013

1 Report 1 report on 
Economic Value of 
Heritage Tourism 
and Conservation 
for COH WHS

No deviations from 
planned target..

There were no deviations.

Effective and 
efficient front end 
Budget and Audit 
support

1 1 Annual 
Performance Plan 
produced by 31 
March 2013

1 1 integrated Annual 
Performance 
Plan for 2013/14 
approved for 
Gauteng Tourism 
Authority

A stand 
alone Annual 
Performance 
Plan for 2013/14 
for the Cradle of 
Humankind World 
Heritage Site 
Project was not 
developed.

The legal merger of the 
Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Project and the 
Gauteng Tourism Authority 
is expected to be concluded 
during 2013/14. As a result 
an integrated  Annual 
Performance Plan was 
developed and approved for 
the period..
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

The sustainable 
environmental 
management 
of the COHWHS 
by conforming 
to prescribed 
regulatory 
requirements

New Indicator Study tour, 
symposium and 
workshop/training 
reports by 31 March 
2013

5 5 No deviations from 
planned target..

There were no deviations.

Tangible community 
benefit through 
growth of the local 
tourism industry 
and targeted 
community project 
implementation

25 25 community 
members employed 
in Working for Fire 
project in COH WHS 
by 31 March 2013

25 25 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

25 25 community 
members employed 
in Working for 
Water project in 
COH WHS

26 26 Target exceeded 
by 1

25 community 
members not 
employed in 
Working for Water 
project

Effective partnership 
with the Department of 
Environmental Affairs 
who are responsible for 
implementation
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

The sustainable 
environmental 
management 
of the COHWHS 
by conforming 
to prescribed 
regulatory 
requirements

- 2 ground and 
surface water 
monitoring reports 
submitted by 31 
March 2013

2 2 ground and 
surface water 
monitoring reports 
submitted

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

A management 
system that ensures 
the conservation 
of the fossil sites 
within the COH WHS

26 26 fossil site 
inspections 
conducted (13 fossil 
sites bi-annually) by 
31 March 2013

26 26 fossil site 
inspections 
conducted

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

0 Malapa and 
Gladysvale fossil 
site infrastructure 
in place by 31 March 
2013

Malapa and 
Gladysvale site 
infrastructure

A contract and 
collaboration 
agreement has 
been signed with 
the University of 
the Witwatersrand 
to implement the 
infrastructure 
at Malapa and 
Gladysvale 
sites. Offsite 
infrastructure work 
has commenced.

Malapa and 
Gladysvale site 
infrastructure no 
yet in place

This target has not been 
achieved as it is dependent 
upon landowner agreement 
being signed but the 
offsite construction work 
has been put in process 
by the University of the 
Witwatersrand Project 
Manager.
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

0 Production and 
distribution of fossil 
casts by 31 March 
2013

Fossil casts 
produced

Fossil casting 
facility identified 
and finalised.

No deviations from 
planned target.
Sethembiso to 
advise whether 
they accept or 
reject this one. A 
concern raised was 
that there was no 
specific target for 
how many fossils 
to be produced and 
distributed 

There were no deviations.

Visitor 
requirements met 
through world class 
product provision 
and authentic, 
unique experiences

New Indicator 1 Mountain Bike 
Trail feasibility 
report and trail 
designed in the COH 
WHS by 31 March 
2013

Final feasibility 
report and trail 
design for a MTB 
trail

1 Mountain Bike 
Trail  Feasibility 
Report has been 
approved.

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Attract visitors 
by implementing 
evidence based 
marketing 
strategies

136.763 127 177 
international 
visitors to COHWHS 
by 31 March 2013

127.177 141.263 Target exceeded by 
14.06

Better awareness of the 
Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site through 
international marketing and 
promotional activities 
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

1.63 Average length 
of stay of 2 
nights spent by 
international 
tourists in COH 
WHS by 31 March 
2013

2 nights 1.72 Target less by 0.28 Despite better awareness 
of the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site, the 
Global economic climate may 
have had its impact on the 
overall value of discretionary 
spending of tourists.

812.4 R912.9 million 
in total revenue 
generated from 
tourists in COHWHS 
by 31 March 2013

912.992 819.4 Target missed by 
93.5

Despite better awareness 
of the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site, the 
Global economic climate may 
have had its impact on the 
overall value of discretionary 
spending of tourists.

1 
348 486

147 317 domestic 
trips to COHWHS by 
31 March 2013

147.317 1 354.23 Target exceeded by 
1 206.91

Better awareness of the 
Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site through 
increased domestic 
marketing and promotional 
activities 

Build  Destination 
Marketing 
capabilities

160 437 180 000 unique 
visitors to the 
website by 31 March 
2013

180 000 344 066 Target exceeded by 
164 066 

Better awareness of Brand 
Gauteng through marketing 
and promotional activities
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

0 5 000 mobile 
and tablet apps 
downloads by 31 
March 2013

5 000 5 341
310

Target exceeded 
by 341

There were no deviations

3393 7000 followers to 
owned properties 
on all social media 
channels by 31 
March 2013

7000 13 986 Target exceeded by 
6986

Better awareness of Brand 
Gauteng through marketing 
and promotional activities

Strategy Developed 1 Brand 
Management 
Strategy developed 
by 31 March 2013

1 Brand 
Management 
Strategy

1 Brand 
Management 
Strategy approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Strategy Developed 1 Marketing and 
Sales Strategy  
developed by 31 
March 2013

1 Marketing and 
Sales Strategy

1 Marketing and 
Sales Strategy 
approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Strategy Developed 1 Convention and 
Events Strategy 
developed by 31 
March 2013

1 Convention and 
Events Strategy

1 Convention and 
Events Strategy 
approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

1 1 media 
engagement 
programme 
embarked upon in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

1 1 media 
engagement 
programme

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations

4 3  Major Events 
held/attended in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013. 

3 3 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

2 4 International 
Exhibitions in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

4 4 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

4 4 consumers shows 
used to promote 
the province in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013.

4 5 Target exceeded 
by 1

There was an additional 
opportunistic event to 
promote Gauteng as a 
tourism destination
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

2 2 milestone/ 
government events 
supported in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

2 1 Target less by 1 The milestone/government 
events are heavily dependent 
on the schedules of other 
internal and external 
stakeholder projects. Some 
of the planned events did 
not take place resulting in 
the non-achievement of the 
target

2 4 flagship 
marketing 
campaigns/
promotions 
conducted in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

4 3 Target less by 1 The flagship events are 
heavily dependent on the 
schedules of other internal 
and external stakeholder 
projects. Some of the 
planned events did not take 
place resulting in the non-
achievement of the target

3 3 trade marketing 
events held in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

3 3 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

2 7 trade 
interventions 
facilitated in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

7 8 Target exceeded 
by 1

There was an additional 
opportunistic event to 
promote Gauteng as a 
tourism destination
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

Supplement the 
provincial fiscus 
with fundraising 
from donor 
organisations.

1 One Fundraising 
strategy reviewed 
and updated, 
approved and 
implemented by 31 
March 2013

1 In addition the 
final Approved 
Fundraising 
Strategy, 3 funding 
proposals have also 
been made

Target exceeded 
with the 
development of 3 
funding proposals

The actual implementation 
of the fundraising strategy 
proceeded faster than 
planned.

- Number of Trustees 
legally appointed by 
31 March 2013

14 10 Trustees legally 
appointed

The appointment of 
4 Trustees is still 
pending.

A decision was taken to put 
in abeyance the appointment 
of new Trustees in order to 
factor broader developments 
regarding the management 
of the Maropeng 
Interpretation Centre.

2 Number of 
community projects 
funded from COH 
Trust annual 
Disbursements by 
31 March 2013

3 Community 
Projects
2 Scientific 
Research Projects

Ongoing monitoring 
of current 
Community Projects 
and  Scientific 
Research projects 
and facilitation of 
capacity building 
project for current 
Community Projects 

3 community 
projects and 2 
scientific projects 
still pending 
approval by Trust.

The approval of projects 
was put on hold pending 
the realignment of the Trust 
and will be finalised in the 
2013.14 financial year.
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Strategic Objectives Actual Achievement 
for 2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual Achievement 
for 2012/2013

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Programme

Monitoring & 
Evaluation systems 
and processes 
that are able to 
provide high quality 
data for reporting 
and management 
decision making

1 1 Annual Report 
produced for 
Gauteng Tourism

1 1 Annual Report 
produced for 
the Cradle of 
Humankind World 
Heritage Site and 
Dinokeng Projects

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Effective and 
efficient front end 
Budget and Audit 
support

1 1 complete and 
accurate asset 
register developed 
by 31 March 2013

1 1 complete and 
accurate asset 
register developed

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

100% 100% 
implementation 
of internal 
Audit Report 
Recommendations 
by 31 March 2013

100% 88% 2011/12  audit 
recommendations 
implemented while 
87% 2010/11 audit 
recommendations 
implemented and 
15% of 2012/13 
implemented. 

( 13%) as two IT 
Audit findings 
are overdue from 
2010/11.

The two audit findings are 
Information Technology 
related and is dependent 
on the Department of 
Economic Development’s  
Information Technology  unit. 
Engagement are ongoing 
with them through various 
forums to have the issue 
resolved

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



112







1
TABLE OF CONTENTS

4.2.1.1 Departmental or Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives
4.2.1.2 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period under Review 

4.2.1.3 Stakeholder Engagements
4.2.1.4 Challenges and Opportunities

6
9
19
19

INTRODUCTION DINOKENG 
PROGRAMME 

DINOKENG
TABLE OF CONTENTS

1



2
TABLE OF CONTENTS

35
35

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS

4.2.4.1 Challenges and Opportunities 
4.2.4.2 Outlook for 2013/2014

DESTINATION MARKETING

4.2.3.1 Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives 
4.2.3.2 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period under Review  

27
28

INTRODUCTION  
RESEARCH AND PLANNING

4.2.2.1 Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives
4.2.2.2 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period under Review 

4.2.2.3 Stakeholder Engagements
4.2.2.4 Challenges and Opportunities

21
23
23
24

2



3

ANNUAL FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS FOR DINOKENG

40
45
46
47
52
60
61
62
63
64

75
96

Report Of The Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial  
Legislature 0n Dinokeng Trading Entity

Statement of Responsibility
Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Audit Committee
Accounting Officer’s Report

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Postion

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flow

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to the Annual Financial Statement  

for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
Progress Made Towards the Achievement of Targets

TABLE OF CONTENTS
3



4
INTRODUCTION: DINOKENG PROGRAMME

INTRODUCTION  
DINOKENG PROGRAMME 4.2.1



5

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 

The purpose of Dinokeng Programme Entity is to 
implement the Dinokeng Master Plan. Envisaged in 
the Master Plan is the development of three Tourism 
Hubs and five Tourism Nodes in the Dinokeng area, 
so as to create a tourism destination in a gradual 
and phased approach. The tourism hubs are based 
around the Dinokeng Game Reserve (DGR) as the 
primary attraction and the development of the 
Roodeplaat Dam and Cullinan areas as secondary  
Tourism Hubs.

INTRODUCTION: DINOKENG PROGRAMME
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b) Complete the construction of a 4.8km wall adjacent to  
 the DGR along the Steve Bikoville community;

c) Complete the introduction of priority species of game,  
 which are lions, buffalo and elephants;

d) Complete a “Big Five” compliant perimeter game  
 fence of the DGR;

e) Establish five completed gateways for access control  
 to the DGR in coordination with the South African  
 National Road Agencies Limited (SANRAL);

f) Establish Public Private Partnership (PPP) transactions  
 for the development of significant tourism components  
 of the network of tourism facilities connected by  
 scenic routes;

4.2.1.1 Departmental or Unit Strategic Goals and 

Objectives  

The strategic objective for Dinokeng is aligned to the 
strategic priorities for the Gauteng Province. The 
strategy of the Dinokeng trading entity is to invest in 
infrastructure and tourism facilities to enhance private 
sector investment in tourism business activities in the 
project area. The rationale for the development of the 
project is to contribute to economic growth and job 
creation in the impoverished north-eastern portion of 
the Gauteng province. The key strategic objectives are to:

a) Establish an economically viable free-roaming  
 “Big Five”game reserve as a unique tourism destination  
 for Gauteng in a rural, undeveloped area characterised  
 by limited options for job creation;

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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g) Ensure advocacy, including targeted stakeholder
  engagement,general stakeholder engagement and  
 cooperative governance to provide strategic guidance  
 on the expansion, management and growth of the  
 game reserve;

h) Manage the game reserve in collaboration with the
 Landowners’ Association (LOA) and its structures  
 which are the Dinokeng Game Reserve Management  
 Association (DGRMA) and the Dinokeng Game Reserve  
 Game Enterprises Ltd (DGRGE) 

i) Rehabilitate and realign of Road P2-5; and 

j) Foster partnerships with local businesses, state  
 agencies and government departments for community  
 projects and to also create sustainable opportunities  
 for the effective participation and transfer of benefits to  
 

 members of the adjacent communities around the  
 tourism hubs and nodes in Dinokeng.

k) Tourism research and planning for the destination;

l) Destination marketing to increase domestic and  
 international leisure and business tourism to the  
 destination;

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 

    The rationale for 
the development of the 
project is to contribute 
to economic growth and 
job creation...
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4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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4.2.1.2 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period 
under Review

Dinokeng “Free Roaming” Big Five Game Reserve
The highlight during the period under review has to be 
the official opening of the Dinokeng Game Reserve and 
the successful introduction of priority species of game 
such as lions, buffalo and elephants into the destination 
which is an essential aspect for the tourism draw card 
to be effective.  A total number of 34 buffalo, 8 lion 
and 10 elephant were introduced thus completing the 
introduction of the Big Five species. A pair of cheetah was 
also introduced and released under the guidance of the 
Dinokeng Project with no additional cost to the state.

The organisations’ framework for cooperative governance 
and stakeholder engagement is based on the recognition 
that sounds intergovernmental relations and an inclusive 
stakeholder engagement is critical to the success of 

    A total number of 34 
buffalo, 8 lion and 10 
elephant were introduced 
thus completing the
introduction of the Big 
Five species.

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 

the project.  In the case of Dinokeng the introduction of 
buffaloes was possible due to the intensive stakeholder 
relations between the Department of Economic 
Development that donated 30 buffalo and Mogale City 
that donated four buffalo to the destination and therefore 
making it possible for the destination to attract visitors. 
This continued into the game reserve where 172 private 
landowners signed 270 title deeds) as part of the land 

INTRODUCTION: DINOKENG PROGRAMME
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use agreements with the Landowners Association for 
further development of a “Big Five” game reserve. This 
was a complex part of the project and required persistent 
and continuous inputs from government in all spheres, 
to maintain the support from adjacent communities 
and loyalty from landowners. Despite several years 
of unforeseen delays regarding implementation, this 
key achievement means that it has become possible to 
increase the conservation area in Gauteng by an area 
equal in size to the Suikerbosrand Nature Reserve, the 
largest officially protected area in the province.

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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The DGR was opened on 18, 500 hectares of land and the 
plans for the sub-programme is to continue its mission 
of extending the size of the game reserve to 40, 000 
hectares in order to reach ecological and economical 
viability. The perimeter fence now stands at a cumulative 
total of 206km, speed calming measures have been 
installed on the tarred public roads through the reserve, 
and five gateways have been completed and are now 
fully operational, with a ticketing system. Budget savings 
has enabled us to improve on the gateways by initiating 
the extension of the office block at the main gate and 
to construct roofs over all the boom-gates and ticket 
dispenser machines. Project development is underway to 
utilize state land in the DGR optimally which includes the 
initiation of an implementation/development plan for self-
drive tourist routes which will be completed by June 2013. 
Seventy eight direct jobs and more than four hundred and 
fifty indirect jobs have also been created as part of the 
game reserve management and maintenance functions.  

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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Also in the period under review, the Dinokeng Project 
completed the construction of the planned 5 gateways 
and interconnectivity. The gateways are critical to the 
operation of the DGR. This will ensure that the DGR 
is now able to collect gate fees, which is vital for the 
effective running of the game reserve as a sustainable 
project. It should be noted that this is one of the two 
major milestones highlighted by the Grant Thornton 
feasibility study and economic model in ensuring that 
the game reserve becomes a success. During the 
period under review the Dinokeng Project completed 
the construction of the 4.8km Dinokeng Game Reserve 
(DGR) wall which was done in partnership with the 
Department of Infrastructure Development (DID).  

The Steve Bikoville Community, which is adjacent to the 
DGR, raised concerns over safety and demanded that a 
wall be constructed to serve as a barrier between them 
and the big five game reserve. 120 jobs were created 
through this project and skills imparted to those who 
worked on it and now they have constructing skills that 
they will be able to use in other projects or use to seek 
employment in other similar work.

    The gateways 
are critical to the 
operation of the DGR. 
This will ensure that 
the DGR is now able to 
collect gate fees

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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Tourism Hubs
WSP Civil and Structural Engineers finalised the work to 
design and layout tourism signage for Dinokeng. 5 routes 
proposed by the plan were Wild Life Route- representing 
the Dinokeng Game Reserve, Diamond Route- 
representing the Cullinan Tourism Hub, Historical Route- 
representing the Prisoners of War, De-Tweedespruit 
route- representing de Tweedespruit and the Diamond 
Hill route. The signage plan was approved by the Tourism 
Liaison Committee that is led by Gauteng Department of 
Roads and Transport (GDRT). The committee approved 
70 intersections that required either new signage or 
updated signs. A signage audit was conducted for the 
entire Dinokeng area. The sub-programme over achieved 
the targets for 2012/2013 financial year. 369 signs were 
procured and 41 signs erected within the Wild life route.

The remaining 221 signs planned to be erected in the 
year 2013/14 within the other three tourism routes.
Signage aims to improve navigation within the destination.
Shisaka Development Management Services were 
procured to develop a tourism economic development 
model for the town of Cullinan which would assist in 
developing the tourism hub in the town. This was done 
after an extensive visit to other small towns in South 
Africa to establish how they manage tourism. The 
following towns were visited:

• Clarens, Free State
• Darling, Western Cape
• Pilgrims’ Rest, Mpumalanga
• Dullstroom, Mpumalanga

The study will be completed in the 2013/14 financial year.

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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The finalisation of the feasibility study for the 
establishment of a PPP transaction for Roodeplaat was 
concluded and the result was that a PPP arrangement 
for Roodeplaat was assesed as not being feasible. 
The consequence of that is to deregister Roodeplaat 
as a PPP and institute an alternative development 
model for the area. This will be initiated in the 2013/14 
financial year. The construction and alignment of Road 
P2-5 finally took off and the Department of Roads and 
Transport will manage the R85 million construction 
and the road will be completed in the 2013/14  
financial year.

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 

    ...the result was 
that a PPP arrangement 
for Roodeplaat is not 
feasible.
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4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 

Public Participation and Community Projects
In 2012/13 a community beneficiation programme was established whereby 30 
crafters were trained in craft product development, production and marketing 
in the Dinokeng area. The crafters will produce top end products for domestic 
and international markets. In the year under reporting, a contract was signed 
with the Fair Trade in Tourism South Africa (FTTSA) to accredit and certify 
thirty products in the Dinokeng area specifically and in Gauteng in general. 
Six products were certified in Dinokeng during 2012/13 financial year which 
sets the area as a credible responsible tourism destination. More products 
are encouraged to participate in the coming years as this will provide them, 
the area and the province with an added competitive advantage over similar 
products and destinations.

Habitat Landscape Architects and Royal Haskoning DHV were appointed 
to develop a model for self-drive routes in the DGR with the intention of 
determing what community projects can be developed along the routes 
and how these could be supported. The self-drive routes are an essential 
component in the management and development of the DGR and would also 
provide the required community beneficiation in the DGR. The project will be 
completed in 2013/14.

INTRODUCTION: DINOKENG PROGRAMME
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4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 

The Dinokeng Project has supported the establishment 
of two community projects in the area in partnership 
with private businesses.Kwalata Game Ranch and the 
Cullinan Chamber of Commerce (CCC) in the Dinokeng 
area were heavily involved in the establishment of 
community projects. The project run by Kwalata is a 
poverty alleviation project aiming to support vegetable 
gardens in Steve Bikoville. The project with the CCC  is a 
sports and recreation project focusing on school sports. 

Partnerships to support more community projects with 
private business are ongoing. 200 Tourism ambassadors 
were recruited to support tourism business and the 
destination in 2012/13 in partnership with the National 
Department of Tourism (NDT). This project aims to 
combat crime and assist with mobility of tourists in the 
area. Through this project, 200 youth were employed 
from the local communities as part of the organizational 
goals of job creation and alleviation of poverty in the 

project areas. They were also imparted with skills 
including business management, tourism awareness, 
HIV awareness, Occupational Health which are skills that 
they will be able to use in their future career endeavours.  
50 SMMEs were supported through the facilitation of 
training conducted by the Gauteng Economic Propeller 
(GEP) and the Tourism Enterprise Partnership (TEP) 
mainly on business management. This programme 
aimed at equipping small businesses with skills on 
product development, marketing, branding and business 
management to ensure profitability and sustainable 
enterprises.

INTRODUCTION: DINOKENG PROGRAMME
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4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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4.2.1.3 Stakeholder Engagements

The primary work of the programme is focused on 
maintaining good working relationships with all key 
stakeholders. The Public Participation and Community 
Benefits sub-programme has successfully implemented 
this work along with other projects in the current financial 
year. This is based solely on the strong relationships that 
have been built over the years, although more work still 
needs to be done in ensuring that the relationships are 
sustained with this diverse set of stakeholders.

Engagements with the local communities through 
campaigns were held. In addition, extensive consultation 
with the relevant stakeholders with regard to the 
construction of Road P2-5 was required. Most 
stakeholders were quite happy with the proposed project 
and the process of public consultation was therefore 
made easier. Extreme care was taken to follow the 

proper consultation process, and as a result, the actual 
construction of the road has been delayed and the road 
project is behind schedule. The delay in this project is, 
however, justified, given that all stakeholders have now 
given the construction process the go-ahead and valuable 
project lessons have been learnt throughout the process.

4.2.1.4 Challenges and Opportunities 

The representation of the adjacent communities within 
the projects remains a challenge. Although the DGR 
Community Trust has been established, it is yet to be 
formally registered. Engagements with other local 
community structures, including the ward committee, 
must be pursued to agree on roles and responsibilities of 
each participating local structure. If this is not resolved, it 
has the potential to hinder the implementation of planned 
community projects.

4.2.1 Introduction Dinokeng Programme 
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INTRODUCTION RESEARCH AND 
PLANNING

INTRODUCTION: RESEARCH AND PLANNING
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4.2.2 Introduction Research and Planning

The Research and Planning Programme is responsible for the monitoring and 
evaluation of the impacts of the development of the destination.

4.2.2.1 Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives:

The strategic goals and objectives of the sub-programmes are highlighted 
below: 
Monitoring of the implementation of the strategic objectives of the organisation 
as outlined in the strategic plan and envisaged by the master plans and 
reports on the outputs achieved by the organisation

Conducts strategic research which informs the marketing, investment and 
brand management strategies of the organisation and also informs decisions 
for further tourism development in the area. 

    The Research 
and Planning 
Programme is 
responsible for 
the monitoring 
and evaluation
of the impacts 
of the 
developments 
of the 
destination. 
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4.2.2 Introduction Research and Planning
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4.2.2.2 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period 

under Review 

All of the targets for the Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) 
sub-programme have been met. This sub-programme 
produced the annual report for the 2011/2012 financial 
year as well as provided valuable management reports 
on the performance of the organisation in line with the 
2012/2013 annual performance plan (APP). 

The Tourism and Investment main achievement during 
this reporting period is the study that was commissioned 
to update the economic impact model developed for 
Dinokeng project with the purpose of updating the 
contribution of the tourism industry to the local economy, 
specifically Gross Domestic Product per Region (GDPR) 
and job creation for 2011 and also provide estimates for 
2012 to 2015. The study reported that in 2011 about 668 
738 tourists visited Dinokeng and it further estimated 

that about 676 738 would have visited Dinokeng in 2012. 
The total tourism expenditure for Dinokeng was R408.7 
million in 2011 and was estimated to grow to R 415.3 in 
2012.

4.2.2.3 Stakeholder Engagements 

While numerous engagements have taken place with 
stakeholders in both the public and private sectors, the 
integration with GTA has necessitated the need for a well- 
coordinated and integrated stakeholder engagement 
plan. The planning for an integrated stakeholder 
engagement plan is currently being developed.

4.2.2 Introduction Research and Planning

INTRODUCTION: RESEARCH AND PLANNING
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4.2.2 Introduction Research and Planning

4.2.2.4 Challenges and Opportunities 

There were no major challenges encountered in the 
research work. There are exciting new opportunities 
that will emanate from the research work related to 
the Tourism Infrastructure Strategy and Plan and the 
Tourism Investment Portfolio. This work has a long term 
planning horizon that is expected to shape and change 
the physical tourism landscape in years to come.

INTRODUCTION: RESEARCH AND PLANNING
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4.2.3 DESTINATION MARKETING

DESTINATION MARKETING



26

4.2.3 Destination Marketing

The marketing of the Dinokeng destination goes beyond the advertising of individual tourism products. The 
organisation’s approach is to market the destination as a total experience, meeting a multitude of needs and desires 
through the exploration of the themes of Nature, Culture and History. Much more importantly, the marketing strategy 
is aimed at promoting Dinokeng to encourage investment in the area, and thus achieve the key objective of economic 
development, job creation and poverty alleviation. The marketing campaign has contributed to the growing number of 
visitors to the destination, and the increase in tourism products on offer.

DESTINATION MARKETING
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4.2.3.1 Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives 

The unit strategic goals and objectives in the period 
under review were as follows: 

a) To create a destination brand and build equity that  
 will ensure key stakeholders groupings demand use and  
 consumption of the Dinokeng brand offering.  

b) To leverage government milestone deliveries as
  opportunities to create increased brand awareness,  
 demand and drive higher footfall to the “Big Five”
  game reserve. 

c) To use of various communication mediums and other
  marketing platforms to profile Dinokeng at trade
  exhibitions, consumer shows and through 

d) To increase the awareness of the destination, 
 to drive visitor numbers to the destination 
 as well as keep stakeholders informed about the  
 development of the project 

e) To ensure that the Dinokeng brand is used legally and  
 properly in terms of the requirements of South African  
 and international copyright law

4.2.3 Destination Marketing

    To create a 
destination brand and 
build equity...

DESTINATION MARKETING
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4.2.3.2 Key Milestones and Activities 
in the Period under Review

Key Marketing Events

Tourism Indaba 2012
Dinokeng successfully exhibited at 
the Tourism Indaba 2012, Africa’s 
premier tourism trade show with 
great success. Indaba is one of the 
largest tourism marketing events 
on the African calendar and one 
of the top three ‘must visit’ events 
of its kind on the global calendar. 
It showcases the widest variety 
of Southern Africa’s best tourism 
products, and attracts international 
visitors and media from across the 
world. This international platform 

4.2.3 Destination Marketing

DESTINATION MARKETING
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4.2.3 Destination Marketing

was used to launch the Dinokeng Big Five Game Reserve 
to the tourism trade at a trade-media event on the 
opening day of Indaba.

The project further provided graded local and SMME 
product owners were exhibition space on the Gauteng 
pavilion on which Dinokeng was one of the main 
exhibitors. Strategic meetings that were pre-scheduled 
were also held with tour operators and other critical 
players in the tourism industry. 

DESTINATION MARKETING
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4.2.3 Destination Marketing

DESTINATION MARKETING



31

4.2.3 Destination Marketing

Black market segments. Products were selected from 
the Dinokeng Game Reserve, Roodeplaat and Cullinan 
as part of the bigger Dinokeng destination profiling and 
sell the show. Package giveaways from products in the 
destination formed part of the show strategy to sell 
various tourism offerings and to also encourage repeat 
visitation to the area.

Meetings Africa 2013
The Meetings Africa business tourism exhibition provided 
an opportunity to further cement relationships with 
product owners from the broader Dinokeng destination. 
At this exhibition, meetings were held with 15 targeted 
international and local hosted buyers who showed great 
interest in the business tourism offerings of Dinokeng. 
A total of 3 flagship products including the Dinokeng 
Game Reserve exhibited on the stand. This made way for 
extensive relationship building with the product owners 
as well as serving as a means of encouraging product 
owners to become partner with the Dinokeng destination 
for the setting up of a Local Tourism Organisation in the 
2013-14 financial year.

Soweto Wine Festival
In partnership with Kaya FM, Dinokeng exhibited at the 
Soweto Wine Festival, which is South Africa’s premier 
wine, lifestyle and tourism event which attracts your 

DESTINATION MARKETING

Dinokeng Exhibition stand at Soweto Wine Festival 2012 
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4.2.3 Destination Marketing

Getaway Consumer Show
Dinokeng participated in the annual Getaway Show 
consumer exhibition with the objective of reaching the 
established tourism, hospitality and leisure market.

The exhibition offered the Dinokeng destination an 
opportunity to engage consumer with interests on leisure 
experiences and increase brand awareness, demand and 
conversion for visitation. 

DESTINATION MARKETING

Dinokeng Exhibition stand at Getaway Show 2012 
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4.2.3 Destination Marketing

Events Indaba 2012
The official launch of the Game Reserve to the tourism 
industry was held at Indaba, specifically the trade which 
included tour operators, travel agents and buyers. The 
long awaited opening of the DGR extended beyond the 
province as Indaba has been used for years as a platform 
to communicate the opening of the reserve. In essence, 
the Dinokeng Game Reserve is an eco-extension of 
various related parks and reserves across the country 
and boasts the same diversity of game set up with a 
distinction of being in the South African gateway province 
– Gauteng and also boasts free-roaming wildlife.  It is in 
this reserve where the “Big Five” is roaming freely within 
one hour from Johannesburg and just above 30 minutes 
drive from Tshwane metropolis.

Dinokeng World Tourism Day
World Tourism Day was held in Dinokeng during this 
reporting period. The World Tourism Day theme was 
Sustainable Energy Use and the event hosted featured 
exhibitors who had made a contribution through 
developing projects or building communities with various 
areas of sustainability in mind. The event took place at 
Kwalata Game Lodge, one of the Fair Trade Tourism 
registered products in the destination.

    ...the “Big Five” 
is roaming freely 
within one hour from 
Johannesburg...

DESTINATION MARKETING
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4.2.4 Stakeholder Engagements

While numerous engagements have taken place with 
stakeholders in both the public and private sectors, the 
integration with GTA has necessitated the need for a well 
– coordinated and integrated stakeholder engagement 
plan.  An integrated stakeholder plan is currently being 
developed.

4.2.4.1 Challenges and Opportunities

The merger between the GTA and Dinokeng will be used 
as part of better defining the Unique Selling Propositions 
(USP) of Gauteng which includes Dinokeng and ensuring 
relevance and consistency in the USP. It also includes 
stronger development of marketing campaigns to deliver 
highly targeted and integrated consumer marketing 
campaigns in the domestic market and key global 
markets;

4.2.4.2 Outlook for 2013/2014

Outlook for 2014/15
The plans to position Dinokeng as a fair trade destination, 
an important positioning strategy, are well underway and 
it is hoped that the work with Fair Trade in Tourism will 
continue to promote Dinokeng as a “must do” destination 
in Gauteng. We will continue to encourage tourism 
products to be certified by Fair Trade in Tourism.

In 2013/14, the arts and craft project will translate into 
at least two (2) cooperatives which will use the current 
30 crafters who are being trained to set up a primary and 
secondary cooperatives. Possibilities exist for additional 
cooperatives to be established. These cooperatives will 
set up operational businesses in Cullinan and at the Tau 
Gate in the DGR. They will also participate at the Design 
Indaba in Cape Town in February 2014.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS
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4.2.4 Stakeholder Engagements
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4.2.4 Stakeholder Engagements

The work on the self-drive routes will give the DGR a 
template to develop self-drive routes and the much 
needed plan to establish community-owned and 
run tourism businesses in the DGR on state land. 
This intervention will advance the DGR in two ways:  
(i) enable self-drive routes which will drive day visitor 
 numbers and 
(ii) allow effective community participation in the 
 game reserve.

It still remains a challenge to properly synchronise the 
plans for Dinokeng and those of the Tshwane Metropolitan 
Council. Plans are afoot to meet with the municipality to 
manage the synchronisation. This will allow a better input 
into the IDP and the SDF of the municipality in relation to 
the Dinokeng Project.

Resolving the long-standing land claims in the DGR 
remains a very difficult task. However, there are planned 
mediation actions that have been agreed with the 
Regional Land Claims Commission on ensuring that 
the land claims resolution does not negatively affect the 
DGR. This will also enable the DGR to be proclaimed a 
protected area, a much needed status which enables a 
better control of land use in the DGR.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS
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4.2.4 Stakeholder Engagements

MEC Mr. Nkosiphendule Kolisile tourism month interview 
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5 ANNUAL FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS FOR DINOKENG
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Dinokeng 
Trading Entity set out on pages 39 to 95, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for the financial statements 
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the South African Statement of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 
of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting 
officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor-General’s responsibility 
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in 
terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 

Report Of The Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial 
Legislature 0n Dinokeng Trading Entity
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Report Of The Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial 
Legislature 0n Dinokeng Trading Entity (continued)

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Dinokeng Trading 
Entity as at 31 March 2013, and its financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the SA 
GAAP prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements 
of the PFMA. 

Emphasis of matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

Restatement of corresponding figures 
8. As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the 
corresponding figures for 31 March 2012 have been restated 
as a result of previously not applying the principles of IAS 20 
(AC134), Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government, which the government grant should be recognised 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which 
the entity recognises as expenses the related costs. 

Going Concern 
9. The report of the accounting officer on page 52 to 59 
the financial statements indicates that the trading entity’s  
existence is affected by the realignment process at Gauteng 
Department of Economic Development. The realignment 
process will result into Dinokeng Trading Entity, Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity and Gauteng 
Tourism Authority merging into one entity. 



42
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report Of The Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial 
Legislature 0n Dinokeng Trading Entity (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
10. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued 
in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance 
with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion. 

Predetermined objectives 
11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages 96 to 111 of the  
annual report. 

12. The reported performance against predetermined 
objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of 
usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the 
annual performance report relates to whether it is presented 
in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported performance is consistent 

with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information 
further relates to whether indicators and targets are 
measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable 
and time bound) and relevant as required by the National 
Treasury Framework for managing programme performance 
information. 

The reliability of the information in respect of the selected 
programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 

13. There were no material findings on the annual  
performance report concerning the usefulness and reliability 
of the information. 
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Compliance with laws and regulations 
14. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity 
has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related 
matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific 
matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the 
General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows: 

Effective human resource management 
15. Funded vacant posts were not filled within twelve months as 
required by Public Service Regulation paragraph 1/V2/C./1A.2. 

Annual Financial Statements, performance and annual report 
16. The financial statements submitted for the audit were 
subsequently revised and amended to align the presentation, 
accounting policies and the disclosure to prescribed financial 
reporting framework. The material adjustment on the financial 
statements constitutes non-compliance with section 40(1)(a) 
and (b) of the Public Finance Management Act. 

Irregular expenditure incurred 
17. The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent 
irregular, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

18. Donations were made without the necessary approval by the 
provincial treasury.

19. A deviation from the competitive bidding to the total value 
exceeding R500 000 was approved on the basis of it being an 
emergency, even though immediate action was not necessary 
to avoid a dangerous and risky situation of misery and proper 
planning would have prevented such an emergency.

Report Of The Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial 
Legislature 0n Dinokeng Trading Entity (continued)
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Financial and performance management 
22. Management did not undertake adequate financial 
statements review to ensure the accuracy of the annual financial 
statements prior to the submission for audit purposes. 

23. Management did not adequately review and monitor 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations resulting 
in the reported instances of non-compliance. 

Johannesburg 
31 July 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Internal control 
20. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements, performance report and compliance with 
laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the 
fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant 
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with 
laws and regulations included in this report. 

Leadership 
21. The accounting officer did not exercise sufficient oversight 
responsibility to ensure compliance with the applicable laws 
and regulations and presentation and disclosure of financial 
information in the manner that is required by the accounting 
framework. 

Report Of The Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial 
Legislature 0n Dinokeng Trading Entity (continued)
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The head of the Trading Entity is the Chief Executive Officer 
appointed in terms of section 36(3)(b) of the Public Finance 
Management Act, Act 1 of 1999.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation, 
integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements and 
other financial information included in this report. In presenting 
the accompanying financial statements, South African 
Statements of General Accepted Accounting Practice have been 
followed; applicable accounting assumptions have been used 
while prudent judgement and estimates have been made.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the 
financial statements. The Chief Executive Officer has no reason 
to believe that the company will not be a going concern in 
the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash 
resources. The financial statements support the viability of the 
company.

Statement of Responsibility

The financial statements are being audited by the Auditor 
General, which was given unrestricted access to all financial 
records and related data. 

The annual financial statements on pages 39 to 111 were 
approved by the Chief Executive Officer on 30 July 2013 and are 
signed on their behalf by:

Ms Dawn Robertson
Chief Executive Officer
Dinokeng Project
30 July 2013
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The Dinokeng Trading Entity is a Trading Entity of the Department 
of Economic Development with a separate Accounting Officer, 
the Chief Executive Officer for the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng projects, reporting to 
the MEC for Economic Development. 

The Chief Executive Officer is supported by the Chief Director: 
Cradle of Humankind WHS and Dinokeng, Chief Financial 
Officer, Programme Manager and staff.

The Department of Economic Development and Gauteng 
Tourism Authority provides corporate services in the areas of 
HumanRresource Management and Information Technology 
Management in terms of a Service Level Agreement. 

The Trading Entity operates in a complex multi-disciplinary 
environment in collaboration and partnership with various 
agencies and stakeholder groupings.

Audit Committee
Audit committee meetings took place regularly during the 
course of the financial year.

Corporate Governance Report

Internal audit
Internal audit tasks were performed by the Gauteng Department 
of Finance Gauteng Audit Services based on the global risks 
identified by the Senior Management of the Dinokeng Projects.

Risk management
The Senior Management of the Dinokeng Project has identified 
its global risks and mapped the necessary control measures 
for these risks. Residual values have been computed for the 
identified risks on the basis of the probability of occurrence and 
the effectiveness of the control measures. The internal audit 
programme entails audit of the identified global risks.

Fraud prevention
Although fraud has not been identified by Senior Management 
as a global risk for the Dinokeng Project due the strength of 
internal control processes, the Fraud Prevention Plan of the 
Department of Economic Development and Gauteng Tourism 
Authority applies to the Dinokeng Project.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CRADLE OF HUMANKIND AND DINOKENG

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2013

The Audit Committee consists of the external members listed 
hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least 
two times per annum as per provisions of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of 
Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), five meetings 
were held during the current year, i.e. three meetings for 
Quarterly Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial) 
and two meetings to review and discuss the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Auditor General Report.

Name of Member Number of  
Meetings Attended

Vishnu Naicker (Chairperson) 5

Tshidi Molala (Member) 5

Wayne Poggenpoel (Member) 4

Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Member Mr. Wayne Poggenpoel did not attend 
one meeting since he was appointed after the first quarter 
reporting period. However, all meetings were quorate.

Executive Members:
In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, the Officials 
listed hereunder are obliged to attend the meetings of the Audit 
Committee:

Compulsory Attendees Number of  
Meetings Attended

Dawn Robertson  

(Acting Chief Executive Officer)

4

Yaseen Asmal  

(Chief Financial Officer)

5

Matome Shotholo  

(Chief Risk Officer)

4

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Audit Committee noted that the Acting Chief Executive 
Officer did not attend one meeting.  However a letter of apology 
was tendered with a duly authorised representative attending 
on his behalf. Therefore, the Audit Committee is satisfied that 
the Trading Entity adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit 
Committee Charter. 

The Members of the Audit Committee met with the Senior 
Management of the Trading Entity and Internal Audit, collectively 
to address risks and challenges facing the Trading Entity. A 
number of in-committee meetings were held to address control 
weaknesses and conflicts with the Trading Entity.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from section 38 (1) (a) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports 
that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its 
Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance 
with this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein.

Report of the Audit Committee (continued)

The effectiveness of internal control 
The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control 
environment has continued to improve during the year under 
review. However, there are still some concerns with the level 
of internal controls within the Entity where evidence of lapses 
of effective monitoring and enforcement by Management were 
observed.

During the year under review, several deficiencies in the system 
of internal control and deviations were reported by the Auditor-
General South Africa. In certain instances, the matters reported 
previously have not been fully and satisfactorily addressed. 

The quality of in year management and monthly / quarterly 
reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of 
Revenue Act 
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality 
of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the 
Accounting Officer of the Trading Entity during the year under 
review, in compliance with the statutory reporting framework.

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report of the Audit Committee (continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has:

• reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial  
 Statements  to be included in the Annual Report, with the  
 Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer;
• reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and  
 Management’s response thereto; 
• reviewed the Entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory  
 provisions; and 
• reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-
General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements, and 
is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements 
be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-
General.

Internal Audit 
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit plans 
addresses a clear alignment with the major risks, adequate 
information systems coverage, a good balance between 

different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, 
performance and follow-up audits.

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in 
the communication between the Executive Management, the 
Auditor General and the Internal Audit Function, which has 
strengthened the Corporate Governance initiatives.

The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the 
Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal level as expected by 
the Audit Committee, it requires more capacity and skills. This 
is being addressed and corrective action is being implemented.

Risk Management
Progress on Entity’s risk management was reported to the 
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.  The Audit Committee 
is satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving 
attention, although there are areas that still require 
improvement.  Management should take full responsibility for 
the entire Enterprise Risk Management process and support 
the Chief Risk Officer.
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Report of the Audit Committee (continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Forensic Investigations
The Audit Committee is not satisfied that the forensic 
investigations are properly reported with age-analysis of all 
reported issues indicated.  Details of results in respect of 
investigations conducted as a result of calls through the fraud 
hotline were not provided to the Committee. 

One-on-One Meetings with the Acting Chief Executive Officer
The Audit Committee has met with the Acting Chief Executive 
Officer for the entity to address unresolved issues.

Evaluation of the Annual Report
The Committee has: -
• Reviewed and discussed the financial statements.
• Reviewed the accounting policies and practices.
• Reviewed and discussed with the management the annual  
 financial statements financial statements and performance  
 information included in the Annual Report.

The monitoring of the entity’s performance is a key function 
of the executive management of the entity. The Committee 
has no direct line responsibility for the entity’s performance 

measurement. However, the Committee has ensured, 
principally through the internal audit function, that the systems 
of performance measurement and reporting, as well as the 
systems of internal control that underpin the performance 
management framework of the Entity, remain robust and are 
addressed routinely in the audit plans. The Committee also 
obtained assurance from management and internal audit that 
the entity’s performance management system adequately and 
effectively report appropriate and relevant information. 

The Committee has accepted the responsibility to ensure 
adequate reporting on performance information and the 
policies and that the procedures are of a standard acceptable 
to the entity. The Committee’s mandate and charter has been 
altered to acknowledge this responsibility. The Committee 
has taken note of the Performance Information Report which 
compares the actual performance of the entity against the 
approved Business Plan for the financial year, the strategic 
objectives, key performance indicators and targets set. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Conclusion
The Committee concurs in general with the conclusions of the 
Auditor-General on the Annual Financial Report of the Entity 
for the year ended 31st March 2013.

The Committee has once again taken note of the concerns of 
the Auditor General and accepts that there is further room for 
improvement in the area of human resources management and 
will monitor the going concern of the entity.  As in previous years 
the Audit Committee will ensure that the internal audit plan 
addresses these issues and will monitor the implementation 
of the recommendations contained in the Auditor General’s 
Report. 

I would like to thank all members of the Committee for their 
contribution and the professional way in which meetings were 
conducted. To the Honorable MEC, Acting Chief Executive Officer 
and the staff of the Entity, the Committee wishes to express its 
sincere appreciation for the progress made this year and the 
manner in which the Entity engaged with the Audit Committee.

 

Mr. Vishnu Naicker
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31st July 2013
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General Review of the Dinokeng Project
The year 2012/13 was without a doubt one of the most 
challenging years for the Dinokeng Project. This followed 
the decision to physically merge the Dinokeng and Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Projects with the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority in December 2011. As a result the key 
challenge faced during the year was to ensure that processes 
and systems were put in place towards developing an integrated 
tourism entity for the province while at the same time ensuring 
effective and timely implementation of the budgeted projects 
of the Dinokeng Project. Initially this meant having separate 
multi-functional and multi-organizational work-streams 
working towards specific objectives in terms of an integrated 
organization. This work also included the legal due-diligence 
on the options and challenges that would be faced in terms of 
legal merger process in addition to developing an integrated 
organization structure for the new entity. 

However most of these processes were soon put on hold, as it 
became very clear that a Business Case was required to ensure 
the appropriate approvals were received from the relevant 
authorities including the Executive Authority for Economic 
Development, Gauteng Treasury and National Treasury. An 

Accounting Officer’s Report

internal task team was set up to manage the process of 
developing the Business Case for the merger process and the 
final Business Case was forwarded for the Executive Authority’s 
approval towards the end of March 2013. 

Mergers are complex processes even in the most advanced and 
sophisticated organizations, given the dynamics of dealing and 
managing people from different organizational cultures who 
have different expectations of how the process should unfold. 
The current situation is no different from other such merger 
processes and the year under review has seen huge challenges in 
managing and motivating staff during this period of change and 
uncertainty. However various processes and forums have been 
used to ensure that staff participation and communication were 
encouraged in terms of the unfolding merger process. Obviously 
in retrospect some of this interactions and engagements could 
have been better handled and implemented.

The other key issue that the organization faced over the year was 
the fact that it had to continue implementing its mandate with 
a much reduced budget compared to previous financial years. 
Even more importantly, the integration of some functions like 
Administration and Marketing within the three existing entities 
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meant that the existing budget had to be reprioritized towards 
key areas such as Destination Marketing and Infrastructure 
Development. As a result, the organization did not have the 
luxury of implementing many other desirable projects which 
may have had greater impacts, despite having requested 
rollovers from the previous financial year. 

It is within this context that one must view the implementation 
of projects during the 2012/13 financial year. In terms of non-
financial performance, the Dinokeng Project achievement 
stood at 80%, at the end of 2012/13, with the remaining 20% 
of the projects being at various stages of completion. The 
key achievements included the continued and successful 
management of the Tourism Safety Monitors Project in the 
Dinokeng area that continued to temporarily employ 200 
local community members as Tourism Safety Monitors in the 
Dinokeng area. This is in addition to the 36 jobs that were 
maintained through the opening of the Dinokeng Game Reserve 
in partnership with the Dinokeng Game Reserve Management 
Association early on. In addition the working for Fire managed 
to sustain the 50 temporary jobs in the Dinokeng Game Reserve. 

 Accounting Officer’s Report (continued)

52 SMME’s have also been trained and supported during the 
year in coordination with the Tourism Enterprise Propeller and 
the Gauteng Enterprise Propeller. 30 crafters have also been 
initiated into the arts and craft project being implemented in 
the Dinokeng area.

In terms of Dinokeng signage plan, 241 signages were procured 
for installation across the Dinokeng area. Phase A of status quo 
assessment was completed towards developing tourism based 
economic models for Cullinan. In terms of the Dinokeng Game 
Reserve, construction of the gateways and the interconnectivity 
between gateways has also been totally completed. 

Together with the Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA), significant 
progress has been made in terms of marketing the province by 
submitting the final draft of the Provincial Destination Marketing 
Strategy for final sign-off to the relevant authorities. Similarly 
the final brand strategy for the province Strategy produced and 
adopted. In terms of the Dinokeng destination, all of the above 
achievements have contributed towards attracting 90,420 
international visitors to the Dinokeng area during 2012, against 
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a target of 127,177. The average length of stay for international 
tourism was also found to be 1.63 nights against a target of 2 
nights increasingly reflective of the negative global economic 
climate that may have had its impact on the overall value of 
discretionary spending of foreign tourists. However in terms of 
domestic tourism Dinokeng attracted 583, 744 domestic trips 
against a target of 147,317 for 2012 which shows increased 
buoyancy in the local tourism market. In terms of total revenue 
generated from tourism activities, Dinokeng managed to 
generate R415.3 million against a target of R912.9 for 2012. It 
is however important to mention that these initial projections 
were benchmarked with the more well known and marketed 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site. As a result a review 
of these projections is necessary before a clear trend can be 
deciphered from these numbers over a period of time.

In terms of major challenges, the process to construct/realign 
2.7 km of the Road P2-5 in Cullinan area has also seen delays 
due to legal objections been raised by certain key stakeholders 
in the area. The legal issues are currently being resolved in 
coordination with other relevant stakeholders and only the site 
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establishment could take place during the year. Negotiations 
with Petra Diamond Mine and the Department of Public Works 
to ensure the transfer of tourism relevant properties from them 
to the Gauteng Provincial Government have also moved at a 
slow pace. Continued engagements with these stakeholders 
will continue to ensure the appropriate lands are transferred 
as soon as possible. 

The process of facilitating the expansion of the Dinokeng Game 
Reserve is also progressing at a slow pace despite a three 
member expansion committee being setup to manage the 
process earlier on. The process of negotiating and allaying the 
negative sentiments of key landowners in the area will continue 
to ensure the project is sustainable. The process of facilitating 
the translocation of bull elephants to the Dinokeng Game 
Reserve has also been delayed as the required administrative 
requirements for the transfer has not been met by potential 
sources. Engagements with other potential sources will 
continue during the next financial year. The essential oils 
projects in the Dinokeng has been slow to progress due to the 
need resolve legal issue and rights with key landowners and as 
a result the process will be resolved in the new financial year.
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General review of the state of financial affairs
• Spending trends of each programme

 

Spending per economic Classification
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Of the total actual spending of R37 877 000, R11 952 000 was 
spent on Compensation of Employees and R25 925 000 was 
spent on Goods and Services.

Most of the under-spending especially the Executive 
Management budget, was in relation to unfilled or vacant 
posts. The work of the Tourism Hubs Unit was also slow to 
progress mostly in relation to the Road P2-5 project, where 
the delays in the appointment of the constructor for the 
construction of road P2-5 and delays due to legal action by 
certain landowners delayed the final project implementation. 
In addition the work on the Roodeplaat Dam Tourism Hub 
did not progress as expected due to the poor quality of the 
initial work done by the Service Provider. However the work 
was rectified and an Expression of Interest was advertised 
as opposed to submitting an application for a Public Private 
Partnership project to the National Treasury. Although not 
impacting on the core areas of work, the vacancies in the 
Monitoring and Evaluation Unit has also resulted in under-
spending in that unit as the Stakeholder Engagement 
and Cooperative Governance Framework was put on hold 
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especially in the context of the unfolding merger process. 
A request for rollovers had been made, amounting to 
R26 396 529 million that will be utilised for accruals and 
commitments. The commitments are made up of contracts 
entered into the prior financial year and amounts to 
R 17 525 070 million. 

The completion of road P2-5 project, the craft production and 
development project, and the self drive routes are some of the 
projects that relate to the roll-overs. 

Capacity Constrains and challenges facing the Department 
The merger process between the three entities has resulted 
in the fact that most of the vacant posts have not yet been 
filled due to a freeze on recruitment or the creation of new 
posts. This has seen the current Chief Executive Officer of 
the Gauteng Tourism Authority currently acting as the Chief 
Executive Officer for Dinokeng Project also. With approvals 
from the Executive Authority, a single Chief Financial officer 
was also appointed towards July 2012 to manage the Finances 
of all 3 entities. In addition a critical post that was not filled 
permanently was the post of the Programme Managers for 
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Dinokeng, which has to a certain point negatively impacted the 
work of the Programme. The other key vacancies include the 
posts of Deputy Directors for Events unit and the Monitoring 
and Evaluation Unit which together with other vacant posts has 
resulted in a vacancy rate of 27%. As a result, where possible 
officials from the other 2 entities being merged have been 
utilized to fill current vacancies. This applies especially to areas 
of similarity like the Finance, Administration, Research and 
Planning and the Marketing functions. Although not impacting 
on the core areas of work, the vacancies in the Monitoring and 
Evaluation Unit has also resulted in under-spending in that unit 
as the Stakeholder Engagement and Cooperative Governance 
Framework was put on hold especially in the context of the 
unfolding merger process. Increased emphasis is being placed 
in 2012/13 financial year to create temporary arrangements 
with staff to assist with projects in areas where there is a dire 
need of capacity.

Brief commentary on the interim financial statement 
The total funds available for use in the 2012-2013 financial year 
amounted to R70 399 000. This includes Approved voted funds 
of R48 100 000 and approved rollover of R22 299 000.
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This resulted in a total expenditure at the end of the 2012-2013 
financial year of R49 247 000 including an amount of R4 300 000 
for the payment to The Dinokeng Game Reserve Management 
Authority for operational losses and a bank balance of 
R26 431 701.82 as of 31 March 2013. As a result close to 39% of 
the approved budget could not be spent during the 2012-2013 
financial year but have been committed. Roll over application 
to the amount of R26 396 529 million will be made to finance 
these commitments, which amount to R17 525 070 million and 
accruals amounting to R8 871 459.

Public Private Partnerships 
The Dinokeng Project had envisaged the development of the 
Roodeplaat Dam Tourism Hub and the Cullinan Tourism Hub 
as purely Public Private Partnership’s projects. Advanced 
work has been concluded for both these projects in terms 
of finalising feasibility studies that would then be used to 
obtain National Treasury Approval (TA 1). However the recent 
challenges faced by the Dinokeng Projects sister concern in 
managing the Maropeng concession has necessitated a need 
to halt this process while alternative funding mechanisms are 
investigated against the background of growing uncertainty in 
the financial markets that have reduced an appetite for these 
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kinds of projects. As a result there are currently no Public 
Private Partnership projects being actively implemented by the 
Dinokeng Project.

Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued 
During the year only 1 project was put on hold. This project 
was the Essential Oils project which had to be put on hold 
following delays in signing a user rights agreement for the land 
concerned. Legal advice is being sought in resolving the issues 
pertaining to the land concerned. It has the impact of preventing 
local community members gaining access to entrepreneurial 
skills and a means of livelihood in the area.

New or proposed activities
The 2013/14 financial year will see the legal merger process 
between the 3 entities unfolding with the development 
and implementation of the Merger Integration Plan. The 
2013/14 financial year will also see the development and 
implementation of joint budgets and plans for all three entities. 
As a result most of the Gauteng Tourism Authority projects and 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site projects will now 
be included together with the Dinokeng projects. However all 
these changes have been factored into the 2013/14 planning 
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and budgeting processes, and will see more focus on provincial 
tourism infrastructure projects as well as marketing and 
promotional activities.

Supply chain management
The entity has an established Supply Chain Management 
Policy and procedure. The SCM unit has been operating in 
accordance with the Shared Service Model managed by the 
Gauteng Department of Finance. Many elements of the Procure 
to Payment cycle are managed by the Gauteng Department of 
Finance (GDF). GDF are in process of decentralizing many of 
these functions, however the entity is not part of the current 
phase for decentralization and are still heavily reliant on 
GDF for effective implementation on procure to payment 
transactions. The entity, for the period under review, has been 
operating in accordance to all SCM practice notes issued by 
National Treasury. 

The current merger process has also impacted in the day to 
day activities of SCM. There however has been an attempt 
to synergise policies and procedures pertaining to SCM in 
anticipation for the final merged entity.
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Future Plans and Action of the Department
As indicated above, the 2013/14 financial year will see the 
legal merger process between the 3 entities unfolding with the 
development and implementation of the Merger Integration 
Plan. The 2013/14 financial year will also see the development 
and implementation of joint budgets and plans for all three 
entities. As a result most of the Gauteng Tourism Authority 
projects and Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site projects 
will now be included together with the Dinokeng projects. 
However all these changes have been factored into the 2013/14 
planning and budgeting processes. It is also to be expected that 
more changes are possible as part of the unfolding of the legal 
merger process.

Events after the reporting date
There were no new events of significance after the reporting 
date.

Acknowledgement
The continued perseverance and dedication of staff and key 
stakeholders both within and outside the public sector is 
acknowledged in the accomplishments of the Dinokeng Project 
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over the last year. The organization will continue to provide and 
maintain a high level of service in coordination with these key 
internal and external stakeholders. 

Conclusion
The Dinokeng Project is still on track in terms of delivering on 
the strategic goals highlighted in the Master Plan for the area, 
as highlighted by some of the key achievements mentioned 
here. However, better processes and ways of handling and 
negating the challenges encountered during the current year 
will be sought as part of the merger process between the 
3 entities.

Approval and Sign off

Ms D Robertson
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Dinokeng Project

Accounting Officer’s Report (continued)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2012

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

  Note R’000 R’000

   

Revenue   37 877  48 063

Transfer and subsidies  2 37 877 48 063

Total Expenditure  3 ( 37 877) (48 063)

Administrative Expenses   (9 610) (8 987)

Staff cost   (11 952) (9 832)

Gifts, sponsorships and donations  12  – (15 817)

Other operating expenses   (4 456) (8 555)

Subsidy Paid   (11 859)  (4 872)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year    0 0 
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar
   2013 2012
  Note R’000 R’000
   
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets   7 031 414
Property, Plant and Equipment  4 269 414
Investments  16 6 762 –

Current Assets    31 110 30 113
Loans and receivables   6 21 71
Work in Progress  4.1 4 654 
Cash and cash equivalents  5 26 435 30 042

TOTAL ASSETS   38 141  30 527

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity   0 0
Accumulated surplus   0 0

Current Liabilities   38 141  30 527
Trade and other Payables  7 9 059 11 645
Deferred income     28 910 18 687
Provisions  8 172 195

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   38 141  30 527
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2013

   Accu-

   mulated 

   Surplus 

   /(deficit) Total

   R’000 R’000

   

Balance as at 31 March 2011   (8 009) (8 009)

Surplus    14 800 14 800

Movement in unspent    (18 143) (18 143)

Prior year period error    11 352 11 352

Balance as at 31 March 2012    

Surplus for the year   0 0

Balance as at 31 March 2013    0 0
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2013

   31 Mar 31 Mar

   2013 2012

  Note R’000 R’000

   

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Cash receipts from customers     48 100  32 526

Cash paid to suppliers    (40 291)  (63 361)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow generated by operation  9 7 809  (30 835)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Investment   16 (6 762) –

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  4 (4 654) (373)

Net cash outflow from investment activities    (11 416) (373)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents   (3 607) (31 208)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   30 042 61 250

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  5 26 435  30 042
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1, ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 Reporting framework
The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with South African Statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and in the manner 
required by Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA)

1.2  Basis of preparation
The Annual financial statements of the Trading entity are 
presented in South African Rands, rounded to the nearest 
thousand.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis, except where otherwise indicated. The 
accounting policies set out below has been consistently 
applied to all periods presented in these financial statements. 

1.3  Revenue and Deferred Income
Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable 
assurance that:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

•  the trading entity will comply with the conditions 
attached to them; and

• the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods 
necessary to match them with the related costs that they are 
intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation 
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of 
giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future 
related costs is recognised as income of the period in which it 
becomes receivable. Grants relate to assets are presented as 
a credit in the Statement of Comprehensive income over the 
life of the assets.

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by 
reducing the deferred income balance by the amount 
repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would 
have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of 
the grant is recognised immediately as an expense.
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A government grant that is unconditional, these circumstances 
may warrant recognising a grant in profit or loss of the period 
in which the entity qualifies to receive it

Revenue
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the trading entity and these benefits can 
be measured reliably. 

Revenue is recognised on the following basis:
•  Voted funds are recognised when it is probable that 

approved cash allocation will flow to the entity.
•  Funds with specific conditions are accounted for as 

deferred income and realised to the statement of 
comprehensive income as those conditions are met. 
The funds are recognised to the extent that there are no 
further obligations arising from the receipt of these funds.

•  Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis. 

Management Fee
Management fee is charged as a percentage of total relevant 
operating expenditure of the Department of Economic 
Development and Gauteng Tourism Authority.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

1.4  Property, Plant and Equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially 
recognised at cost which includes any costs directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the trading entity 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of PPE are shown at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in 
value.

Subsequent expenditure including the cost of replacing 
parts of the asset, other than day-to-day servicing costs, are 
included in the cost of the asset when incurred if it is probable 
that such expenditure will result in future economic benefits 
associated with the item flowing to the trading entity, and the 
cost is reliably measurable.
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An asset is depreciated from the time that it is available for 
use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date 
the asset (or disposal trading entity into which the asset falls) 
is classified as held for sale or included in a discontinued 
operation and the date that the asset is derecognised.

The depreciable amount of an asset, being the cost of the 
asset less the residual value, is allocated on a straight line 
basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. 

Residual value is the estimated amount that an entity would 
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the 
estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age 
and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.
Whilst residual value is equal to or exceeds the carrying value, 
depreciation is discontinued. Each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment with a cost which is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods 
applied to assets are reviewed at each financial year end based 
on relevant market information and management consideration.

The useful lives of computer equipment is 3 years 
The useful lives of office furniture and equipment is 5 years 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on derecognition of the asset is included in the statement of 
comprehensive income in other operating costs in the year the 
asset is derecognised.

Items of property, plant and equipment are assessed for 
impairment as detailed in the accounting policy note on 
impairment.

1.5  Impairment of assets
The carrying amount of the trading entity assets are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment. 
If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use. 
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset 
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating 
unit to which the asset belongs. 

The excess of an asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable 
amount is recognised as an impairment loss in the statement 
of comprehensive income. 

An impairment recognised previously may be reversed when 
estimates change as a result of an event occurring after the 
impairment was initially recognised. Such a reversal may not 
increase the carrying value above what it would have been had 
no impairment loss been recognised. 

Reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income.

1.6  Prepayments
Prepayments are recognised when amounts are granted to the 
services providers or executing departments to execute long 

term projects on behalf of the entity as per agreed specified 
conditions. Prepaid costs are initially recognised at an amount 
equal to the fair-value adjustment on initial recognition of the 
amount that gives rise to the prepayment. These costs are 
amortised to the statement of comprehensive income over the 
period in which services are rendered by the service providers 
or executing departments.

1.7  Provisions and contingencies
  Provisions are recognised when:
•  the company has a present obligation as a result of a 

past event;
•  it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; and

•  a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the 
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a 
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, 
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it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if 
the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be 
treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the 
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation 
under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a 
provision.

1.8  Accruals
Accruals represent expenditure that have been incurred but 
not paid for at year end.

1.9  Retirement benefits Costs
The trading entity provides retirement benefits for its 
employees through a defined contribution plan for government 
employees. These benefits are funded by both employer and 
employee contributions. Employer contributions to the fund 
are expensed when money is paid to the fund. No provision 
is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of 
the Trading Entity. Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the 

financial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not in 
the financial statements of the trading entity.

1.9.1  Short-term employee benefits 
The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the 
statement of comprehensive income in the reporting period 
when the payment is made. Short-term employee benefits, 
that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation, are 
deferred until they can be reliably measured and then expensed. 
 
1.9.2  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when 
the payment is made.
 
1.10  Financial Instruments
Recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are initially recognised on the balance 
sheet when the entity becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially measured at fair value, which includes 
directly attributable transaction costs in the case of financial 
assets and liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss. 
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Subsequent measurement for each category is specified in 
the sections below.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised where the right to receive 
cash from the asset has expired, or the trading entity 
has transferred the asset and the transfer qualifies for 
derecognition. 

A transfer qualifying for derecognition occurs when the trading 
entity transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash 
flows of the financial asset, or retains the rights but assumes 
a contractually obligation to pay those cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement, or where the trading entity has transferred control 
or substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Where the 
trading entity has transferred its rights to the cashflows from an 
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the 
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the trading entity’s 
continuing involvement in the asset. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

An exchange between the trading entity and an existing lender 
of debt instruments with substantially different terms or a 
substantial modification to an existing financial liability is 
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

The resulting difference between the carrying value on 
derecognition of the financial instrument and the amount 
received or paid is taken to the statement of comprehensive 
income.

Fair value
The fair value of instruments traded in an active market 
is determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask 
prices at close of business on the balance sheet date. Where 
there is no active market, fair value is determined using 
valuation techniques. Such valuation techniques include using 
recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to current 
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market value of other similar instruments, discounted cash 
flow analysis and option pricing models. The fair value of 
short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest 
rate may be measured at original invoice amount unless the 
effect of imputing interest is significant.

Financial assets
The trade date method of accounting has been adopted for 
‘regular way’ purchases or sales of financial assets.

The trading entity categorises its financial assets in the 
following categories: loans and receivables and at fair 
value through profit or loss. The classification depends on 
the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial 
assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables 
After initial recognition, such assets are carried at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in income when 
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and 
through the amortisation process.

Investments
After initial recognition such assets are carried at Fair value, using 
the effective market rate. Where a market rate is not obtainiable 
the nominal value of the share is used. Gains and losses are 
recognised in income when the investment are derecognised or 
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Investment in associates
Investments in associates on initial recognition the investment 
in an associate is recognised at cost, and the carrying amount 
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of 
the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. 
Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying 
amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying 
amount may also be necessary for changes in the investor’s 
proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in 
the investee are other comprehensive income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at face value. Cash 
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held in 
current accounts with registered and approved banks.
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Trade Receivables
Trade and other receivables comprise all trade and non-trade 
debtors other than financial services debtors. Short duration 
receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at 
original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest 
is significant.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities consist of interest bearing borrowings, 
trade and other payables, bank overdrafts and interest bearing 
money market borrowings, liabilities categorised at fair value 
through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are recognised at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which 
are measured at fair value.
Finance costs on financial liabilities at amortised cost are 
expensed in the statement of comprehensive income in the 
period in which they are incurred using the effective interest 
rate method. In addition, gains and losses on these financial 
liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income when the liability is derecognised. Gains and losses 

on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss arise 
from fair value movements and related transaction costs on 
these liabilities.

These gains and losses are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

Trade Payables
Trade payables are stated at cost which approximates the fair 
value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods 
and services rendered. 

Impairment
Financial assets
The trading entity assesses at each balance sheet date 
whether objective evidence exists that a financial asset or a 
trading entity of financial assets is impaired. 

Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that assets carried at amortised 
cost are impaired, the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and present value of 
future cash flows discounted at its original effective interest 
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rate. When impaired, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced through the use of provision for impairment account, 
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Assets together with the associated 
provision for impairment are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery.

The trading entity first assesses whether objective evidence 
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, and individually or collectively for 
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined 
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or 
not, the asset is included in a trading entity of financial assets 
with similar credit risk characteristics and that trading entity 
of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed and for which an 
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not 
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss 
decreases due to an event occurring after recognition of the 
impairment, the previously recognised impairment loss is 

reversed. Such a reversal is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying value 
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost as if the asset 
has never been impaired at the reversal date. 

Trade and other receivables
For trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is 
established when there is objective evidence that the trading 
entity will not be able to collect all amounts due according to 
the original terms of the receivables. Indicators of impairment 
include long overdue accounts, significant financial difficulties 
of the debtors and defaults in payments.

1.11  Related parties
The trading entity transacts with Department of Economic 
Development, Dinokeng and other Government departments
for the supply and acquisition of services under normal 
trading terms. The nature and extent of these transactions are 
disclosed in note 11 of the financial statements.

1.12 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in 
contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of 
any applicable legislation, including:
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• The PFMA, or
•  Any provincial legislation providing for procurement 

procedures in that provincial government.
     
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that 
was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 
care been exercised. 

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged 
against income in the period in which they are incurred.

1.13  Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to 
conform to changes in presentation in the current year, limited 
to audited figures. Reasonably, calculated, comparative 
figures are disclosed in the notes to the Annual Financial 
Statements for better understanding of changes that have 
occurred in presentation.

1.14  Taxation
In terms of section 10.1 of the Income Tax Act, Act Number 59 
of 1962, the Entity, as a government institution, is not liable 

for any income taxation. Employees’ tax is paid over to SARS 
by the Gauteng Department of Finance at the time when the 
employee expenses are programmatically recognised. 

1.15  Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity 
with Statements of Statements of SA GAAP requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgment in the process of 
applying the company’s accounting policies in areas that 
involve a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas 
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on 
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions 
they may undertake in the future, actual results may differ 
from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the next 
financial year are listed below:
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Estimates
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an 
estimate based on the information available. 

Property, plant and equipment
Management has made certain estimates with regards to the 
determination of estimated useful lives and residual values of 
items of property, plant and equipment.

Judgments
Impairment of trade receivables
Management has applied judgment in estimating the extent of 
any impairment deemed necessary on the gross carrying value 
of trade receivables and have impaired all accounts in arrears 
for a period longer than normal expected trading terms.

1.16 New standards and interpretations issued but not yet 
effective
Standards in issue not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, 
the Entity has not applied the following new standards, 
interpretations and amendments that have been issued but 
are not yet effective.

Standard or Interpretation Annual periods 
beginning on or after

IFRS 9 
Financial 
Instruments

New standard that 
forms the first 
part of a three part 
project to replace 
IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: 
Recognition and 
Measurement.

1 January 2015

The Entity will adopt the above standards, interpretations 
and amendments where applicable to the Entity on their 
effective dates. Management expects that the adoption of the 
standards listed above will have no material impact on the 
annual financial statements in the period of initial application.

1.17  Accounting for Black Economic Empowerment (BEE) 
transactions
The South African interpretation (AC 503) effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 2010 is not applicable 
for the trading entity. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2012

     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

   

2. REVENUE   

 Voted funds   48 100 32 526

 Approved roll over   22 299 30 337

 Movement in Deferred Income     (32 522) (14 800)

 Total    37 877 48 063 

3. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING EXPENDITURE:   

 Gifts, donations and sponsorship   – 15 817

 Marketing Costs   5 026 5 475

 Technical and consulting services    3760 8 071

 Auditors remuneration   361 423

 Depreciation   145 36

 Computer Equipment   140 34

 Office equipment   5 2
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     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

3. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR INCLUDES 

 THE FOLLOWING EXPENDITURE: (continued)   

 Employee costs   11 952 9 832

 Short term employee benefits   10 690 8 685

 Pension and medical costs   1 262 1 147

 Other operating expenses    1 654 3 537

 Rental Expense   2 203 

 Security   170 

 Cleaning   169 

 Parking   163 

 Electricity paid   415   

 Subsidy paid   11 859  

 Total Expenditure    37 877 48 063
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    Office Computer 
    Equipment Equipment Total
    R’000 R’000 R’000

4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
      Cost Price  – 339 339
      Accumulated Depreciation  –  (262) (262)

 Net book Value  –  77  77

      Current year movements  –   
      Depreciation for the year  (2) (34) (36)
 Accumulated depreciation  – 66 66
 Asset Retirement  – (66) (66)
  Additions  24 349  373

 Balance at 31 March 2012  22 392  414

 Made up as follows:    
      Cost Price  24 622 646
      Accumulated Depreciation  (2)  (230)  (232)

 Net book Value at March 2012  22  392  414
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    Office Computer 

    Equipment Equipment Total

    R’000 R’000 R’000

4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

 Balance at 1 April 2012     

      Cost Price  24 622 646

       Accumulated Depreciation  (2) (230)  (232)

 Net book Value at March 2012  22 392  414

      Current year movements  –   

      Depreciation for the year  (5) (140) (145)

 Additions           

 Balance at 31 March 2013  17 252  269

 Made up as follows:    

      Cost Price  24 622 646

      Accumulated Depreciation  (7)  (370) (377)

 Net book Value at March 2013  17  252 269
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4.1  Capital work in Progress

  Work in progress amounting R4 654 000 relates to the Gateways that are been built within the DGRMA, these gateways 

will be transferred upon completion which will take place within the 2013/14 financial year.

     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    

 Bank    26 432 30 039

 Petty cash   3 3

     26 435 30 042

6. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

 Staff advances   – –

 Employees   4 7

 Ex employees   61 64

 Provision for bad debts   (44) 0

 Total    21 71
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     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   

 Accruals   1 747 5 275 

 Trade and other payables   7 124 6 118

 Deferred Income – Government Grant    28 910 18 687

 Provisions   186 249

 Other    2 3

 Total    37 969  30 332

7.1 Staff Accruals   

 Staff leave accrual   

 Opening balance   249 211

 Provision utilised in current year   (249) (211)

 Leave pay provision made during the year   186 249

 Closing balance   186 249
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7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
  Leave accrual is recognised for leave due to employees at year end. The accrual for leave is calculated by multiplying 

the number of leave days due to each employee by a daily rate based on the total cost to the company. The accrual is 
expected to realise within the following year when the employees request leave or is paid out.

     31 Mar 31 Mar
     2013 2012
     R’000 R’000

8. PROVISIONS   
 Performance bonus   
 Opening balance   195 174
 Provision utilised in current year   (195) (174)
 Performance bonus provision made during the year   172 178

 Closing balance   172 178

 Provision for Court Case   – 17

 Total Provisions   172 195

  Provision for court case relates to legal fees in incurred in the process relocating a family that was residing in Dinokeng 

Game Reserve. The payment amount is estimated to be R17 000 (2012).
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     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

9. RECONCILIATION OF CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS    

 Surplus/(Deficit) before tax   0 0

 Non-cash movements/working capital changes   7 809 (30 835)

 Depreciation   145  36

 Working Capital      

 Increase/(Decrease) in payables   (2 586) (2 179)

 Movement in unspent voted funds   10 223 (28 742)

 Increase/ (decrease) in provision relating to employee costs  (23) 21

 (Increase)/decrease in receivables   50  29

 Other    0  0
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10.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
 The related party relationships, transactions and balances as listed below exist.

     Total Balances
     Transactions (Creditor)  
     for the year Debtor
 31 March 2013
 Name
 Cradle of Humankind Trading Entity   13 775 (7 124)
 Gauteng Department of Economic Development   48 100  0
 Gauteng Tourism Authority   2 239 0
 Dinokeng Game Enterprise   6 755 0

     Total 
     Transactions Outstanding 
     for the year Balance  
 31 March 2012      
 Name
 Cradle of Humankind Trading Entity   12 564  6 118
 Gauteng Department of Economic Development   32 526  0
 Gauteng Tourism Authority    875  0 
 Dinokeng Game Reserve Management Association   4 872 0
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10.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

 Relationship with related parties

 Gauteng Department of Economic Development

  Gauteng Department of Economic Development is the mother department for Dinokeng Game reserve. The above 

transactions relate to the voted funds allocated to the entity to implement its strategic objectives

 Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site

  Dinokeng and Cradle are sister trading entities administered under Department Of Economic Development to create a 

viable and attractive geo-spatial tourism destination in an area that will result in economic growth.

 Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA)

  Dinokeng and GTA are fellow entities administered under Department of Economic Development. Dinokeng performs 

collaborative marketing activities with Gauteng Tourism Authority as per the direction of the MEC. GTA also provides 

corporate services to COH WHS

 Dinokeng Game Enterprise

  Dinokeng donated game in the Dinokeng Game Enterprise in exchange for Shares. This arrangement is to facilitate the 

establishment of the big 5 game reserve in the Dinokeng area. 

 Key Management Personnel
  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors, Chief Executive officers and other senior management.
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10.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

       Bonus &  
    Employer Employer  Notch 
   Basic contribution: contribution:  Increase 
   Salary Pension Medical Allowances payable Total
 For the Year ended 31 March 2013 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000

 Chief Executive Officer      
      Robertson D 431  – – – 431
 Other senior management
      Asmal Y 204 – – – – 204
      Tlebere K  400 52 9 133 – 594
      Sathekge M 308 40 – 180 – 528
      Chettiar S  260  34 8 140 30 472
     Pillay M  259   34   3   148   29  473 
     Layton N  259  34   3   135  29   460
     Amod A  172  22  12   46  – 252

 Grand total  2 293 216   35   782   88   3 414 

  The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng Trading Entity and 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as they service both entities in meeting their strategic and 
operational objectives.
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10.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

 The previous CEO resigned end September 2011 and the Acting CEO was appointed effective from 1 October 2011.

    Employer Employer   

   Basic contribution: contribution:  Bonus 

   Salary Pension Medical Allowances payments Total

 For the Year ended 31 March 2012 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000

 Chief Executive Officer

      Jiyane F 226 26 7 194 0 453

      Robertson D 181 10 – 10 – 201

 Other senior management

      Tlebere K  167   22   4   79   –   272 

      Sathekge M  223   29  –  127  –   380 

      Chettiar S  209   27   8   109  –  353 

      Pillay M  226   27   3   102  –  357 

      Layton N 225  27  3   94  –  350 

      Singh RA  65   4   3   16   –  88 

 Grand total  1,598 173   28   655  –   2,454 
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10.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
  The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng Trading Entity and 

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as they service both entities in meeting their strategic and 
operational objectives.

  Mr K Tlebere and Mr M Sathekge are senior management seconded by DED to assist the entity with their operations 
during the reconfiguration process. DED is responsible for their personnel matters and their salaries.

11. COMMITMENTS
 Commitments in respect of capital and research cost not accrued at the reporting date:

     31 Mar 31 Mar
     2013 2012
     R’000 R’000

 Contracted for    17 025  18 663
 Not contracted for   532 –

 Total    17 557  18 663

  This expenditure will be funded from approved voted funds. 
 Within one year   17 025 18 663
 Thereafter   532 –

 Total    17 557 18 663
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12. DONATIONS

  Infrastructure assets and game were donated to the Dinokeng Management Association in terms of the Dinokeng Land 

Incorporation Agreements signed by the Landowners. 

 Total donations are made up of the following:

     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

      Restated

     R’000 R’000

 Perimeter Fencing   – 1 656

 Gateways    – 3 801

 Boundary Wall Construction   – 10 360

 Total    – 15 817

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
  At 31 March 2012, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and approximate the fair 

values due to short term maturities of these assets and liabilities as on the next page:
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 Financial instruments summarized as follows:

      

      Fair Value

 2013    R’000 R’000

 Asset

 Loans and receivables   21 21

 Cash and cash equivalents   26 435 26 435

 Shares in DGR Game Enterprises LTD    6 762  6 762 

 Total     33 218  33 218

 Liabilities    

 Trade and other payables   9 059  9 059 

 Provision   172 172

 Unspent voted funds    17 525  17 525

 Total     26 756  26 756
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

      Fair Value

 2012    R’000 R’000

 Loans and receivables   71 71

 Cash and cash equivalents   30 042 30 042

 Total     30 117  30 113

 Liabilities    

 Trade and other payables   11 645 11 645

 Provision   195 195

 Unspent voted funds    30 039  30 039

 Total     41 879  41 879

 The staff debt at the end of the 2012/13 financial year was R65 000.00. Provision for bad debt amounts to R44 000.00
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
  Risk management of financial instruments
   The Chief executive officer has approved and monitored the risk management processes, including cash flow 

management and reporting structures in relation to the management of financial instruments risk.

 These risks, and the way they are managed, are detailed on the next page.
 Liquidity risk
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity 

risk management within the entity focuses on working capital management, cash balances and cash flow planning, 
coupled with liquidity support arrangements with the department of Economic Development. 

 Credit risk
  The entity’s financial assets are trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the risk that 

counterparty will default on its obligations in respect of these instruments. The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not 
charge a fee for the service that it provided. The balance of receivable relates to the intercompany balance between the entity 
and Cradle of Human Kind World Heritage Site. Both these entities are managed by the same management.

 Market risk
   This is the risk that financial instruments fair values will fluctuate owing to changes in market prices.
  The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not have any financial instruments of which its value might be influenced 

by changes in market prices. The entity financial instruments are only receivables and payables between the entity and 
its related parties.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012



92

14.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

14.1  The entity is liable for a contingent liability resulting from certain employees that have capped leave. These employees 

are entitled to a maximum of five days of leave in each year from their capped leave. The amount is paid on the 

occurrence of future events that are not merely controlled by the entity. It is paid upon death, retirement and when an 

employee resigns the entity is not liable for payment.

     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

 Capped leave   48 42

     48 42

15.  OTHER DISCLOSURE

15.1  Material Losses through Criminal Conduct, Irregular, Fruitless 

and Wasteful Expenditure.

 Opening Balance   15 817 –

 Irregular Expenditure   4 654  15 817

 Total    20 471 15 817
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15.  OTHER DISCLOSURE (continued)

  The irregular expenditure is as a result of Assets that are deemed donated as the risk and rewards of ownership has 

passed. The entity did not obtain prior approval from the legislature to make such donations as disclosed in note 12.

15.2  Going Concern

  The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The 

entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. This basis presumes that funds will 

be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent 

obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

 Shares in DGR Game Enterprises LTD (Cost)   6 762  –

  Total    6 762  –
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE (continued)

 Class of shares: B Shares 

 Total number of shares: 7,421,036 Issued

 Nominal Price: .911234c per share as at date of issue

 Acquisition Date: September 2012

  The investment is accounted for in terms of IAS 8, as at the 31 March 2013 the financial statements of the Associates 

were not available for the apportionment of the share of profits or losses.

17.  TRANSFER AND SUBSIDIES PAID

  The trading entity has paid a subsidy to the Dinokeng Management association this subsidy paid is in line with the 

requirements of Section 38 (j) of the PFMA.

     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

 Subsidy paid in cash    4 300  4 872

 Transfers in the form of asset   7 559  –

 Total    11 859  4 872
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     31 Mar 31 Mar

     2013 2012

     R’000 R’000

18.  PRIOR YEAR ERROR – GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

 In terms of IAS20 the revenue must match the expenditure. 

 The effect of the revision is as follows:

 Decrease in Accumulated Surplus    (11 352)

 Increase Deferred Income – Government Grants    11 352
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Visitor 
requirements met 
through world 
class product 
provision and 
authentic, unique 
experiences

Approved signage 
plan

36 signs erected 
in the Dinokeng 
project area by 31 
March 2013

36 signs erected 241 signs procured 
and delivered for 
erection in the 
Dinokeng project 
area

Target exceeded 
by 205

Signage plan indicated that more 
signs were required than initially 
planned.

TA 1 reports 
submitted to 
Treasury

TA 1 approval by 31 
March 2013

TA 1 approval 
received from 
National Treasury 
by 31 March 2013

The Expression of 
Interest (EOI) for 
the development 
of the Roodeplaat 
Dam Tourism 
Hub was finalised 
and published as 
recommended 
by Provincial and 
National Treasury.

TA 1 approval not 
received from 
National Treasury.

Provincial and National Treasury  
advised that a Treasury Approval 
1 was not required as it was more 
prudent to pursue a process of 
obtaining Expression of Interest’s 
(EOI) to determine the markets 
appetite for such a project.

Progress made towards achievement of targets
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Research into 
best approach for 
development of 
Cullinan

1 Finalised 
Economic model 
for development 
of Cullinan  by 31 
March 2013

Economic Model 
for Cullinan 
developed

Phase A of status 
quo assessment 
completed

Final Economic 
Model for 
developing tourism 
in Cullinan has not 
yet been finalised.

The service provider was only 
appointed in the third quarter of 
2012/13 and the project is expected 
to be completed during 2013/14.

Design and EIA 2.7 km of the Road 
P2-5 constructed/
realigned in 
Cullinan area by 31 
March 2013

Realignment of 2.7 
km of road P2-5 by 
31 March 2013

The site 
establishment for 
the construction 
has taken place.

2.7 km not 
constructed yet

The delay in the appointment 
of the constructor was a direct 
result of the delays in obtaining 
the Records of Decision from the 
relevant authority. The project is 
however expected to be completed 
in the next eight months.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

- 24 comprehensive 
land transfer/swop 
agreements for 
Cullinan to ensure 
the development 
of the Cullinan 
Tourism Hub by 31 
March 2013

24 land swaps There has been no 
progress during 
the year despite 
negotiations 
with the relevant 
parties.

24 properties 
have not yet been 
transferred to GPG

Delays were caused by lack of 
legal due diligence. In addition 
valuation of properties has 
hampered negotiations with Petra 
Diamond Mine and the Department 
of Public Works.

8 Lions
10 – 12 Elephants

30 buffaloes 
procured by 31 
March 2013

30 Buffaloes 30 buffaloes 
procured

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

 - Facilitate the 
translocation of 
4 bull elephants 
to the DGR by 31 
March 2013

Facilitate the 
translocation of 4 
bull elephants to 
the DGR

4 bull elephants 
translocated to the 
DGR

There were no 
deviations

 There were no deviations
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

18 500 ha Agreement with 
DGRMA on the 
facilitation and 
support for the 
expansion of the 
DGR by 31 March 
2013

1 signed 
agreement with 
DGRMA

Engagements are 
ongoing with the 
new executive 
committee of 
the Dinokeng 
Game Reserve 
Management 
Association 
regarding the 
expansion of the 
Dinokeng Game 
Reserve.

1 signed 
agreement 
with Dinokeng 
Game Reserve 
Management 
Association is not 
yet in place.

There was a lot of negative 
sentiment that hampered many 
Landowners’ willingness to sign 
DLIOs.  However the engagements 
with the new executive committee 
are expected to ease many of 
this concerns and move the work 
forward earnestly in 2013/14.

All construction 
related to traffic 
calming measures 
in DGR completed

15 Speed 
humps(Traffic 
calming measures) 
facilitated in 
cooperation with 
SANRAL in the 
DGR  by 31 March 
2013

15 Speed humps 15 Speed humps No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

1 completed gate & 
fully staffed

5  Gateways 
completed in 
partnership with 
SANRAL in the 
DGR by 31 March 
2013

5 completed gates 
that are fully 
staffed

5 completed 
gateways fully 
staffed

No deviations from 
planned target.

 There were no deviations
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

206km Kilometres of big 
5 complaint fence 
constructed as 
required by 31 
March 2013

- 1.2 kilometre of 
big five compliant 
game fence was 
completed in total

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

3.6km 1 service provider 
appointed to 
extend the 
construction of the 
wall if required by 
31 March 2013

Approval for 
extension of the 
wall from 3.6km  
and appointment of 
service provider

1.6km of wall has 
been completed in 
total.

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

10 payments 12 monthly 
payments to 
the DGRMA 
for operational 
functioning by 31 
March 2013

12 payments 12 payments to 
DGRMA in total

No deviations from 
planned target.

 There were no deviations

  50  50 Community 
members 
employed in the 
working for fire 
project by 31 
March 2013

 50  50 employed No deviations from 
planned target.

 There were no deviations.



101
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

- 1 plan for Tourism 
Facilities on State 
Land developed by 
31 March 2013

1 Plan for Tourism 
Facilities on state 
land

Approved Plan for 
Tourism Facilities 
on state land have 
been developed.

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Sustainable 
opportunities 
for the effective 
participation and 
transfer of benefits 
to members of 
the adjacent 
communities by 
2016

50 50 SMME`s 
facilitated for GEP 
and TEP trained 
and supported per 
annum in Dinokeng 
by 31 March 2013

50 52 SMMEs trained 
in total

Target exceeded 
by 2

Partnership with Fair Trade and 
TEP resulted in more SMMEs 
requiring assistance.

New Indicator 200 community 
members 
employed as 
safety monitors 
in Dinokeng by 31 
March 2013

200 200 No deviations from 
planned target.

 There were no deviations

 -  Arts and 
Crafts Project 
implemented by 31 
March 2013

 Arts and 
Crafts Project 
implemented

 Arts and 
Crafts Project 
implemented

No deviations from 
planned target.

 There were no deviations.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

- Essential 
Oils Project 
implemented  31 
March 2013

Essential 
Oils Project 
implemented

The project has 
been put on hold

Planting of first 
seeds not done yet

Delays in developing and signing 
user rights for the land concerned.  
Legal advice is being sought in 
resolving the issues pertaining to 
the AIM land.

- Fair Trade in 
Tourism Project 
Implemented by 31 
March 2013

Fair Trade in 
Tourism Project 
Implemented

6 products certified 
in total

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

1 1 community 
project supported 
by local businesses 
in Dinokeng by 31 
March 2013

1 2 projects 
implemented 
with Cullinan and 
Kwalata

Target exceeded 
by 2

Partnership with key stakeholders 
was vital here.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Strengthen 
stakeholder 
engagement and 
ensure effective 
participation in the 
development of the 
Dinokeng project 
areas

1 1  community 
forum created 
and operational 
in Dinokeng by 31 
march 2013

1 3 community 
forums were not 
established

Not achieved The legal and institutional 
arrangements should first be 
finalised. Also, need to meet with 
the newly elected leadership at the 
Annual General Meeting

6 6 stakeholder 
engagement 
meetings held in 
Dinokeng by 31 
March 2013

6 18 stakeholder 
engagement 
meetings held in 
total

Target exceeded 
by 12

Fair Trade in Tourism workshops 
resulted in more extensive 
stakeholder consultations than 
originally planned.

2 2 bilateral 
meetings with local 
authorities by 31 
March 2013

2 5 bilateral 
meetings held with 
local authorities

Target exceeded 
by 3

More engagements were required 
than originally planned.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Monitoring & 
Evaluation systems 
and processes that 
are able to provide 
high quality data 
for reporting and 
management 
decision making

1 1 updated report 
on GDP and Job 
Creation figures 
for the COH WHS 
and Dinokeng 
for 2011/12 by 31 
March 2013

1 updated Report 1 updated report 
on GDP and Job 
Creation figures 
for the COH WHS 
and Dinokeng for 
2011/12

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Effective and 
efficient front end 
Budget and Audit 
support

1 1 Annual 
Performance Plan 
produced by 31 
March 2013

1 1 Annual 
Performance Plan 
produced by 31 
March 2013

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Attract visitors 
by implementing 
evidence based 
marketing 
strategies

84.99 127 177 
international 
visitors to 
Dinokeng by 31 
March 2013

127.177 90.42 Target less by 36.8 The Global economic climate 
may have had its impact on the 
overall value of discretionary 
spending of tourists. In addition 
the same projection for the Cradle 
of Humankind site was used for 
the Dinokeng area. Enhanced 
marketing and promotional activity 
to showcase the Dinokeng area 
as a value for money destination. 
In addition there will be a need 
to revise tourism projections for 
Dinokeng area.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

1.63 Average length 
of stay of 2 
nights spent by 
international 
tourists in 
Dinokeng  by 31 
March 2013

2 nights 1.63 Target less by 0.38 The Global economic climate may 
have had its impact on the overall 
value of discretionary spending 
of tourists. In addition, the same 
projections for the Cradle of 
Humankind site were used for 
the Dinokeng area. Enhanced 
marketing and promotional activity 
to showcase the Dinokeng area 
as a value for money destination. 
In addition there will be a need 
to revise tourism projections for 
Dinokeng area.

408.7 R912.9 million 
in total revenue 
generated 
from tourists in 
Dinokeng  by 31 
March 2013

912.992 415.313 Target missed by 
497.6

The Global economic climate may 
have had its impact on the overall 
value of discretionary spending 
of tourists. In addition the same 
projections for the Cradle of 
Humankind site were used for 
the Dinokeng area. Enhanced 
marketing and promotional activity 
to showcase the Dinokeng area 
as a value for money destination. 
In addition there will be a need 
to revise tourism projections for 
Dinokeng area.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

583,744 147 317 domestic 
trips to Dinokeng  
by 31 March 2013

147.317 583.744  Target exceeded 
by 436.4270

Increased importance of Dinokeng 
as a domestic tourism destination 
is gaining ground through key 
marketing and promotional 
activities

Build  Destination 
Marketing 
capabilities

160437 180 000 unique 
visitors to the 
website by 31 
March 2013

180,000 344,066 Target exceeded by 
164 066

Better awareness of Brand 
Gauteng through marketing and 
promotional activities

0 5 000 mobile 
and tablet apps 
downloads by 31 
March 2013

5,000 5,341 Target less by 
4,690

There were no deviations

3393 7000 followers to 
owned properties 
on all social media 
channels by 31 
March 2013

7000 13,986 Target exceeded 
by 6986

Better awareness of Brand 
Gauteng through marketing and 
promotional activities
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

- 1 Brand 
Management 
Strategy developed 
by 31 March 2013

1 Brand 
Management 
Strategy

1 Brand 
Management 
Strategy approved

 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

- 1 Marketing and 
Sales Strategy  
developed by 31 
March 2013

1 Marketing and 
Sales Strategy

1 Marketing and 
Sales Strategy 
approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

- 1 Convention and 
Events Strategy 
developed by 31 
March 2013

1 Convention and 
Events Strategy

1 Convention and 
Events Strategy 
approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations

1 1 media 
engagement 
programme 
embarked upon in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

1 1 media 
engagement 
programme

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

4 2 Major Events 
held/attended in 
coordination with 
GTA by 31 March 
2013. 

2 3 Target exceeded 
by 1

There was an additional 
opportunistic event to promote 
Gauteng as a tourism destination

2 4 International 
Exhibitions in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

4 4 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

4 4 consumers’ 
shows used to 
promote the 
province in 
coordination with 
GTA by 31 March 
2013.

4 5 Target exceeded 
by 1

There was an additional 
opportunistic event to promote 
Gauteng as a tourism destination

2 2 milestone/ 
government events 
supported in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

2 2 2 There were no deviations
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

2 3 flagship 
marketing 
campaigns/
promotions 
conducted in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

3 3 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

3 3 trade marketing 
events held in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

3 3 No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

2 7 trade 
interventions 
facilitated in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

7 8 Target exceeded 
by 1

There was an additional 
opportunistic event to promote 
Gauteng as a tourism destination

- 1 Visitor 
Information 
Services Strategy 
developed in 
coordination with 
GTA  by 31 March 
2013

1 1  Visitor 
Information 
Services Strategy 
approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.
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Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Monitoring & 
Evaluation systems 
and processes that 
are able to provide 
high quality data 
for reporting and 
management 
decision making

1 Annual Report 
produced for 
Gauteng Tourism

1 1 Annual Report 
produced for the 
Dinokeng Project

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Effective and 
efficient front end 
Budget and Audit 
support

1 1 complete and 
accurate asset 
register developed 
by 31 March 2013

1 1 complete and 
accurate asset 
register developed

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

100% 100% 
implementation 
of internal 
Audit Report 
Recommendations 
by 31 March 2013

100% 88% 2011/12 audit 
recommendations 
implemented while 
87% 2010/11 audit 
recommendations 
implemented and 
15% of 2012/13 
implemented.

(13%) as two IT 
Audit findings 
are overdue from 
2010/11.

The two audit findings are 
Information Technology 
related and is dependent on 
the Department of Economic 
Development’s Information 
Technology unit. Engagement are 
ongoing with them through various 
forums to have the issue resolved



111
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Strategic 
Objectives

Actual 
Achievement for 
2011/12

Performance 
Indicator

Planned Target for 
2012/13

Actual 
Achievement for 
2012/2013

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2013/2014

Comments on deviation

1 1 unqualified audit 
received by 31 
March 2013

1 1 unqualified 
audit received 
for the Cradle of 
Humankind World 
Heritage Site.

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

Enhanced 
organisational 
performance 
through the 
provision of 
effective Human 
Resources and 
Administration 
management and 
support

1 1 Human Resource 
Development 
Strategy approved 
by 31 March 2013

1 A Business 
Case for the 
merger process 
was developed 
by the Merger 
Task Team and 
approved before 
being submitted 
for Provincial 
Treasury’s 
approval.

The Human 
Resource 
Development 
Strategy was not 
developed..

Since the Gauteng Tourism 
Authority is being merged with 
the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site and Dinokeng 
Projects, it was necessary to first 
develop the Business Case for 
the new combined entity before 
embarking on the development 
of a combined Human Resource 
Development Strategy for the new 
entity..

100% 100% staff 
have signed 
Performance 
Contracts by 31 
March 2013

100% 100% No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations.

1 1 Standard 
Operating 
Procedure revised 
by 31 March 2013

1 1 Standard 
Operating 
Procedure revised 
and approved

No deviations from 
planned target.

There were no deviations
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6.1 Employment and Vacancies

6.1.1 Employment and Vacancies by Programme, 31 March 2013
Programme Number of posts Number of posts 

filled
Vacancy rate Number of posts 

filled additional to 
the establishment

Office of the CEO 8 5 38%

COH WHS 8 6 25%

Dinokeng 8 7 13%

Fundraising, Events 
and Marketing

9 8 11% 1

Research and 
Planning

9 7 22%

Finance 8 7 13%

Administration 14 7 50%

Total  Dinokeng 56 41 27%

Total COH WHS 56 40 29%

6.1.2 Employment and Vacancies by Salary  Bands, 31 March 2013
Salary band Number of posts Number of posts 

filled
Vacancy rate Number of posts 

filled additional to 
the establishment

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1 - 2)

0 0 0%

Skilled  
(Levels 3 - 5)

1 1 0%

Highly skilled 
production  
(Levels 6 - 8)

*  Dinokeng 1 1 0%

*  COH WHS 1 1 0%

* Transversal 13 5 62%
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continued

6.1.2 Employment and vacancies by salary  bands, 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Salary band Number of posts Number of posts 

filled
Vacancy rate Number of posts 

filled additional to 
the establishment

Highly skilled 
supervison  
(Levels 9 - 12)

*  Dinokeng 6 6 0%

*  COH WHS 6 4 33%

*  Transversal 27 21 22%

Senior management 
(Levels 13 - 16)

*  Dinokeng 1 0 100%

*  COH WHS 1 1 0%

*  Transversal 7 7 0%

Total COH WHS 56 40 29%

Total Dinokeng 56 41 27%

6.1.3 Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation, 31 March 2013   
Critical occupations Number of posts Number of posts 

filled
Vacancy rate Number of posts 

filled additional to 
the establishment

The organisation does not have any identified critical posts

6.2 Job Evaluation

6.2.1 Job Evalulation, 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2013
* No jobs in COH WHS and Dinokeng Programmes were evaluated during this period
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6.2.2 Profile of Employees Whose Salary Positions Were Upgraded Due to their Posts 
Being Upgraded, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
* No posts were upgraded during the reporting period

6.2.3 Employees Whose Salary Level Exceed the Grade Determination by Job Evaluation, 
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupation No of employees Job evaluation level Remuneration level Reason for deviation

Environment 1 11 12 Scarcity of skill

Website 
Copywriting and 
Editing

1 11 12 Scarcity of skill

Administration 1 9 12 Skilled function

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation 3

Percentage of total employment 5,36%

6.2.4 Profile of Employees Whose Salary Level Exceed the Grade Determined by Job 
Evaluation, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 1 0 2 3

continued
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6.3 Employment Changes

6.3.1 Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band for the Period 
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Salary  band Number of 

employees per 
band as on  
1 April 2013

Appointments and 
transfers into the 
department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 
department

Turnover rate

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1 - 2)

0 0 0 0%

Skilled  
(Levels 3 - 5)

1 0 0 0%

Highly skilled 
production  
(Levels 6 - 8)

0 0

*  COH WHS 1 0 0 0%

*  Dinokeng 1 0 0 0%

* Transversal 13 0 1 8%

Highly skilled 
supervision  
(Levels 9 - 12)

*  COH WHS 6 0 0 0%

*  Dinokeng 6 0 0 0%

* Transversal 27 0 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band A

5 1 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band B

1 0 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band C

1 0 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band D

2 1 0 0%

Total COH WHS 56 2 1 2%

Total Dinokeng 56 2 1 2%

6.3.2 Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation for the Period 
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupation Number of 

employees per 
occupation as on  
1 April 2013

Appointments and 
transfers into the 
department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 
department

Turnover rate

* The organisation does not have any identified critical posts
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6.3.3 Reasons Why Staff are Leaving the Department
Termination Type Number % of total

Death

Resignation 1 100%

Expiry of contract

Dismissal - operational changes

Dismissal - misconduct

Dismissal - inefficiency

Discharged due to ill health

Retirement

Transfers to other public service 
departments

Others

Total

Total number of employees who 
left as a % of the total employment

1 2%

6.3.4 Promotions by Critical Occupation
Occupation Employee as at 

1 April 2012
Promotions to 
another salary 
level

Salary level 
promotions as a 
% of employees 
by occupation

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 
level

Notch 
progressions s a 
% of employees 
by occupation

* The organisation does not have any identified critical posts

continued
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6.3.5 Promotions by Salary Band
Salary band Employees  

1 April 2013
Promotions to 
another salary 
level

Salary bands 
promotions as a 
% of employees 
by salary level

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 
level

Notch 
progressions 
as a % of 
employees by 
salary band

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1 - 2)

0 0 0% 0 0

Skilled  
(Levels 3 - 5)

1 0 0% 1 100%

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6 - 8)

*  COH WHS 1 0 0% 1 100%

*  Dinokeng 1 0 0% 1 100%

Transversal 13 0 0% 5 38%

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12)

*  COH WHS 6 0 0% 3 50%

*  Dinokeng 6 0 0% 3 50%

Transversal 27 0 0% 16 59%

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13 - 16)

*  COH WHS 1 0 0% 0 0%

*  Dinokeng 1 0 0% 0 0%

Transversal 7 1 14% 0 0%

Total COH WHS 56 0

Total Dinokeng 56 0 30
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6.4 Employment Equity

6.4.1 Total Number of Employees (Including Employees with Disabilities) in Each  
of the Following Occupational Categories as on 31 March 2013 
Occupational 
categories 
(SASCO)

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

8

*  COH WHS 1 1

*  Dinokeng 0

*  Transversal 2 1 1 1 1 1 7

Professionals 15

*  COH WHS 2 2

*  Dinokeng 1 1 1 3

*  Transversal 2 1 3 3 1 10

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

16

*  COH WHS 1 1 2

*  Dinokeng 1 1 1 3

*  Transversal 5 4 1 1 11

Clerks 8

*  COH WHS 1 1

*  Dinokeng 1 1

*  Transversal 1 5 6

continued
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6.4.1 Total Number of Employees (Including Employees with Disabilities) in Each  
of the Following Occupational Categories as on 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories 
(SASCO)

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Service and 
sales workers

Skilled 
agriculture and 
fishery workers

Craft and 
related trades 
workers

Plant and 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Elementary 
occupations

Total COH WHS 13 1 3 3 12 4 2 2 40

Total Dinokeng 12 1 2 4 15 2 3 2 41

Employees with 
disabilities

0



43
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

6.4.2 Total Number of Employees (Including Employees with Disabilities) in Each of the 
Following Occupational Bands as on 31 March 2013
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top 
management

2

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal 1 1 2

Senior 
management

6

*  COH WHS 1 1

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal 2 1 1 1 5

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists 
and mid 
management

16

*  COH WHS 2 1 3

*  Dinokeng 1 1 1 3

*  Transversal 2 1 3 3 1 10

Skilled 
technical and 
academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superitendents

15

continued
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6.4.2 Total Number of Employees (Including Employees with Disabilities) in Each of the 
Following Occupational Bands as on 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

*  COH WHS 1 1

*  Dinokeng 1 1 1 3

*  Transversal 5 4 1 1 10

Semi-
skilled and 
discretionary 
decision-
making

9

* COH WHS 1 1

* Dinokeng 1 1

Transversal 1 4 1 6

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making

Total COH WHS 13 1 3 3 11 4 2 3 40

Total Dinokeng 12 1 2 4 14 2 3 3 41

6.4.3 Recruitment for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top 
management

*  COH WHS 0

*  Dinokeng 0

*  Transversal 1 1

Senior 
management
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6.4.3 Recruitment for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

*  COH WHS 0

*  Dinokeng 0

*  Transversal 1 1

Skilled 
technical and 
academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superitendents

*  COH WHS 0

*  Dinokeng 0

*  Transversal 0

Semi-
skilled and 
discretionary 
decision-
making

*  COH WHS 0

*  Dinokeng 0

*  Transversal 0

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making

Total 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Employees with 
disabilities

0

continued
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6.4.4 Promotions for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top 
management

Senior 
management

1 1

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists 
and mid 
management

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Skilled 
technical and 
academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superitendents

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal
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6.4.4 Promotions for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Semi-
skilled and 
discretionary 
decision-
making

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making

Total COH WHS

Total Dinokeng

Employees with 
disabilities

Total 1 1

continued
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6.4.5 Terminations for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top 
management

0

Senior 
management

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists 
and mid 
management

0

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Skilled 
technical and 
academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superitendents

0
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6.4.5 Terminations for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
bands

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Semi-
skilled and 
discretionary 
decision-
making

1

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making

0

Total COH WHS

Total Dinokeng

Employees with 
disabilities

Total 1 1

continued
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6.4.6 Disciplinary Action for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Disciplinary 
action

1 1

6.4.7 Skills Development for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupational 
categories 
(SASCO)

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

6

*  COH WHS 1

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal 2 1 1 1

Professionals 15

*  COH WHS 2

*  Dinokeng 1 1 1

*  Transversal 2 1 3 3 1

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

16
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6.4.7 Skills Development for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories 
(SASCO)

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

*  COH WHS 1 1 1

*  Dinokeng 1 1 1

*  Transversal 5 5

Clerks 10

*  COH WHS 1

*  Dinokeng 1

*  Transversal 1 6 1

Service and 
sales workers

Skilled 
agriculture and 
fishery workers

Craft and 
related trades 
workers

Plant and 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Elementary 
occupations

Total COH WHS 13 1 2 3 14 2 2 3

Total Dinokeng 12 1 1 4 17 0 3 2

Employees with 
disabilities

0

47
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6.5 Foreign Workers

6.5.1 Foreign Workers, 1 April 2012 - 31 March 2013, by Salary Band
Salary band 01-Apr-12 31-Mar-13 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1 - 2)

Skilled 
(Levels 3 - 5)

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6 - 8)

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12)

1 1

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13 - 
16)

Total COH 
WHS 

1 1 0

Total 
Dinokeng

1 1 0

6.5.2 Foreign Worker, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013, by Major Occupation
Major 
occupation

01-Apr-12 31-Mar-13 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Fundraising 
Manager

1 1

Total COH 
WHS

1 1 0

Total 
Dinokeng

1 1 0
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6.6 Leave Utilisation for the Period 1 January - 31 December 2012

6.6.1 Sick leave, 1 January to 31 December 2012
Salary band Total days % days with 

medical 
certification

Number of 
employees 
using sick 
leave

% of total 
employees 
using sick 
leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated 
cost (R'000)

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1 - 2)

0

Skilled  
(Levels 3 - 5)

Transversal 3 1

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6 - 8)

*  COH WHS 17 1

*  Dinokeng 3 1

*  Transversal 54 6

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12)

*  COH WHS * 3 5

*  Dinokeng 21 6

*  Transversal   99 20

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13 - 16)

*  COH WHS 11 1

*  Dinokeng  *

*  Transversal 25 5

Total COH WHS

Total Dinokeng

236 46

Includes staff that has resigned during the year

continued
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Table 6.6.2 - Disability leave (temporary and permanent),
 1 January to 31 December 2012
Salary band Total days 

taken
% days with 
medical 
certificate

Number of 
employees 
using 
disability 
leave

% of total 
employees 
using 
disability 
leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated 
cost (R'000)

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1 - 2)

Skilled 
(Levels 3 - 5)

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6 - 8)

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12)

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal 21 1

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13 - 16)

*  COH WHS

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal

Total COH WHS

Total Dinokeng
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6.6.3 Annual Leave, 1 January - 31 December 2012
Salary bands Total days taken Average per employee

Lower skilled (Levels 1 - 2)

Skilled (Levels 3 - 5)

Transversal 23 1

Highly skilled production  
(Levels 6 - 8)

*  COH WHS 20 1

*  Dinokeng 18 1

*  Transversal 125 6

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9 - 12)

*  COH WHS 85 5

*  Dinokeng 116 6

*  Transversal 358 20

Senior management 
(Levels 13 - 16)

*  COH WHS 26 1

*  Dinokeng

*  Transversal 116 5

Total COH WHS

Total Dinokeng 887 46

Includes information of staff who resigned during the year

continued
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6.6.4 Leave Payouts for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Reason Total amount (R'000) Number of employees Average amount per 

employee

Leave payout for 2009/10 due to 
non-utilisation of leave for the 
previous cycle

Capped leave payouts on 
termination of service for 2009/10

Current leave payout on 
termination of service for 2009/10

Total 288 401 11 26 218

6.7 HIV/AIDS and Health Promotion Programmes

6.7.1 Steps Taken to Reduce the Risk of Occupational Exposure
Units/categories of employees identified to be at high 
risk of contracting HIV and related diseases (if any) 

Key steps taken to reduce  the risk

6.7.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes
1.  Has the department designated a member of the SMS to 
implement the provisons contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the 
Public Service Regualtions, 2001?  If so provide his/her name  
and position

Yes The organisation makes use of 
the services of DED in this regard

2.  Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated 
specific  staff members to promote the health aud wellbeing of your 
employees? If so, indicate the number of employees who are involved 
in this task and the annual budget that is available for this purpose.

Yes The organisation makes use of 
the services of DED in this regard

3.  Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health 
Promotion Progarmme for your employees?  If so, indicte the key 
elements/service of this Programme.

Yes The GSSC has an EAP/wellness 
programme for all personnel of 
the GPG

4.  Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated 
in Part VI E.5(e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001?  
If so, please provide the names of the members of the committee and 
the stakeholder(s) of the Programme.

Yes The organisation makes use of 
the services of DED in this regard

5.  Has the department reviewed its employment policies and 
practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the bvasis of their HIC status?  If so, list the 
employement policies/practices so reviewed.

Yes HIV/AIDS policy of DED accepted
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6.7.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (Continued)
6.  Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV positive 
employees or those perceived to be HIV positive from discrimination?  
If so, list the key elements of these measures.

Yes The organisation makes use of 
the services of DED in this regard

7.  Does the department encourage its employees to undergo 
Voluntary Counselling and testing?  If so, list the results that you  
have achieved.

Yes This forms part of DED services 
for personnel

8.  Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor 
and evaluate the impact of its health promotion programme?  
If so, list these measures/indicators

Yes Personnel makes use of DED 
services in this regard

6.8 Labour Relations

6.8.1 Collective agreements, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Subject matter Date

If there were no agreements, then use the following table Total collective agreements

6.8.2 Misconduct and Disciplinary Hearings Finalised, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling

Verbal warning

Written warning

Final written warning

Suspended without pay

Fine

Demotion

Dismissal 1 100%

Not guilty

Case withdrawn

Total

If there were no disciplinary hearings, then use the following table Disciplinary hearings - 20112/13

continued



58
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

6.8.3 Types of Misconduct Addressed at Discplinary Hearings
Type of misconduct Number % of total

Total 0 0

6.8.4 Grievance Lodged for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Number % of total

Number of grievances resolved 1

Number of grievances not resolved 1

Total number of grievances lodged 2

6.8.5 Disputes Lodged with Councils for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Number % of total

Number of disputes upheld 0

Number of disputes dismissed 0

Total number of disputes lodged 1

6.8.6 Strike Actions for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Total number of person working days lost 0

Total cost (R'000) of working days lost 0

Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0

6.8.7 Precautionary Suspensions for the Period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Number of people suspended 0

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

Cost (R'000) of suspensions 0



59
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

6.9 Skills Development

6.9.1 Training Needs Identified 1 April 20012 to 31 March 2013
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

*  COH WHS Male 1 Mentoring and 
coaching for public 
sector managers

Internal workshop: 
UNITAIR/ UNESCO

* COH WHS Female 0

*  Dinokeng Female 0

*  Dinokeng Male 0

*  Transversal Female 2 Internal control and 
risk management; 
Contract 
management; 
Leading women in 
business

*  Transversal Male 3 Mentoring and 
coaching for public 
sector managers; 
Strategic supply 
chain management; 
Corporate 
governance; Public 
speaking and 
presentation skills; 
Lead and manage 
teams; Strategic 
brand marketing; 
Prince 2

continued
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6.9.1 Training Needs Identified 1 April 20012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

Professionals

*  COH WHS Female

*  COH WHS Male 2 Strategic planning 
and integration with 
budgets; Contract 
management

*  Dinokeng Female 1 Road traffic 
signs: Design and 
implementation; 
Public Private 
Partnerships; 
Contract 
management

*  Dinokeng Male 2 Contract 
management; 
Effective stakeholder 
engagement; 
Thinking and 
planning 
strategically; Project 
management

*  Transversal Female 4 Strategic planning 
and integration with 
budgets; Conflict 
management; 
Advanced global 
marketing; 
Supervisory skills 
in the public 
sector; Strategic 
marketing for 
thinkers; Advanced 
Management 
Development 
Programme

*  Transversal Male 6 Fundamentals of 
photography; Strategic 
planning and integration 
with budgets; Final cut  
pro 7; Strategic planning 
and integration with 
budgets; Internal 
audit and governance; 
Preventing, detecting 
and managing fraud; 
Audit Committee in 
public sector

International 
conference: Mountain 
Bikes Trails;
International 
conference: Karst; 
Conference: 
Unblocking rural 
development; Autumn 
Academy for NPOs; 
Fundraising workshop; 
CSI workshop, Annual 
Philantropy Awards
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6.9.1 Training Needs Identified 1 April 20012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

Professionals

*  Transversal Male 6 Fundamentals 
of photography; 
Strategic planning 
and integration with 
budgets; Final cut  
pro 7; Strategic 
planning and 
integration with 
budgets; Internal 
audit and governance; 
Preventing, detecting 
and managing fraud; 
Audit Committee in 
public sector

International 
conference: 
Mountain Bikes 
Trails; International 
conference: Karst; 
Conference: 
Unblocking rural 
development; 
Autumn Academy 
for NPOs; 
Fundraising 
workshop; CSI 
workshop, Annual 
Philantropy Awards

continued
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6.9.1 Training Needs Identified 1 April 20012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

*  COH WHS Female 1 7 Habits of Highly 
Effective People; 
Confidential 
Communication

*  COH WHS Male 1 7 Habits of Highly 
Effective People; 
Confidential 
Communication

*  Dinokeng Female 2 Public relations; 
Effective stakeholder 
engagement; Road 
traffici signs: Designs 
and implementation

*  Dinokeng Male 1 Project management; 
Contract management; 
Business English writing

*  Transversal Female 6 Strategic planning 
and integrated with 
budgets; Stakeholder 
management; Supply 
Chain Performance; 
Real Management; 
Financial Management; 
Internal Control and 
Risk Management; 
Strategic Planning 
and Integration with 
Budgets; Government 
Budgeting; Meeting and 
Minute Taking Skills, 
Risk and Internal Control 
Assessment; Internal 
Audit and Governance; 
Project management; 7 
Habits for highly effective 
people; Financial 
reporting; Management 
accounting; Strategic 
planning and integration 
with budgets; Risk 
management, Project 
management

Professional 
Development 
Certificate 
in Integrated 
Heritage Resource 
Management
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6.9.1 Training Needs Identified 1 April 20012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

*  Transversal Male 5 Effective writing skills 
Level 2 Advance; 
Presentation skills for 
office professionals; 
Project management; 
Emerging Management 
Development 
Programme; 
Intermediate 
photography; 
Professional writing 
skills, PFMA and 
Treasury Regulations; 
Management for new 
managers; Labour 
relations and labour law

Autumn Academy 
for NPOs; 
Conference : 
Unlocking rural 
development 
funding 
opportunities and 
linking donors

Clerks

*  COH WHS Female 1 High performance PA / 
Administrator Essential 
Skills; Supply chain 
management

*  COH WHS Male 0

*  Dinokeng Female 1 Effective stakeholder 
engagement; Supply 
chain management; 
Public relations

*  Dinokeng Male 0

continued
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6.9.1 Training Needs Identified 1 April 20012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Clerks

*  Transversal Female 6 MICE; Supply chain 
management; 
Strategic online social 
network marketing; 
Community relations 
and development 
communications; Self 
development in public 
sector; Advanced Office 
Management and Admin 
Skills; Principles of 
Professional Project 
Administration; High 
performance PA; 
7 Habits for highly 
effective people; 
Emerging Management 
Development 
Programme; Demand 
Management, Public 
Financial Management 
for Non-Finance 
managers; Internal 
control and risk 
management; Project 
managegment, 
National Qualification 
in Government 
Administration, Real 
Management

*  Transversal Male 1 Project management; 
Supply chain 
management; Principles 
of Professional Project 
Administration

Service and sales workers

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

Craft and related trades 
workers

Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers

Elementary occupations

Total COH WHS 39

Total Dinokeng 40
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6.9.2 Training Provided 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

*  COH WHS Female 0

*  COH WHS Male 1 International 
workshop: UNITAR/ 
UNESCO

*  Dinokeng Female 0

* Dinokeng Male 0

*  Transversal Female 2 Leading women in 
business; Contract 
management

*  Transversal Male 3

Professionals

*  COH WHS Female

*  COH WHS Male 2

*  Dinokeng Female 1 Road Traffic 
Signs, Design and 
Implementation

*  Dinokeng Male 2 Contract management

*  Transversal Female 4

*  Transversal Male 6 International 
conference: 
Mountain bike 
trails; International 
conference: Karst

continued
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6.9.2 Training Provided 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

*  COH WHS Female 1

*  COH WHS Male 1

*  Dinokeng Female 2 Road traffic signs -
Designs and 
implementation

*  Dinokeng Male 1 Contract management; 
Business English writing

*  Transversal Female 6 Management accounting; 
Strategic planning and 
integration with budgets; 
Risk management; 
Government budgeting; 
government accounting; 
Real management; 
Financial management

Professional 
Development 
Certificate 
in Integrated 
Heritage Resource 
Management

*  Transversal Male 5 Project management; 
Labour relations and 
labour law

Conference: 
Unlocking rural 
development 
funding 
opportunities and 
linking donors
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6.9.2 Training Provided 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Clerks

*  COH WHS Female 1

*  COH WHS Male 0

*  Dinokeng Female 1

*  Dinokeng Male 0

*  Transversal Female 6 Community relations 
and development 
communications; 
Advanced office 
management and 
admin skills; Emerging 
Management 
Development 
Programme; Demand 
Management; Advanced 
Meetings and Minute 
Taking; Bid Committees 
in the public sector

*  Transversal Male 1

continued
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6.9.2 Training Provided 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (Continued)
Occupational 
categories

Gender Number of 
employees as 
at 1 April 2012

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Learnerships Skills programmes 
and other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Service and sales workers

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

Craft and related trades 
workers

Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers

Elementary occupations

Total COH WHS 39

Total Dinokeng 40

Employees with 
disabilities

Sub total

Total

6.9.3 Injury on Duty, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention 1 26
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